
* * * * PUBLIC NOTICE * * * *

NOTICE OF A CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING
A WORKSHOP SESSION

OF THE CITY OF CORINTH
Thursday, March 16, 2017, 5:30 P.M.

CITY HALL - 3300 CORINTH PARKWAY

CALL TO ORDER:

5:30 p.m. WORKSHOP BUSINESS AGENDA

1. Discuss Regular Meeting Items on Regular Session Agenda, including the consideration of closed
session items as set forth in the Closed Session agenda items below.

2. Receive a presentation from Atmos Energy for construction updates of the gas pipeline distribution
system in the City of Corinth.

ADJOURN WORKSHOP SESSION

*NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of a Regular Session of the Corinth City Council to be held at Corinth City Hall
located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The agenda is as follows:

7:00 p.m. CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

PROCLAMATION:
The Prudential Spirit of Community Awards Honors Micah Pinson.

PROCLAMATION:
Katie Landaverde, Lake Dallas Elementary School Teacher, Winner of the Rather Prize Award.

CONSENT AGENDA
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion.
Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed from
the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

1. Consider and act on minutes from the January 12, 2017 Workshop Session.

2. Consider and act on minutes from the February 2, 2017 Joint Session.

1



3. Consider and act on minutes from the February 2, 2017 Regular Session.

4. Consider and/or act upon the approval of a Resolution to renew an agreement for ambulance billing
services between Emergicon, LLC, and the City of Corinth

5. Consider and approve purchase of replacement ambulance from Siddons-Martin.

6. Consider and act on Resolution with Government Capital regarding a financial contract for the purpose
of procuring a replacement 2017 Road Rescue Ambulance.

CITIZENS  COMMENTS
In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than factual
responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will be limited to
3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council and may be taken
into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input form if you desire to
address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be addressed to the Council as
a whole and not to any individual member thereof.* Section 30.041B Code of Ordinance of the City of Corinth.

BUSINESS AGENDA

7. Accept the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2016, as presented by Davis Kinard & Co, PC.

8. Consider and act on the site plan for Swisher/35 Retail on property legally described as Swisher 35-E
Addition, Lot 4, Block A zoned C-2, Commercial in the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas.  This
property is located north of Swisher and south of Burl.

9. Consider and act on a sign variance for Lake Dallas ISD School Addition Lot 1R, Block 1 in the City of
Corinth, Denton County, Texas, having a physical address of 3016 Parkridge Drive.

10. Consider and act on a sign variance for Corinth Elementary Addition Lot 1, Block 1 in the City of
Corinth, Denton County, Texas, having a physical address of 3501 Cliff Oaks Drive.

11. Consideration of a motion to reconsider an ordinance amending the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance
being a part of the Unified Development Code, Ordinance No. 13-05-02-08, as amended, and a portion
of Planned Development Ordinance No. 99-03-18-05, as amended, by amending the zoning to Planned
Development C-2 Commercial District and adding “Hospital” as a Permitted Use on Lot 1, Block A,
Corinth Medical Center Addition being 5.00 acres in the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas and
calling a public hearing and  continuation of action on an ordinance to April 20, 2017.

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general updates and/or
comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, in accordance
with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Councilmember may direct that an item be
added as a business item to any future agenda.

2



CLOSED SESSION
The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of the
above listed agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government
Code.

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation;
and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter 551.

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third
person.

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or
near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic
development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect.

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on
any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not.

RECONVENE  IN  OPEN  SESSION  TO  TAKE  ACTION, IF NECESSARY,  ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS.

ADJOURN:

Posted this 10 day of March, 2017 at 11:30 a.m. on the bulletin board at Corinth City Hall.

________________________________
Kimberly Pence, City Secretary
City of Corinth, Texas

Kimberly Pence

3



    WORKSHOP BUSINESS ITEM    2.        
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: Atmos Energy Construction Update
Submitted For: Fred Gibbs, Director  Submitted By: Mike Brownlee, City Engineer
Approval: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager 

AGENDA ITEM
Receive a presentation from Atmos Energy for construction updates of the gas pipeline distribution system in the
City of Corinth.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Atmos Gas will provide a briefing on their planned construction activities inside the City of Corinth including a
regional gas pipeline renovation which is partially located inside Corinth along the eastern boundary. A survey of
the underground utilities was performed a few months ago along the route which drew the attention of some of the
residents along the existing pipeline corridor. Atmos is now preparing for construction activities. Tonight's
presentation will provide more detail on the overall plan and a better idea of the current scheduling for the project
phases.

RECOMMENDATION
It would be appropriate at this time to ask questions and/or request additional information concerning Atmos plans
for construction projects in Corinth.

4



    Proclamation           
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: Proclamation for the Rather Prize Award
Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
PROCLAMATION:
Katie Landaverde, Lake Dallas Elementary School Teacher, Winner of the Rather Prize Award.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The Rather Prize, founded in 2015 by newsman Dan Rather, and his grandson Martin Rather, awards $10,000 to
the educator, or the student with the best idea for how to improve Texas Public Schools and communities through
strengthening public education.

Katie Landaverde, a teacher at Lake Dallas Elementary School, who out of 200 submissions has been selected as
the winner of the Rather Prize for her idea to implement workshops targeted at elementary school students, and
taught by high school students, where students attend seminars on topics of their choice. The program is to provide
younger students the opportunity to explore their passion, while simultaneously allowing older students to to
develop their expertise by teaching the subjects of their interests.

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

Attachments
Proclamation 

5



MAYOR’S PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, The Mayor and City Council would like to extend their congratulations to 
Katie Landaverde, a teacher at Lake Dallas Elementary School, who out of 200 
submissions has been selected as the winner of the Rather Prize; and 

WHEREAS, The Rather Prize, founded in 2015 by newsman Dan Rather, and his 
grandson Martin Rather, awards $10,000 to the educator, or the student with the best 
idea for how to improve Texas Public Schools and communities through strengthening 
public education; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Landaverde was awarded for her idea to implement workshops targeted 
at elementary school students, and taught by high school students, where students attend 
seminars on topics of their choice. The program is to provide younger students the 
opportunity to explore their passion, while simultaneously allowing older students to to 
develop their expertise by teaching the subjects of their interests; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Landaverde referenced the need for building a strong culture of 
leadership, followed by ensuring that teachers, staff and community members are willing 
to help with execution; and

NOW, THEREFORE I, Bill Heidemann by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor 
of the City of Corinth, do recognize and acknowledge Katie Landaverde for her 
innovation in the classroom and encourage all of its citizens to congratulate her on her 
accomplishment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City
of Corinth to be affixed this 16th day of March, 2017. 

      Bill Heidemann, Mayor
        City of Corinth

6



    Proclamation           
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: Proclamation
Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: N/A
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
PROCLAMATION:
The Prudential Spirit of Community Awards Honors Micah Pinson.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The Prudential Spirit of Community Awards honors Fort Worth and Shady Shores students with $1,000, medallions
and a trip to the nation's Capital.
  
The Prudential Spirit of Community Awards represents the United States' largest youth recognition program based
solely on volunteer service. All public and private middle schools and high schools in the country, as well as all
Girl Scout Councils, County 4-H Organizations, American Red Cross chapters, YMCAs and HandsOn Network
affiliates, were eligible to select a student or member for a local Prudential Spirit of Community Award. These
Local Honorees were then reviewed by an independent judging panel, which selected State Honorees and
Distinguished Finalists based on criteria including personal initiative, effort, impact and personal growth.

Micah Pinson, age 12, of Shady Shores was named Texas' Top Youth Volunteers of 2017 by The Prudential Spirit
of Community Awards, a nationwide program honoring young people for outstanding acts of volunteerism.

Micah, a seventh-grader at Corinth Classical Academy, has conducted an annual holiday toy drive over the last five
years that has gathered more than 15,000 toys and games for patients at Texas Scottish Rite Hospital for Children
as a way of giving back to the hospital for the care he received there

Grateful for all the hospital had done, Micah and his father met with an officer there to find out how they could
help Scottish Rite. That's when Micah decided to collect toys that the hospital could give to its patients throughout
the year. So now, every year between Thanksgiving and Christmas, Micah and his family knock on doors and place
collection boxes at businesses and other community locations, often with the help of local high school students and
other volunteers. A few days before Christmas, Micah gathers all of the items that have been donated and delivers
them to the hospital.

As State Honoree, Micah will receive $1,000, an engraved silver medallion and an all-expense-paid trip in early
May to Washington, D.C., where he will join the top two honorees from each of the other states and the District of
Columbia for four days of national recognition events. During the trip, 10 students will be named America's top
youth volunteers of 2017.
 

RECOMMENDATION
N/A

Attachments
Proclamation 

7



MAYOR'S PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, The Prudential Spirit of Community Awards honors Fort Worth and Shady Shores students 
with $1,000, medallions and a trip to the nation's Capital; and

WHEREAS, The Prudential Spirit of Community Awards represents the United States' largest youth 
recognition program based solely on volunteer service. All public and private middle schools and high 
schools in the country, as well as all Girl Scout Councils, County 4-H Organizations, American Red 
Cross chapters, YMCAs and HandsOn Network affiliates, were eligible to select a student or member for 
a local Prudential Spirit of Community Award. These Local Honorees were then reviewed by an 
independent judging panel, which selected State Honorees and Distinguished Finalists based on criteria 
including personal initiative, effort, impact and personal growth; and

WHEREAS, Micah Pinson, age 12, of Shady Shores was named Texas' Top Youth Volunteers of 2017 by 
The Prudential Spirit of Community Awards, a nationwide program honoring young people for 
outstanding acts of volunteerism; and

WHEREAS, Micah, a seventh-grader at Corinth Classical Academy, has conducted an annual holiday 
toy drive over the last five years that has gathered more than 15,000 toys and games for patients at Texas 
Scottish Rite Hospital for Children as a way of giving back to the hospital for the care he received there; 
and

WHEREAS, Grateful for all the hospital had done, Micah and his father met with an officer there to find 
out how they could help Scottish Rite. That's when Micah decided to collect toys that the hospital could 
give to its patients throughout the year. So now, every year between Thanksgiving and Christmas, Micah 
and his family knock on doors and place collection boxes at businesses and other community locations, 
often with the help of local high school students and other volunteers. A few days before Christmas, 
Micah gathers all of the items that have been donated and delivers them to the hospital; and

WHEREAS, As State Honoree, Micah will receive $1,000, an engraved silver medallion and an all-
expense-paid trip in early May to Washington, D.C., where he will join the top two honorees from each of 
the other states and the District of Columbia for four days of national recognition events.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Bill Heidemann, by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor of Corinth, 
Texas do hereby honor Micah Pinson for outstanding acts of volunteerism and exemplary service to 
improve communities.

Signed this 16th day of March, 2017.

__________________________
Bill Heidemann, Mayor
City of Corinth, Texas

8



    CONSENT ITEM    1.        
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: January 12, 2017 Workshop
Submitted For: Kim Pence, City Secretary  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the January 12, 2017 Workshop Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are minutes from the January 12, 2017 Workshop Session. The minutes are in draft form and not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the January 12, 2017 Workshop Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 

9



Page 1 of 27 

 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF DENTON 

CITY OF CORINTH 

 

On this the 12
th

 day of January, 2017 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in a Workshop Session at the Corinth 

City Hall at 5:30 P.M., located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, time, place and purpose as 

required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, Government Code, with the following members 

to wit: 

 

Members Present: 

Bill Heidemann, Mayor 

Joe Harrison, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Sam Burke, Council Member 

Lowell Johnson, Council Member 

Don Glockel, Council Member 

Scott Garber, Council Member 

 

Staff Members Present: 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director 

Cody Collier, Public Works Director 

Kim Pence, City Secretary 

Elaine Herzog, Engineering Manager 

Curtis Birt, Fire Chief 

Greg Wilkerson, Assistant Chief of Police 

Shea Rogers, Technology Services Manager 

Jason Alexander, Economic Development Director 

Mike Brownlee, City Engineer 

Chris Rodriguez, Finance Manager 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resources Director 

Jane Krhovjak, Human Resources Generalist 

 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M. 

 

PRESENTATION: 

 

1. Receive a presentation, hold a discussion and provide staff direction on the Water and Wastewater Master Plan, and the 

 Water, Wastewater and Roadway Impact Fee Study. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Ms. Bunselmeyer turned the meeting over to Planning and Development 

Director Fred Gibbs  

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - We are getting close to wrapping this project up. We need guidance 

from the Council on percentages and fee collection on the Impact Fees. We are currently projected to go to the CIAC 

Committee which is the planning and zoning commission on January 23
rd

. Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. will go over the 

Impact Fees at that meeting. Also, an item for this is included on the February 2
nd

 agenda to discuss to hold a public hearing 

report. Fred turned the meeting over to Anthony Samarripas with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. to go over their 

presentation. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Mr. Samarripas introduced his colleague 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. Mr. Whitacre has dealt with the roadway and 

transportation component of the Impact Fee updates. Kimley-Horn and Associates is here to give a project status of where 

they are on the project and touch on the preliminary results for the Impact Fees, Water Roadway and Wastewater and will 

walk through the upcoming steps which Fred mentioned. Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. is requesting feedback from the 

Council on the Impact Fees and will answer any questions the Council may have. Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. is not 

looking for formal action or direction, but would like to provide the Council with a preview of how the new Impact Fees are 

looking and gage the Council's thoughts on where they might want to see the new Impact Fees adopted, what rates and if 

there are any other options to look at before the public hearing. 

10



Page 2 of 27 

 

 

The reason for Impact Fee update: The Impact Fees are governed by Texas local government code Chapter 395 and that law 

stipulates that cities have to update their Impact Fees every five years. The city updated their fees in 2011, so the five year 

window is coming up and the Impact Fees are being updated. 

 

Water and Wastewater Master Plan update: As part of the Impact Fee project, the City of Corinth asked Kimley-Horn and 

Associates, Inc. to look at updating the Water and Wastewater Master Plans because those master plans were updated over 

ten years ago. It is time to reevaluate the master plans so we have been working on the master plans concurrently with the 

Impact Fees. Main discussion of this agenda item will be about the Impact Fees, but the analysis on the master plans are 

about done so Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. has identified future capital projects that will be needed to meet future 

demands and will start moving into developing master plan documents. In the next couple of months master plan documents 

will start coming in to the Council for review and approval. This process will continue. 

 

A review of previous project milestones:  

 April 21, 2016 Council Approves Engineering Services Agreement - this process was started in April 2016 

 August 18, 2016 Impact Fee Workshop 

- Land Use Assumptions were presented to Council (Council had no comments on land use assumptions) 

- Financial Analysis Task was presented to Council (Council directed staff not to proceed with Financial Analysis) 

 January 12, 2017 

- Discuss preliminary results and get feedback on those preliminary results  

- Financial Analysis Task Impact 

 

In August we held a work session and we touched on Land Use Assumptions that we will use on the Impact Fees. The 

Land Use Assumptions are the growth projections that we use to determine the Impact Fees . For Impact Fees we look at 

a ten year window which is  stipulated by the law and we look at how much growth the city going to have in the next ten 

years and what infrastructure is needed to serve that growth. 

 

Councilmember Glockel - Please clarify if it has or hasn't been five years since the Impact Fees have been updated. If the last 

time that they were updated was in 2011, wouldn't we be coming up on six years?  

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - The City of Corinth came up on their five 

years in December 2016. The process for the Impact Fee update started in April 2016. The process was started prior to the five 

year window. The city attorney has agreed that you are working toward fulfilling that five year commitment. 

Regarding the growth assumptions we presented back in August, we project that within the next ten years there will be a 

population growth of 3,554 and that non-residential growth will be about 1,625,000 sf. These numbers were developed by 

working with city staff, looking at historical growth rates  and projecting out what those growth rates will look like in ten years. 

 

Another item that was discussed in August was the credit calculation component of the Impact Fees. A section from Chapter 395 

Credit Calculation/Financial Analysis (the law governing Impact Fees) was shared. Basically, the law says that you have to give a 

credit as part of the Impact Fee process so you don't double charge new development. You can do one of two things . You can go 

through a very detailed credit calculation which is what the first bullet walks through or in lieu of doing the detailed credit 

calculation, you can just reduce your Impact Fee number by 50%. You can do one or the other:  

 

 A credit for the  portion of ad valorem tax and utility service revenues generated by new service unit during the program period that is used 

for the payment of improvements, including the payment of debt, that are included in the capital improvements plan; or  

 In the alternative, a credit equal to 50% of the total project cost of implementing the capital improvements plan. 

 

These two options were discussed with Council. The first one, the detailed credit calculation, will allow you to end up with a higher Impact 

Fee number that you can charge. The 50% will be lower than that. We looked at benchmark cities. We looked at what the city was 

currently charging and a decision was made that the 50% approach will likely be sufficient because those numbers would be high or higher 

than Council would want to charge any way. 

 

The direction we got was the detailed financial analysis was not needed. We would take the 50% approach and those results will likely be 

sufficient for what you would want to charge. 

 

We can look at how the results compare to the 2011 study. 

 

2011 Calculated versus 2016 Calculated 

 

11



Page 3 of 27 

 

 
 

Mayor Heidemann - What goes into the Roadway?  

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - It's a combination of two things. It's some of the 

new roads that need to be built such as the widening and it captures some of the existing roads that need to be done such as 

2181. Roads that have already been built that you are paying debt service on and a combination roads that you have to build 

in the future. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - The 50% credit approach table is as follows: 

 

 
 

Councilmember Garber - question about the cost of the financial analysis is it really going to get us more than the 50% now. These fees 

are paid by developers and people building the city, right? That is a lot of money. That seems like a lot of money to not take a detailed 

financial approach. Certainly it's not going to cost us three million to do a detailed financial analysis. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Correct. The financial analysis task is part 

of Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.'s contract. It is listed as a line item in case Council want to proceed and has not been 

used yet. The cost in total for Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.'s financial consultant to do the detailed analysis for Water 

Wastewater and Roadway is $27,000. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - Typically you do those (detailed financial analysis) if you are going over 50% 

collection rates. If you want to go over 50% you want to account for the reasoning and financial backing to go over 50%. That is typically 

when you kick in the financial analysis. 

 

Councilmember Garber - Would going over the 50% adversely affect our ability to develop the city the way that we want to? It keeps us 

from being competitive  

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - It will increase that number significantly which you are going to see the 

comparison at 50%. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - We will go into the next session which 

will somewhat address what the Council is asking.  

 

Councilmember Glockel - I read the whole report. I don't know where the East and West Trinity are. You can see in the breakdown that 

you are charging different for the Westside. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - There is a map in the report that you will 

receive prior to the public hearing that show where the basins are at. 

 

Councilmember Glockel - Might be good information to have to show why the pricing is different.  

12



Page 4 of 27 

 

 

Councilmember Burke - Upper Trinity decides that, right? 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - The basin component was worked on with 

the city staff on defining basins based on the way they collect and where they flow. Decisions were made to use multiple 

basins. Water and Roadway are citywide, so no matter where you are at in the city, your water Impact Fee is the same. Your 

Roadway Impact Fee is the same. The Wastewater is broken up into three separate phases. 

 

Councilmember Burke - We are close. In the price to control it.  

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Correct. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - You don't want to east side of town paying for the west side of town and visa 

versa when it's flowing. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - We have some slides that show 

comparisons to neighboring communities as well as what you are currently charging from an Impact Fee standpoint.  

 

 
 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - That fee got lowered in November. An amendment was adopted to the 

Roadway Impact Fee and lowered it by about 15% to $962. 

 

Councilmember Harrison - The comparison is for 2016. You don't know what the comparison is for 2016 for all of those other cities on 

that chart, right. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - The numbers for these cities on this chart 

are relatively recent. We pulled them for last year's (2016) 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Most of the cities on the chart i.e., Rowlett, 

Flower Mound, Frisco, McKinney and Denton - they are pretty recent. Those are the current rates they are adopting right 

now.  

 

Councilmember Harrison - So this is mostly what they are currently what they are charging. I didn't want to compare it to 2011. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - That is what they are charging now. A lot 

of them have done their updates in the late couple of years as well. 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - One thing that has changed since the last time this 

was done by Corinth is Denton, in 2011, did not have Roadway Impact Fees so there wasn't a comparison to your nearest 

neighbor. Now they do. 

 

13



Page 5 of 27 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - And Denton is charging $2,000. 

 

Councilmember Harrison - How about Lake Dallas? 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - They currently don't have Roadway Impact Fees  

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - We have another roadway example here. 

This one is for an example that would be an industrial development 100,000 sf. 

    
 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - Anthony added some more percentages in there to give you a birds -eye 

view of what 30% or a 45% would be. 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - One thing that is common that you may be 

questioning is a lot of cities will adopt 1% for residential and then maybe a different percentage for non -residential.  

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - As Fred mentioned we have some 

different indicators here. Some points of preference. 

 

Mayor Heidemann - Are those numbers that represent other cities current? 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Yes. Current. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - Those percentages is where we would land competitively with those 

other cities if we were to charge 30 or 45 or 60%. That is where we would land compared to the current rates the other cities  

are doing. So this gives you a good overview of where you may want to be competitive with the Impact Fees 

 

Mayor Heidemann - The comparison is though that you don't know what percentage McKinney is charging. You would assume that their 

maximum is greater than our $337,560, correct? 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Their maximum is larger than the $97,001. They 

are charging a lower percentage. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - We don't have what they are actually 

charging relative to their maximums. We just have what they actually charge. 

14



Page 6 of 27 

 

 

  
 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - For water, the city adopted and are 

charging the maximum.  

 

For wastewater, the city elected to adopt the maximum. You are currently collecting the maximum that you can collect.  

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - Just to give you a background, historically, water has never been below 

50%. It has always been 50% or more. 

 

Councilmember Burke - What's the policy reason, if there is one, for why people track the water at the 50% or above and depart from it 

on Roadway? 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - Mostly just comes to cost, I believe. I think the Roadway is such a big 

ticket item that it kind of scares people away. It's just expensive to build roads. 

 

Councilmember Burke - So it doesn't have to do with fund usage or TX DOT matching funds or anything like that? It's just the Roadway 

number gets scary. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - Whether you know how many new roads you are going to build or how 

many you are going to expand. There are a lot of factors that are in it, but a lot of it just comes to pure cost and how much the 

Council wants to pass on the developer vs. residents. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - We dealt with this before on this related topic with the Dallas office. The Roadway Impact Fees were a 

question of fairness. How much is that business responsible for the roads in Corinth? Whereas the water we know. He gets this water and 

the disposes it, so you know how much that is, but you don't ever know how much of a Roadway your customers are going to use. The 

Roadway is so much more difficult and it's always in court. There is always some developer suing some city over Roadway Impact Fees. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - We allow mechanism in the ordinance typically if they have an issue 

with it to prove that their generation doesn't live up to what the study says. They have to basically prove that something is  not 

right. 

 

Councilmember Burke - If we do 50% or less do we have to do any kind of rough analysis on that or are we exempted out of that? 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - That always exists from my understanding. 

 

Councilmember Burke - So you presume that you are probably roughly proportional if you 50% or less. 

15



Page 7 of 27 

 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - It does come in play if you did a rough proportionality issue you could 

give credit back to those Impact Fees. Say they built the max road width, they will get that credit within that Impact Fee. So 

that does factor into the equation when you are looking at building the roads. You get the credit if you actually build the 

ultimate roadway. 

 

Councilmember Burke - But there's nothing about the statutory scheme that exempts you of how to do that analysis. 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - The state law for proportionality excludes the 

limitations of 395. 

 

Councilmember Burke - So, it kind of gets us out of that trap. What we are doing when we evaluated development is not having to 

do a rough proportionality analysis and call them to come do it for us because we fit within the statutory scheme. There may 

be an appeal on it, but the presumption was done citywide. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - That is what actually kicked in Impact Fees back in the day because of 

the issues. That is what got the train rolling on this one. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Upcoming Steps: 

 

 Capital Improvements Advisory Committee on January 23
rd
 will be presented with the results of the Impact Fees and they'll have the 

opportunity to provide comments to Council. 

 On February 2, 1017, there will be a public hearing with Council. We will present the entire report for Council approval. 

 The Council will adopt an ordinance setting the new fees. This could happen at the February 2, 2017, public hearing or it could happen 

after, but the law does require that Council adopt a new ordinance and new rates within 30 days from the public hearing, is that right, Jeff? 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - 30 days from the public hearing is correct. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - One of the reasons we wanted to get feedback 

here and give you a little preview of how the fees were looking like they were going to end up was to answer any questions and get any 

initial feedback on where you might want the rates to be set or if you'd like more options when we come back with different percentages 

for the roadway or different percentages for water wastewater. Giving us and staff a little bit of direction on where you might want to go 

with those. 

 

Councilmember Harrison - When you review all these Impact Fees and you go back to look at the adopted 2011 fees, you'll notice that's 

pretty drastic reductions of those. It's because we were in the middle of a recession and we didn't get, but four houses around, we weren't 

getting a roadwork, so now we are in a whole different atmosphere and so then that is the questions you are going to have to discuss. Do 

you want to go low or do you want to go high or do you want to hit someplace in the middle? And that's kind of how we did it the last time. 

We figure we weren't getting any applications in. We weren't doing anything in the first place. So we were dropping it down where we 

thought it was reasonable and that is how that figure was established and I assume that is what we are going to do this time. I'd like to see 

more variables when you come back. Where would it be reasonable someplace there in the middle? That's what I would like to see. 

 

Mayor Heidemann - Lee Ann, Do we have different wastewater fees now? Do we charge differently in different parts of the city (Trinity 

East/Trinity West)? 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Are you talked Impact Fees or are you talking wastewater rates, like 

water/wastewater? For water wastewater, No. Like what we bill the individual residents on a monthly basis - it's the same 

regardless of where they are in the city. 

 

Councilmember Harrison - But that was determined by our water wastewater rate design study, right? 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Correct. Your rates are technically set to cover for your operational cost and 

your impact fees are recovered to cover your capital costs. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - One thing as we look forward to looking at this to decide where we want to go, when you see residential and 

you see that 2016 max accessible at 50% credit remember that $3,356 is passed through right straight to the new homeowner. Every 

builder knows that that passes right straight through just like it does with the water and wastewater. Depending on where you set your rate 

you can either dampen or you can increase your rate of development or you can either open throttle and it goes a lot faster or you slow it 

down. You can adjust your development rate.  

16



Page 8 of 27 

 

 

Whenever you start looking at retail, you'll see Lewisville doesn't charge anything. Lewisville's pretty well built out. They are not building 

too many new roadways related to their retail impact. Then you look at Frisco and you can see they charge $50,000. That is a pretty steep 

number. We are back there kind of in the middle. That's still a pretty steep number. That is a big factor for somebody who wants to build 

something. They come here wanting to build retail or a restaurant. They are looking at that $26,000 and there's other factors that go into that 

as you calculate your impact fees there's different types of operations have different rates of impact fees like gas stations get different rates 

over other things based on the number of trips especially on roadway. So it's a tool that can be used to either increase your development 

relative to your neighbors or decrease. That's why Denton started charging roadways. It's kind of interesting, Denton for years didn't have 

that roadway impact fee and now they are starting to charge. I wonder are they trying to slow things down or trying to catch up on the roads 

which is obvious to me that they are trying to catch up on the roads. We have to remember that directly affects what is going to show up on 

all of these undeveloped properties. 

 

Councilmember Garber - Quick follow up to Mr. Johnson. Mr. Alexander had recommendations maybe next time we come back to 

meet. 

 

Jason Alexander, Economic Development Director - Some of the smaller businesses have certainly looked at costs of 

building here in Corinth. I know that on the economic development side we can do some things through some incentives, but 

we also want to be mindful that we are not harming our infrastructure in the process. So there's a balance in that.  

 

Councilmember Garber - Who on this list, in your opinion, have we been directly competing with as far as economic development? I 

would assume Denton and Flower Mound. 

 

Jason Alexander, Economic Development Director - And Little Elm. 

 

Councilmember Garber - Are we competing with our current rates? 

 

Jason Alexander, Economic Development Director - That's difficult to assess just looking at those numbers. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - I can tell you that two of the most recent economic development projects that involve particular individual 

groups be it Ashton Gardens or Choice the hotel. One of the things that economic development did was to help them with their Impact 

Fees. 

 

Councilmember Glockel - This is the only slide, and I admit I don't fully understand the maximum accessible of the 50%, but this is the 

only slide I believe that the 2011 maximum accessible value at 50% is higher than the 2016. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Correct. I'll defer to Jeff because it has to do 

with traffic and some of the advancements from 2011 to 2016 as far as the studies say. 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Part of study as we mentioned there's a lot more 

land use types for roadway and for those land use types, we do an evaluation based on a model. The model we used in 2011 

was a DFW centric model. The model we used in 2016 was a North DFW/Denton/Corinth centric model. Some of the 

variables we put together affected those rates slightly and this happened to be one of those land uses wh ere the rates slightly 

went down. I would say this one took into account more focus in this area and the other more regional-wide. 

 

Councilmember Glockel - So it only affected the retail at 10,000 sf.? 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - It affected retail more than some of the other 

categories. It didn't affect the residential category. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - One thing to mention here is that Flower 

Mound was mentioned as one of the neighboring cities that we may compete with. A lot of these cities will adopt a different percentage for 

residential vs. non residential for various reasons. Flower Mound reduced non-residential to be more competitive they were comfortable 

having actual up a little higher. Right now I think Corinth's roadway fees are all set the same at 15% or some standard percentage of your 

maximum whether it's residential or non-residential, you are charging the same percentage. You may want to do the same thing. I'm just 

bringing that to your attention. That's what some of your surrounding communities are doing different. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - That's all based on Corinth being one service unit. The whole of Corinth is one service unit. One service area, 

whereas McKinney has at least four different service areas if I remember from the 2013 study. The Impact Fees a different based on where 

17



Page 9 of 27 

 

they are in the city. We talked in 2011 about adding more service areas - dividing our city up a little differently because we knew that that 

there was more of a need on the west side vs. the east side. This still represents Corinth as one service area. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - It does. Yes. Flower Mound has three 

service areas, Frisco has four. To try and put all of the service areas that every surrounding commun ity has then this list 

becomes indigestible so we try to simplify. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - So those are averages? 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - They are averages. McKinney's goes up to $3,200 

in some areas, but that his the average in McKinney and Frisco. That's the northern two growing service areas. They have two 

(2) high service areas and two small service areas.  

 

Councilmember Harrison - How difficult would it be to come back and discuss it? To take those - whoever we are in competition with 

around here i.e., Denton or Flower Mound and The Colony and bring out how many service areas they have and what the charges are so 

we can use those as a model to compare if we want to make a service area for the police station for example then we could establish a 

service area over there.  

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - Do you see any benefit of doing this, Jeff? 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - My suggestion on the roadway side goes down to 

what you adopt. If you adopt a lower rate like the $962 you have right now, the reason you'd like to have one service area is  

you can pull that money and build a project if you adopt a lower rate. If you split it up then you have to spend the money in 

the service area. Most cities for example, Mesquite used to have 11 service areas because they had them really small. The las t 

time they updated they went to three or four. They struggled getting enough money in the small service areas so they've been 

making service areas larger. Garland did the same. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - When you're eight square miles, it's a good size for a service area and 

you can't grow any further. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Another item on the roadway, the law 

limits the size of your service area so some cities are big enough and have to be broken up and that's maybe one of the 

reasons they do multiple service areas because they have to not because they see a strategic advantage. Some of them may do 

it for a strategic reason, but sometimes the law dictates you have to break it up because of the size of your city. 

 

Maybe if we can table the roadway flow that is usually a little more complex discussion . And get some feedback on water 

and wastewater. Currently the city is charging the maximum amount on water which is $1,441. The preliminary maximum 

that you would be able to charge with the 2016 study is $2,182. So with that being the new number, almost $2,200 is the 

approach to charge that maximum - to come back with a percentage of that maximum and not go all the way to $2,200. 

 

Councilmember Garber - Lee Ann, do you remember the average cost of the home when we adopted these back in 2011? 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - We are at 211 right now, I'm going to say we were somewhere around 180-

185 is what I was thinking. 

 

Councilmember Burke - What's the average cost of new construction? 

 

Councilmember Garber - I think that's the essence to my question. The homes we were building in Corinth back then were probably 

around the 180 mark and now if we are trying to find a place in Corinth homes that are at least 300+ - the ones I can remember and see. 

Am I incorrect about that? I think the percentage of these new water and including the roadway impact may be an equal if not less 

percentage of the overall value of the home by the time it's done. And I would be interested in that. What percentages of the $2,200 is that 

of what's due to be built? It looks like $700 more, but the value of the homes have also gone up quite a bit so the percentage of that may not 

be a shocker. Plus Denton is up. You look at those things on both those deals and I feel on that residential side we are still under. I 

personally feel on some of those on the economic development side unless we have a way to mitigate that, in some cases we may be a little 

over priced on some of the industrial and retail. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - Lake Dallas, Hickory Creek and Shady Shores - that is directly across 

the street from Corinth so they give you and idea where they land on their Impact Fees and water.  

 

18



Page 10 of 27 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Councilmember Garber, I don't have the 2011, I have some analysis on the 

website that I just found in 2012, it was $180,000 and I don't think it changed too much from 2011 to 2012 and our 2016 was 

$229,000. 

 

Councilmember Garber - Do we have homes that are currently being built that are much under $300,000 at this point?  

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - No. They are averaging now between $300,000 and $500,000, that's all 

the new the new subdivisions. 

 

Councilmember Garber - So, I don't think this is going to be a huge issue at $300,000 to $500,000. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - The price of land has driven the price of property. 

 

Councilmember Harrison - Lake City municipal utility district is $4,257. If you build in Lake Dallas that is what you're going pay. And 

in Hickory Creek, that's what they are paying and Shady Shores as far as water. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Because they have a lot of capital and a lot of old pipes that need to be 

redone. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - I am comfortable with that max number especially on the water and wastewater side. I don't have a problem 

with that at all. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - You're kind of right in the middle. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - Yes. We're kind of right in the middle. 

 

Councilmember Garber - What if we try to lay in close to the same dollar amount $2,000 - $2,100? That puts us real close to where 

Denton is at. And that still is an increase from where we are at. 

 

Councilmember Burke - So Denton, The Colony, Little Elm . . . if we were at $2,000 no one would be choosing to go there based on 

cost. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - So residential will then be about 40% of the maximum. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - It's actually 60% of the 50%. Because that $962 is actually 30% of your 

max and if you stayed with that percentage at 30% you would be right at $1,006, but the $2,000 is right at 60% or 59%. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - For single family dwelling units whether it 

is a 1,500 square foot house or a 5,000 square foot house they all pay the same. The cost of the house, the square footage of 

the house doesn't factor in of the amount of Impact Fees. 

 

Councilmember Burke - The higher you go they are probably going to have to build a bigger house just theoretically to recover the cost, 

some of these costs.  

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - There is a different category for town homes and 

condos. It would be a little bit lower. 

 

Councilmember Burke - Start at $2,000. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - Yes. 

 

Councilmember Garber - Yes. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - And this is Roadway? 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - And you said that is around 60% of the 

calculated maximum here? So 60% of $3,356. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - Yes. Puts you at about $2,000. Pretty close 

19



Page 11 of 27 

 

 

Councilmember Garber - It is $2,013. So if we can round it to an even number that would better. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - Round it to $2,100. 

 

Councilmember Glockel - Mayor if I could, I have a little heartburn with this whole thing. Not the concept and not the numbers, but the 

timing. I think we just went through the whole process and hired a city manager and tonight there are two things on the agenda in a special 

workshop three weeks before he gets here that we are going to make these decisions without any of his input. And then if we're going to 

follow this schedule we're going to put this on a public hearing on the 2
nd

. Which virtually gives him no input whatsoever because he's not 

going to be here until after the 2
nd

. If we make suggestions tonight, since this is a workshop, I guess we really can't do anything other than 

just kick it around. Is that true? 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Correct 

 

Councilmember Glockel - It's a workshop and I would say if everybody feels good about numbers, I would still request that we don't 

schedule a public hearing until after the city manager is on board so that he has some input in this because of the 30 day window that we 

have to vote on. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - I know there is time constraints that we have, correct? That it has to be 

done, so I will let you comment on that. I know that I did speak with Mr. Hart about both of these items today and we 

actually have a conference call scheduled next week to discuss them as well. So we've been in communication on all of the 

items that are going before Council and I know that he had planned on visiting with the Mayor as well. But tonight, you are 

correct, it is just a discussion item. There is no action item. And as far as if that can be pushed back, I will leave that t o you. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Currently we have a public hearing 

scheduled for February 2
nd

. You may remember in December there was a Council item that set up the public hearing for 

February 2
nd

. The city has to advertise that public hearing for 30 days so there's been a process in place the law stipulates to 

go through it. If we were to delay the public hearing we would just go through those steps again. I know Fred talked with the  

attorney and while we are outside of that five year window, but s ince we are in the process the attorney said "I'm comfortable 

with we're meeting the spirit of the law." I think he said he didn't want to push this too much further than where we are at.  He 

may have been comfortable delaying a little bit. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - There's no action items that have to be made on February 2
nd

. It's just the 

public hearing that has to be held on February 2
nd

 and so then we could have the public hearing and then have the action item 

at a time when the city manager will be in place as long as it's within 30 days of February 2
nd

 so by March 2
nd

. 

 

Councilmember Glockel - Then my next question and follow on that same question is you said, I think, that the public hearing had to be 

publicized for at least 30 days so it's being publicized right now that we have a public hearing? The public notice is out? 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Yes. It got advertised on the 28
th

. Right 

after Christmas it was advertised in the paper. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - We have reports that they can come in and look at during that public 

process. 

 

Mayor Heidemann - But there's not action that has to be taken on the 2
nd

? 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - No. And we can definitely move that back and as I mentioned, Mr. Hart and 

I talked on it briefly today and we scheduled some time next week to go over it. 

 

Councilmember Harrison - Would you go over the procedure if you collect Impact Fees and then you have a certain time when you must 

do the project that you collect that impact. Would somebody go over that process? 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - I'll speak to water and wastewater and Jeff 

can speak to roadway because the law is a little bit different on what you are required to do. For water and wastewater, the 

law stipulates, say someone wants to come in and develop in an area where it's not currently serviced and they come in with a 

plat and they plat it and they side plan it and the city says OK you can come in we want to collect Impact Fees. That then 

obligates you to provide service within a certain time frame. There's another stipulation to that. You have to provide service 

for someone who comes in. Also, if you are collecting Impact Fees you have to spend them within ten years of when you 

20



Page 12 of 27 

 

collect them. So, if you collected Impact Fees, but you never built projects and you didn't spend it and the ten years are lapsed 

then you would be subject to refunding those Impact Fees. That's consistent for water and roadway and wastewater. Right, 

Jeff? 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - There's no commitment to build on the roadway 

side, it's a commitment to spend the money you are collecting in a certain amount of time. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Water and wastewater, there's a 

commitment to build. If someone comes in and you collect a fee you have to provide service within two or three years it 

stipulates. Roadway doesn't have the same requirement if you charge and impact fee, you don't have to build.  

 

Councilmember Harrison - That's good. Thank you. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - I think that one thing at the February 2
nd

 

meeting that we would want to know is if that 30 days will be sufficient for the new city manager to give his input and then 

bring back and ordinance. Then we would close the public hearing and we would look to Council to accept the report. If we 

think 30 days may not be enough for him to give input or digest the information, we would look to leave the public hearing 

open from that meeting and then that 30 day time frame doesn't start because that public hearing has not  yet been closed. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - It looks like we will come back with an ordinance on the 23
rd

 or 2
nd

 of 

March. That was kind of the way the time was going to put us. 

 

Councilmember Glockel - If you close the meeting on the 2
nd

, you can't change anything from that point on. 30 days later you have to 

accept it or deny it. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - You can't change anything with our report. 

In the report it's just calculations and running through numbers that calculate the maximum. So while the city manager may 

have comments on that, it's pretty cut at dry. These projects have to be built and this is the cost so this is the maximum. You 

don't have to commit to an adoption rate on the 2
nd

. What you chose to adopt can be whatever you decide and staff would 

come back with an ordinance that matches those numbers.  

 

Councilmember Glockel - So we don't have to tell public hearing what the numbers are and stick with those numbers if we close the 

public hearing? 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - No. If you close the public hearing you 

would have to accept our report and say this appears to be in compliance with 395 and we agree with the calculation s, but 

you don't have to set fees at that meeting. You can if you're ready and staff has the ordinance. You can then adopt whatever 

rates you chose to adopt relative to the max. Or you can chose to adopt those rates any time up until 30 days after the public 

hearing. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - You'll actually set the rate with the new ordinance whether it's on the 

23
rd

 or the 2
nd

 or whenever that is. You don't have to adopt the rate that you had the public hearing on is basically what I'm 

hearing. 

 

Councilmember Glockel - That makes no sense to me, if I come in at the public hearing and I come in as a citizen and I raise hell and I 

say I want to stick with the $2,000 on the roadway, then the public hearing is closed, then 30 days later we can change that without another 

public hearing? 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - At the public hearing, what we are going 

to present and what we'll focus on if we're not ready to adopt, is we'll just focus on th e calculated maximums. We'll present 

the land use assumptions, the capital plans, the projects we've identified and we'll present the calculations that generated the 

maximum numbers that will be in the report. We don't have to speak at all. We've added the  discussion items here that lead to 

possible adoption rates. That discussion doesn't have to happen in the public hearing necessarily. Unless you think you are 

going to be ready to adopt then we can go down the road of these percentages to get there. Yes. If you have the big discussion 

that looks like you are about to adopt a certain percentage, and then you said we are going to wait and then you come back 

with something different, it could undermine someone that was there that participated and thought that  you were going to set 

it at say $2,000 and then you changed it in 30 days. But the purpose of the public hearing is for us to present the maximums 

to Council and to get Council approval on the reports. 

 

21



Page 13 of 27 

 

Councilmember Glockel - If we approve something less than that within the 30 days then we are legal? 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Yes. If you adopt a collection rate less 

than that, then yes, you are within the law. 

 

Councilmember Glockel - Ok. Thank you. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - We have roadway at 21, water at 50, wastewater, I know we haven't 

closed that one yet. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - Yes. I'm comfortable with that because I think that wastewater is going to be one of our most expensive items 

going forward. We know that Upper Trinity doesn't have near enough capacity in the plan over here then Lake Dallas to handle our 

growth. We already know that. We are going to have money from somewhere to make that plan bigger. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - I hate to be the dead horse on the roadway piece, but I want to see if 

Anthony and Jeff can help me out here, these are 2016 rates and there's already a 2011 rate that we are assessing that's 

different so anything that was platted within that 2011 can get charged the 2011 rate and then everything is platted in 2004 is 

getting charged that rate. I want to let Council know that these rates are different. Now Council has the ability to amend those 

to charge one rate for all of those subsequent years that you charged an Impact Fee. I want to throw that out there to Council 

that currently you will be charging three different rates depending on when the property was platted. 

 

Councilmember Garber - Can we bring that up again? That would be an interesting thing to discuss. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - Ok. Sure. All of those 2011 rates is what is being charged. So this 

ordinance doesn't get rid of everything that was platted in 2011. Just from the adoption platted until today.  

 

Councilmember Garber - But that can happen after we adopt a rate? 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - Later on when we adopt it in March or whenever that date is. 

 

Councilmember Burke - Assuming you develop within time frames don't expire, I would assume, but I could be wrong. 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - I'll leave that up to the City Attorney. If you chose 

to change the 2011, through an ordinance, you can bring that up to $2,100 as well. Because it's still below. 

 

Councilmember Garber - I just want to make sure before we move on, Fred, that the ordinance to level out the fees can happen after we 

adopt this new fee, right? So that's a separate issue. 

 

Jeff Whitacre, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - You can change the ordinance fees at pretty much 

any time. 

 

Councilmember Garber - So adopt a new fee and then we'll address the other issues. 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - That's currently what we have in place. Or what we could have in place 

in the future. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - To that point, one of the biggest pieces of platting property that we've got that nothing has happened on is the 

HEB property. They platted all of theirs correct? So their Impact Fees were based on 2011 or was it before 2011? 

 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - Most likely they will have to come and re-plat. Then they'll kick in the 

new fees. So it depends on when you platted when the fee is assessed. 

 

Anthony Samarripas, Project Manager at Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - We have what we need. Thank you for 

your time. 

 

Mayor Heidemann recessed the meeting at 6:45 pm 

 

Mayor Heidemann reconvened the meeting at 6:50 pm 

 

22



Page 14 of 27 

 

BUSINESS AGENDA: 

 

2. Hold a discussion and give staff direction regarding the findings of the 2016 Compensation Study. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Thank you, Mayor. In July 2016, we presented the findings of internal 

compensation study that had been conducted by the human resources department. At that time Council took no action and we 

continued with our budget process and only included compensation or step increases for those police officers and firemen 

that were eligible for steps. Since that time we had a request from Councilmember Johnson to place it on the agenda tonight 

for further discussions with Council. We don't have any new information so to speak, but Guadalupe Ruiz, Director of 

Human Resources, will briefly go over what we presented in July. But before we do so I will see if Councilmember Johnson 

has any comments to add before Guadalupe starts her presentation. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - Whenever we looked at this back in July, our financial situation was a bit more tight based on things related to 

contracts outside and we didn't really have a good projection or clear picture of exactly where we would be or where we are going and how 

everything would settle up since October would make a difference on where we are today. I wanted to bring this back and have a look at 

this now because our financial situation has improved considerably and whenever we look at the numbers you can kind of see where we 

are now in a position that we can help the employees out on the compensation side. Whereas we really couldn't and be comfortable within 

the tax rate, where we were at that time. And I think as we work through this we will also have the opportunity to make some decisions 

based on capital plans and spending more cutting tax rate and still being able to make our compensation study going forth with much better 

projections, much more refined. This is why I wanted to bring this back and see what we could do with helping our employees.  

 

One of the ones we drastically need help is in public safety and I know both chiefs are here tonight and they can kind of tell you that being 

here at the Corinth Police Department and how far down they are and how much it costs to train a new employee and how much we've 

wasted and have to start over again. The fire department is in the same situation. In fact the fire department is making more than the police 

department. Not by much, but just a little more based on where we are on our ability to compete and get quality good help.  

 

To me one of the biggest things that city provides is public safety. Police and fire. They get thrown to the water. Everybody likes five 

things. They like to be able to turn the water on and it comes on. They like to flush the toilet and it goes away. They like to be able to have a 

nice road to drive on. And they like to be able to call the police department and have them show up in reasonable minutes and they like not 

having to have their house burn down before the fire department gets there. A lot of those things are factors of personnel and because of 

that you have to be able to pay them in order to keep them and keep them trained so we can get to that point. We are looking at coming up 

on March 1
st
 is our half way through the budget year and that would be a good even time to start looking at the possibility to go forward 

with a compensation increase package. 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - Thank you. I will go back and recap the presentation that we discussed 

mid-year. January 21
st

 was the first time I presented to ask direction from the Council on what we wanted to do. At the time 

the direction was to have the HR Department complete the study, instead of going to an outside vendor based on what learned 

in 2013 from Ray Associates, Inc. The direction was to use the market cities that we used back in 2013. That is what we did 

and also if we wanted to be in the same market or lead the market. The decision was to be in the same position. In the review 

committee was the directors and the two chiefs. Then in July 2016, when we presented, there were questions about the factors 

that were used for the other cities . No action was taken at the time.  

 

23



Page 15 of 27 

 

 
 

To give a little bit of background when it comes to the salaries , as mentioned in 2013, we adopted the recommendation from 

Ray Associates, Inc. in October. Also, February/March we had adjustments  to help with the compression. The 

recommendation at the time was to give a cost of living, but we were not in a position to do that. So it was not done. In 2014, 

2015 and 2016, we had merit increases at 3% average progressions for those on One Step Higher and for those that were at 

the max of the step to get a lump sum. During this year, there were no adjustments to the pay schedule. In 2016/2017, which 

is this fiscal year, there were no merit increases for general government employees. There was a progression of One Step 

Higher for those that had the opportunity to still move within their pay grade. There was nothing for those that were maxed 

(or lump sum like we had in the past). 

 

 
 

This is going back to the cities that were selected in 2013. Those were the factors. After the presentation in July 2016, I 

emailed what had been considered. I have it with me if anyone wants to review it again.  

 

24



Page 16 of 27 

 

 
 

The findings from the HR Department back in July 2016, in the case of the fire department, when you look at the current pay 

schedule that they have and you look at the ranges. We compared to the market and we were to establish a new schedule 

based on the market. We would say that the minimum of the market needs a 5.9% increase and the maximum of the market 

would be at a 12.3% increase in the case of the firefighter/paramedic. 

 

 
 

 

Then you have the rest of the results for the other positions. It's important to know that these numbers have not been updated 

since July 2016, so the market that was considered have provided other increases already, maybe not all of them, maybe 

some of them and maybe some have new schedules. This is based on information that was presented in July of 2016.  

 

In July 2016, we had this number, $158,888. This is an updated number $132,301 or in this case for Fire Department. It 

would have cost us to have these schedules and our employees at the middle of the market. In the case of Police, it would be 

$142,785 to get them to the middle of the market. Please note that this implementation cost represented here does not 

contemplate progression within this step. So that means that the people that actually progress this fiscal year, that money that 

they received is going to be offsetting the new placement that we are going to have. So if someone is going to get $2, but th ey 

already got the $1, then they are only going to receive the difference. 

 

25



Page 17 of 27 

 

 
 

Mayor Heidemann - When you talking about the $158,888, who does that include? Does that include all of supervision? Supervision is 

not included. 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - These numbers include public safety employees that are on the pay 

schedule. Police and Fire has a separate pay schedule. Some of the supervision is included. In this case the Fire Captain is on 

the pay scheduled. For Police, starting at Corporal these are supervision positions. The ones you will not see here from the 

fire department is Deputy and Chief and for Police the Assistant Chief and the Chief. They are on the general government 

schedule. 

 

These were the numbers we provided before, but since they already had progressions, this is the difference that is needed to 

get them where they need to be. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - As you talk about implementation costs, does that contemplate progression within the range. Does that also 

affect someone that has moved up on the step, the whole schedule moves forward then they might come down a step. Because of how they 

were paid or how they are going to be paid on the schedule. 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - Correct. Right because it's going to be sticking the money not so much the 

number on the steps for example, everybody that is maxed that did not receive an increase in October those people, I have 

someone who is on step eight. The calculation considers that that individual is going to go to the same number, the same step 

eight that is on the new schedule. However, someone that was not on step eight as of October 1
st

, but moved to step eight 

since I'm going to consider that increase based on the proposal that is presented today, that person I'm go ing to place it on 

step seven of the new schedule. So they will still get an increase, but it's offsetting the money that was provided already in 

October. So, it's going back to do what was intended in October. All of those individuals have an additional - even when the 

number may look like they are going to a lower step because the schedule is the new schedule they are all getting an increase . 

At that point everybody is ready to be progressive within the plan. For that I don't think there were funds availa ble to do that. 

 

Councilmember Burke - This is for your implementation study in March? 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - Yes. I will cover general government. At the time I presented, I only had these 

seven positions. Now we have some changes. As we all know there were three positions that were eliminated. The reason that we are 

getting the new numbers, I need to add them because these people that I had here after I presented, people left and I went ahead and put the 

number back to the minimum of the pay. Now I need the money again. This way I'll represent to you everybody the only people that will 

be receiving any adjustment in the general government side.  

 

26



Page 18 of 27 

 

 
 

This is the cost for police and fire. If it starts in March, this is the cost for police and fire and here's the split of the money. When we are 

talking about the general fund, this number includes that $8,300 for the crime control. Not all of this is general fund. When it comes to the 

general government pay schedule, if we were to reallocate the job classes in the current general government schedule, they would have a 

shift of 2%, then only those individuals that are under the new minimum will receive any adjustment. Are any questions about this? 

 

Councilmember Burke - General government employees, what I thought I heard was that we are not giving anybody a raise, but bringing 

people up who are below the minimum and no raises. Is that correct? 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - Correct. 

 

Councilmember Burke - On the police and fire we are raising their salaries or compensation to get them to the middle of the market. 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - Yes. 

 

Councilmember Burke - We are not trying to do that on the general government side. 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - We are not moving people all the way to the middle. We are dealing with a 

schedule. I am only paying attention to those that are falling after I place them below the minimum. 

 

Councilmember Burke - It's hard for me to understand to be honest with you. 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - Yes. And I totally understand. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - There's two different methodologies. When you do compensation for us 

general government employees we don't have defined steps where we progress. You have a range. You get hired in and you 

get hired in at a minimum or above depending on qualifications and so forth. When they do compensation studies as in you 

come in and you say that market is $50,000, well as long as your compensation is within that market range then it is stating 

that you are within market. Because you have met that pay range that falls within that market for your general government 

employees. Now, for your police and fire those are more specific. They don't have ranges. They have steps and they have to 

be placed in progress through the steps. Typically we know when an officer for us, when we hire them in, they would be 

hired in at step one. 

 

Councilmember Burke - Is that based on seniority and training. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Yes. Every year they do evaluations and if they merit , they move to the next 

step and progress on those steps. When we do compensation studies , you still have a beginning salary and you still have an 

ending salary, but it gets more complex. You can't just say, hey you're within a range, we are going to leave you alone. You 

have to move them to the next step because they can't lie within a step. So if a step is $20 and the next step is $25 and they 

are making $23 you can't leave them at $23. You've got to move them up because now it changes and now you have people 

27



Page 19 of 27 

 

that aren't on the defined steps. Where in ranges you don't have those defined steps. You can be anywhere between the first 

dollar on that range the last dollar on that range. Does that make a little bit more sense?  

 

Councilmember Burke - A little bit. I assume that has something to do with the contracts that have been negotiated with them?  

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - There's no contracts. 

 

Councilmember - It's employee by employee. Is there some kind of regulatory overlay that requires you to do that? 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Your Council can establish this. We have 3% steps. When you do market 

studies for the Council to determine how much you want between each step. Do you want it to be a 2% between step 1, 2 and 

3 or 5% or whatever the percentage - that is up to the governing body. You can't have employees that fall within, they have to 

be on a defined step. 

 

Councilmember Burke - So there are some rules that are imposed upon us that require us to define steps and so we have to work within 

that framework for how we pay them. Our flexibility about when we bump people up is limited by that framework. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Right. If you have people that are off on those steps in police and fire it's 

going to cause a lot of problems. 

 

Councilmember Burke - Is that a problem like a morale problem?  

 

Fire Chief Curtis Birt - When you have steps, pretty much what the steps are for public safety is industry standard. Pretty much every 

police and fire department you look at, the firefighters and police are going to be on steps. Usually the way it is the starting firemen in this 

area make step one I've seen anywhere from three steps to ten or twelve steps. And then every year if you are good standing and do certain 

things you pass your performance evaluation you go to the next step. If you take the top and the bottom you guess what you divide by how 

many steps you have that's your step progression right there. So 90% of the time a five year guy here is in step five and then when he 

promotes in our city, he goes to wherever the driver is next promotion you go into that step plan, but he would go to 5% above whatever 

the hourly rate is he was as a fireman. His promotional rate is 5% above where he was. 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - If we were to go with what you are saying then we would be steps to a range.  

 

Councilmember Burke - I'm not talking about anything, I'm just trying to understand.  

 

Fire Chief Curtis Birt - Pretty much police and fire throughout the nation are on steps. It just depends on how many steps you want to use 

to get them from starting pay to top pay.  

 

Assistant Chief of Police Greg Wilkerson - And you hit the nail on the head when you talked about experience. I believe that past history 

will show that municipalities went for those step programs, they didn't want to pay a tenured officers salary to a rookie who doesn't know 

what he's doing out there on the streets. In order to bring them in at what's a fair market rate based on that experience, you are going to start 

out as a step one (1). We will see different agencies come in and whether its promotions or laterals, you pay for that experience. We are 

going to take a green person and stick them in step one and let them progress from those steps. As we invest more money in them and 

training they have more experience they become more valuable to us and with that value becomes the need to pay them more. 

 

Councilmember Burke - That makes sense.  

 

Fire Chief Curtis Birt - Most of what it does is it started from collective bargaining and collective bargaining in union states. An industry 

standard for us. 

 

Councilmember Burke - It sounds like that. This really ridged structure without a reason behind it. 

 

Fire Chief Curtis Birt - When we lost our step program, Lee Anna and Guadalupe worked really hard when we decompressed. Both of 

us had four to five year tenured guys here that were stuck in step one with a brand new rookie. So part of the decompression was going, hey 

this guy has been here for five years and put five years worth of work here and he's still making what a rookie is making, we've got to fix 

this. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Also, you were talking about contract negotiations. Those are done with 

agencies that are civil service, like Denton is a civil service organization and we're not. For them they do have collective 

28



Page 20 of 27 

 

bargaining, they do have contracts that they get into discussions with the Council on an annual basis that defines what that 

pay is and we don't have that. 

 

Councilmember Burke - Well that's what the terminology sounds like. 

 

Fire Chief Curtis Birt - What you are seeing right now is because there is such a shortage of police and fire is you're seeing cities cut the 

amount of steps. You get it quicker and it's a very big incentive to hire to get employees to apply. 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - Actually, we see more steps now on the bottom for police and fire, we are seeing it 

more, because we want to make sure individuals stay and not go somewhere else. They have an opportunity, even if they don't promote, to 

stay with us. 

 

 
 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Once Guadalupe determined the cost to implement the plan. I want to walk 

through this forecast to see where we are currently financially. Right now for the current budget year 2016-17, we have that 

our revenues will exceed our expenditures about $594,000. If you'll remember we adopted a tax rate that was higher than 

what we needed by about $628-$650 thousand dollars because at the time that we adopted it we were unsure about the fire 

contracts. We built that in so that the following year should those contracts terminate we would have that ongoing revenue to  

be able to support us taking over those additional salaries of the revenues that we were going to lose. We did add the three 

firefighters and we have that incorporated in our estimate in October. We also reduced three positions in the parks departmen t 

as well. That is the net of that. This current year, we perceive that we will be putting in at least close to $600,000 revenues 

over expenditures. 

 

I want to focus on 2017-18, I put two scenarios together. One at a 4% increase and one at an 8% increase. The 4% estimate, 

historically even when our economy was down, kind of like a roller coaster, we always maintained somewhere around 3.5% 

average. I feel comfortable that looking forward that if things bottom out on average, we are probably going to hit about 4%.  

Because that is historically what we have done. The last three years we have hit close  to 8% so I showed both scenarios here. 

To me an 8% is still conservative. In my projections, Chris and I went through all of her expenditures just very roughly for 

the out years, these numbers do not include (other than our steps) any type of wage increas es for our employees. We did not 

make that assumption that is the decision that Council will make from a year to year basis. What we have factored in on those 

expenditures is benefits because your benefits are always those that are very volatile and the biggest one for us is health 

insurance. What we factored in was a 30% increase in health insurance. Last year we were at about 39% and I'm sure many 

of you have been listening to the news that the senate was discussing repealing Obamacare and they don't know what's going 

to happen to premiums and what's going to replace it. That causes some volatility in that market. We went out early in the 

market and we typically get a few better rates. I think our loss factor is still high. We will receive some type of adjustment 

probably an increase in health insurance for that. We are still too early on for our health benefits consultant to give us any 

type of estimates or projections on health insurance. Just know we built in 30% and last year was the only year we went 39% 

prior to that we were hitting a negative. Last year our benefits consultant said that we had one or two cases. If those hadn' t 

been there we would have actually had a negative amount on our increases. Actually, we would have had a decrease in our 

health insurance rates. That is just an assumption that I have made on those. We've also gone in and made some assumptions 

on some of the other benefits as well following trends that we've had in the past years. On our revenues sales tax, last year we 

finished at almost a 9-10% increase over budget. Currently we are still continuing an upward trend which still astonishes me 

that we are trending upward. I still try to be very conservative when I'm doing projections like this and to make sure I only  

29



Page 21 of 27 

 

did a 4% increase on that. Which is close to $50,000. Everything else is running pretty stable. Our revenues don't fluctuate 

very much aside from property tax and sales tax. And our biggest fluctuation is, as I mentioned, is health insurance.  

 

Our expenditure cost for the new public safety facility, we actually put that into the budget this year - water, electric, 

wastewater and so forth. Those costs will carry over. I don't foresee any additional operational costs for the joint public s afety 

facility. When the new firehouse is put in place, as far as electrical and so forth, the electrical money that Chief Birt has right 

now for headquarters at Garrison would cover those electrical costs for the new fire station. This does not include any type of 

staffing, options for the new firehouse. That is one of the big decisions that Council will be making once that comes up 

midway of next year. When you look at the assumptions that I have that I know of right now, for next year when you look at 

just those basic revenues and expenditures, we have an excess that the Council would have about $355,000 if we had a 4% 

increase in AV value. If you had an 8% increase in AV value you would have an excess of about $674,000. With that you 

would be able to increase your expenditures or cut your tax rate. And then again as you move, I was conservative in the out 

years and left it at the 4%.  

 

Now the other thing that I wanted to mention is that this is talking just about your operating side of your tax rate. On your  

debt side of your tax rate at 4% AV value, you have an excess of 2.5 cents in property tax that equates to $467,000 in 

revenue. Basically you can cut 2.5 cents on your debt side or you can leave it in and issue up to $5 million dollars worth of  

debt. On an 8% increase in AV value it would be about a 2.9 cent tax rate that you can eliminate, issue debt or rotate any of it 

to your operational side if you needed it. The 2.9 cents is equal to $563,000 or about $6 million in debt. That is for 2017/18. 

If we progress at 4%, you will still have an opportunity in 2020-21 for an additional 2 cents at that point as well because we 

have a lot of debt that is actually maturing over the next few years. If you have projects at that point and want to reduce t he 

tax rate or we have new firefighters coming on line for the new station or so forth, there will be some other tax options that 

the Council will have to make those decisions.  

 

When Guadalupe was presenting the cost, Councilman Burke mentioned what the total cost would be if we implemented this 

proposed compensation as of March 1
st

. The full year implementation is $297,000 for a full twelve months. For March 1
st

 

through September in the current year, it would be $173,000 to implement that. Again, as I mentioned, currently we have 

$594,810. If you transfer that $173,000 into next year, you would still probably have over half at a 4% increase in the AV 

value. You would have quite a bit more if we have somewhere around 8%. 

 

 
 

Mayor Heidemann - Just looking at $173,000, who's actually going to get the increases? 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - 95% of it will be your police and fireman, not administrative. From the 

lieutenant down on the police side and from the captain down on the fire side. On your general government side it would 

mostly be your maintenance workers. I think we have 13 maintenance workers. 

 

Mayor Heidemann - That's 2%? 

 

30



Page 22 of 27 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - No. It depends because on some of them they may fall a little bit further 

below minimum. 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - It would be 13 maintenance workers. For our summer camp we only have them for 

eight weeks or a little more. Then one (1) employee. Those are the individuals. I have only one of those positions. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - When we look at salaries you want to commit those only if you have 

ongoing revenues that you are going to have from year to year. You're talking about the public safety facility. Those funds 

would come out of your fund balance. One time money that  you can put into a project. That project or any project.  

 

Councilmember Burke - What you're showing us there are annual revenues. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Correct. Our target for general fund is 20% of your budgeted expenditures. 

For 2016-17, you have $1.2 million in fund balance above and beyond what you need based on our policies and for 2017-18, 

it would be about $1.3 million. Those are funds that you can use for one time projects.  

 

Revenues over expenditures is what you can commit to ongoing expenditures. An expenditure that you are going to have 

from year to year.  

 

Mayor Heidemann - How about if we gave this increase, the $173 are we able to pass this on in our fire contract? 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - At this point, no.  

 

Mayor Heidemann - So the City of Corinth will just have to eat it? 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Yes. Until your next negotiations. 

 

One thing I consider the big ticket item that we have that will be facing this Council is the decision on how you want to staff 

station three. One of the things that we talked about in the past is we have the Safer Grant that will pay 100%. 

 

Fire Chief Curtis Birt - It is set up right now. They pay 100% for two years. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - 100% for two years. At the point the decision is made, we would apply for 

that to get funding for however many the Council will want at six or twelve. That would probably buy you a couple of years. 

The other thing is once the new census numbers come out, there is the fire district sales tax where you can repeal your street 

improvement sales tax and actually go to your voters to do the fire district which would generate about $6 or $7 hundred 

thousand dollars that could be attributed solely to the police department. We only missed it by that one criteria and that wa s 

the population in Denton County. We missed it like by $20,000. That was based on the census that was done ten  years ago. 

When that is refined in 2020 that falls right in line at the time that your four years on your street maintenance sales tax will be  

up and so at that point you will have those funds to offset any increases in your firemen as well. Assuming that is passed by  

your voters because that will have to go before your voters. 

 

Councilmember Glockel - I'm not sure if I understood the answer you gave to the mayor. We're talking about the $173,000. If you 

approve that, that I understand will not be in the fire contract because that is in this year and it's an existing contract, but the next five years 

that we just negotiated, are there any steps in that? 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - We did calculate steps. Yes. I didn't calculate that we were going to be 

shifting a pay plan and steps, but I did factor in steps. 

 

Councilmember Garber - So the shifting in the pay plan is not included in the contract, but the steps are. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - When we did the analysis, I assume our current staffing was progressing 

through the steps. After two or three years most of them would have been topped out. It factors in that top out rate with the  

turnover that we've had of s ix or seven officers that we had some higher paid officers that I had calculated in those contracts. 

Now we are hiring them back in as the minimum. That all factors in the calculations as well. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - You recognize salary savings. Whatever that number is for your tenured officer and your junior officer. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Correct. 

31



Page 23 of 27 

 

 

Councilmember Glockel - So in the 2017-18 you just talked about the three new firemen that were coming in on the 2016-17 budget. It's 

been talked about since day one that hopefully we can get the grant. If they don't get the grant then their cost is going to follow that 

expenditure line, right? And the $355 is going to drop quite a bit. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - No. For the three firemen we did not apply for the grant and we do not plan 

on applying for the grants . The cost for those three firemen. That $229,000 annual for those three are included throughout the 

projection for each year. With the grant you typically you apply one time and we didn't want to use it for three firemen, we 

wanted to use it for the six or twelve that you may hire to staff station six because that is going to benefit us more - 100% of 

that for a million dollars vs. $229,000. We factored in the three firefighters on an annual. That grant will be for any new ones 

that we decide to move forward with for station three. That make sense? 

 

Councilmember Glockel - For the new fire station, none of the employees that will man that are in any of the budget numbers? It's on the 

screen though? 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Correct. Twelve will be about $1,000,053. Six will be 1.2 million once they 

are brought on at 100% of the cost. You can forego that for two years if we got all of them on the Safer Grant.  

 

Mayor Heidemann - How about equipment?  

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - It depends, again, on what the Council wants. We have a reserve engine. 

Those are discussions that Council needs to make decisions on. On what you want in that facility . 

 

Mayor Heidemann - Any other questions? 

 

Councilmember Garber - Real quick, from our two leaders from police and fire. How much of past turnover or expected potential 

turnover has there been due to them able to go to Coppell and find higher paying jobs? And I use Coppell as an example because I have a 

friend that is an officer there and he teased me recently that they were pulling some of our officers and related specifically because of pay it 

was nothing else. 

 

Assistant Chief of Police Greg Wilkerson - You are exactly correct. The numbers again, I am absorbing a lot of the information that is 

coming in and as of recent I know we've lost officers in the last year, some of those to Coppell. We just recently lost one to Dallas County, 

the district attorney's office because of money, one of my lead detectives. I just lost my second lead detective today to child protective 

services - again another $12 to $15,000 increase. I will say that there are probably 20% or 30% of those that may have not made training or 

wasn't a fit for the city or was a disciplinary issue let's say without having all the facts in front of me right now. It would be safe to say that 

50% or around that part have left because of the money. Unlike these larger agencies, we don't have specialized units. Our traffic 

equipment and both motorcycles are sitting right now collecting dust in the shed. We are cranking them on a weekly basis trying to keep 

them ready to go until we can staff that. My point is with the lack of special units to give officers that keep people attracted pay is the only 

thing I have to offer as a leader in the absence of that good morale and a pat on the back, you bet that does help, but as leaders of this Chief 

Walthall and I both know we are grasping at straws trying to turn that turnover, to stop the bleeding and we're doing the best we can, but it 

does hamper our recruiting efforts. 

 

Councilmember Johnson - To carry that thought just a little further, if the police department is fully staffed, you got a traffic unit you can 

put two guys back on motorcycles, you can send someone to the Denton County Drug Task Force, you can send somebody to the FBI task 

force, you can do that then, you can send them to training because you have the staff to back them up. When you're a third down you don't 

have enough people to answer calls on the street and it takes 30 minutes to get somebody out to visit with you about your car being 

burglarized. You won't be the 14
th
 safest city. 

 

Assistant Chief of Police Greg Wilkerson - They may not know that my criminal investigation sergeant, Sgt. Ventrca, about five weeks 

ago was moved out of CID and is now working on the streets. I guarantee that Chief Walthall and I are going to insure that when someone 

calls 911 we're going to have somebody to do that, but I can't promise you that there's not going to be other units and other deficiencies that 

we have to answer to the public. There are going to be some service issues. Absolutely, but when it comes to 911, we're going to do what 

we need to do, but there's going to be some negative impacts at least in other areas of that organization.  

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Chief Walthall and I had a lot of discussions about this over the last couple 

of months and Chief Wilkerson can correct me if I'm misstating, but one of her concerns is the trend that is happening. 

Previously we were losing first year guys. People come in, they struggle through training and we lose them and over the last 

few months we are starting to lose the veterans. We're retaining the ones that are trying to get some experience right now fo r 

a while. It's the veterans that are starting that are corporals that are leaving here to go be a patrolman at another city because 

32



Page 24 of 27 

 

they can lose their stripes and earn more money. The concern is you start getting a department full of rookies and so forth a nd 

when you start losing your veteran officers. I think that is a big concern that Chief is facing right now. 

 

Councilmember Garber - Is the same concern on the fire side also at this point. 

 

Fire Chief Curtis Birt - Yes, we are having the same issues, different titles, different colors, of course. You have that, but you have 

departments. Denton County Fire Chiefs the other day did a study and there are 400 jobs coming available in the next two years. And you 

don't have to move away from the north Metroplex. If I have guys that want to go to Frisco starting at $65,000 when they start at $45,000 

here. Firemen top out at $100,000, here they top out at $60,000. And they're going to be there in four or five steps vs. eight or ten. What 

you're seeing and they are seeing it too, is guys are being able to lateral. A captain here can start to move to another department and are 

getting $20, $30, $40 thousand dollar increases in their lateral movement. They don't even lose their stripes or their bugles, but there is such 

a growth and there is such a shortage of people that can do it. We are going to get to see is us getting to the bottom of the barrel. 

 

Councilmember Garber - I noticed a couple things. The first one was when we had asked for the documentation on the college education 

for the team. I was blown away at the amount of college educated officers and I don't remember if we had firemen on that list or if they 

were even part of it. It was a point of pride. It was amazing, I think, to have that many college educated folks on our team period. I compare 

that to when we sat in here there was an HOA meeting, I think it was a community meeting and police and fire were presenting the amount 

of calls. I could kind of see the look on the citizens' faces. I had no idea that the word was going up that much like from 2012 to 2015 and 

2016 was a significant increase in the amount of work. This is not work that our police and fire are going out to go find work and projects. 

These are calls and things that need to be responded to and I think we are at a situation personally. If we are losing this many folks that are 

this highly respected in our police and fire departments. Calls are going up. I think that if we don't do something (our fellow 

Councilmembers) now, it's only going to get worse. We are going to start losing guys that we really don't want to lose and ladies. And on 

top of that, I'm just talking to the other police and fire departments, I have friends in Wylie, Sachse, Lewisville and Coppell, they are 

competing, too. Right? But they are just ahead of us. That's the thing so this may be revisited even next year and the year after because they 

are losing their top end guys to other departments that are paying even more than Coppell is for instance. So I just want to leave that with 

us. I think we have or had an amazing team. I think our citizens, if anything, they really respect our public safety. You hear that 

unanimously. And number three I think that if we don't intervene, I think it was a godsend the contract got signed because it allows us the 

opportunity to do some other things. I think that this situation is going to compound itself. So I'll leave it there. 

 

Assistant Chief of Police Greg Wilkerson - Council, If I may, I'd like to add more thing. Correct me if I'm wrong, we're not asking to 

compete with Allen or Frisco. We realize the reality that we would never be able to do that, but my best friend is the Chief of Sachse Police 

Department we talk often on issues. I want to compete with them though. I want to compete with Gainesville and some of these other 

agencies because that's what I'm trying to. It's a pecking order, if you will. Like Chief said we don't want the bottom of the barrel. I want to 

find those good officers in some of these very similar cities and tell them, I want you to come to Corinth. We have a great management 

team. We've got great morale. We've got great equipment. We've got great insurance and we're competitive in our pay. That would help 

seal the deal. I want you to understand, we're not coming to you asking for the moon, we're trying to get in that middle and I want to 

compete with those middle agencies. 

 

Councilmember Garber - I think you're right. We can't compete with some of those cities, but what happens is those cities we do 

compete with, when these other cities raises their step pay well then Coppell, if that's one of them loses their team to over hear and now 

Coppell is paying $1,000 finder fee from what I understand for officers, plus better pay, plus this other stuff and they're having to do that 

because they are losing officers from what I understand to some of these larger cities. We need to do a better job of competing. 

 

Fire Chief Curtis Birt - Other things you have to look at, too, is workload. I've done this over the last year, over the departments that we 

are competing with. Let's take Flower Mound for instance, Flower Mound's fire department ran 5,000 calls, so that's five stations running 

5,000 calls. This year we ran 3,400 with two stations. Each one of my stations is running 1,700 calls each one of their stations is running 

800 calls and they are making $7,000 more.  

 

Councilmember Garber - That doesn't count being short staffed? We've lost five officers. 

 

Fire Chief Curtis Birt - Doesn't mean being short staffed. Them having support staff to do special projects while our guys are having to 

do it while on duty. There's a lot of these little fringe things that you have to look at, too. Coppell police officer making $15,000 more an 

hour he's running three calls and has time to do a reports and has time to do training and these guys are running eight and nine and don't 

have.  

 

Assistant Chief of Police Greg Wilkerson - The Town of Hickory Creek are helping us answer a lot of calls here, but frankly, I appreciate 

their help, but they shouldn't be. 

 

33



Page 25 of 27 

 

Councilmember Glockel - Certainly we've got to do something. You said Sachse and you talked about Gainesville. I asked for something 

the last time we had all these towns listed and I don't see it, but we were at the bottom of the barrel in sales tax in the entire list. Sachse has a 

lot of industrial stuff over there. I'm going to say this with tongue and cheek, I would be hard pressed to believe that either one of you have 

lost an employee to a town who's AV tax base is lower than ours and the sales tax is lower than ours. So somehow we've got to get 

somewhere between where we are and where they are that we can afford. I just want to say that because it's just a matter of numbers. I'd 

love to give them all a raise, but you've got to look at the numbers pretty hard. If there's no equipment in the 2017-18 for those new 

firemen, that's going to take you, yourself who's telling me the tremendous number of dollars it takes to outfit one person. You're talking 

about six to a dozen, I don't know, whatever that number turns out to be. It's going to be an uphill battle. We've got to get there, but at this 

point looking at those numbers I don't know how we do it. 

 

Did you ever have a chance to look at the sales tax for every city that was on that list and it was amazing where we stood in that? 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - No. What I had is the information that was gathered at the time.  

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - When these cities were discussed with the Council in 2012, those were the 

factors that were used. At that point sales tax was not a factor. 

 

Councilmember Glockel - Population was a big driving factor which doesn't really prove much. 

 

Councilmember Burke - Well, the officers don't care about your taxes.  

 

Councilmember Garber - That's a Council issue not necessarily for our police department. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - We had discussions about how many cities have proximity to a lake and  a 

more service area type discussions and that's how some of the cities were pulled out and pulled in. Median household plays a 

big difference because if you have a more fluid community you many not have those drug calls and so forth vs. if you have a 

less affluent community. I think those were the factors in going through there. 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - I just would add also that when we're looking at these cities based on the 

methodology that we learned we are not using an average. When we're looking at the middle of the market, the city that continues to show 

as the one we use as reference is Wylie. For example, for the case of police lieutenant, it's Wylie that we are using. For police officer it's a 

combination of Wylie and Highland Village. Even when we are using those cities, then it gets adjusted so that the maximum does not 

overlap with our next level. In addition, these are numbers that we are already behind on. We don't have the cost of living. These numbers, 

I'm sure have already increased? I have Wylie combined with Highland Village. For example, for police officers, I have Wylie and they are 

paying more than Highland Village. Sachse is paying more than those two. 

 

Councilmember Glockel - Have you looked at Sachse's sales tax? Sachse is a pretty well off city.  

 

Councilmember Harrison - It's my opinion, if you get in this business about competing with each other and trying to meet what the other 

cities are going to provide it's a lost cause. As you said Coppell loses to Frisco, Frisco loses to whoever. So Coppell raises theirs and it's just 

a pyramid. It's going to eat you up. So the way I look at it is what's reasonable for the City of Corinth? We can compare all day long and 

that's not going to help the City of Corinth. We've got to determine what is reasonable for the City of Corinth. That's the way I look at it. I'm 

not trying to deprive anybody of salary or anything else and I've always felt that we've provided them the best of everything that they can 

do for the job as far as equipment and anything else. We have to play around with the salaries, but I'm not going to compete, I've never 

been able to compete with Frisco except the first two years that I was here. You can compete about these things. I've said that all along. 

When we first started off salary comparison I saw we were being compared against Southlake, Highland Park because that's what we 

selected to compare against. University City, you can't compare that. You are going to eat yourself up trying to compete. 

 

Councilmember Garber - Joe, I don't know if I was necessarily excited to try to compete with other cities, but what I do think what's right 

for Corinth is to not lose their officers. My motivation is to find a happy pay to where we are not losing officers like a sieve because I know 

that's not right for Corinth. Wherever the scale needs to be and who we need to compete with is I agree with you, I don't think we need to 

get into that game. 

 

Councilmember Harrison - We've hired people for public safety and we didn't have any budget for them. We never budgeted out in the 

old years. So we had to go back in our budget and make adjustments to pay for that. If that's our plan to do, then fine, I don't have any 

problem with that.  

 

Councilmember Johnson - The thought in my mind is kind of like what you're talking about. What is the happy medium for Corinth? It is 

authorizing the strength of 33 officers without us having to worry about being down a third. It is maintaining the 36 firefighters we have. 

34



Page 26 of 27 

 

That's the happy medium. That's where we are. It's not really a competition. It's the salary between us and Lewisville. It's just like Chief 

Wilkerson mentioned, we know we can't keep up. If a sergeant here, can go to Lewisville and make $20,000 more and give his stipes up 

and just answer calls all day long - that's Mark's decision. That's what he wants to do. The happy medium is what keeps us at full strength 

and what keeps our officers engaged and keeps our crime rate at a manageable level. Last year we were number 14 on the safest cities in 

Texas. I think we've been as low as the second lowest crime rate city. That's a testament of what we've got working the way we work. It's 

not a competition between the other cities it's where we think and right now our assigned strength is 33 for the police department and 36 for 

the fire department. We determined those numbers based on the numbers of calls and what man power requirements are.  

 

But, I do not believe and will not ever believe that this isn't a public meeting when citizens of this city can come and speak that they would 

tell you that's not what they want. That they don't want a fire department that's under strength by five or six or eight firemen. They don't 

want a police department that's understrength by five, six, eight or ten officers. If they are willing to support whatever decision we make to 

help keep those organizations at that level. The best thing we can do in that situation here is to adjust our pay so that we can keep those 

guys and not have to train them, spend $35 to $40 thousand dollars on them. In the police department situation, spend $35 to $40 thousand 

on them just to get them out the door in the car with a trainer the first day and then understand that that officer is not going to be strong 

enough to stand on his own to feet for at least two years without having to have more supervision. Understand, it's going to be five years 

before that officer really feels comfortable with going out and answering calls so that we've got two officers that can answer a call and not 

two officers answering one call.  

 

Councilmember Johnson - So what's the happy medium? The happy medium that we've already established is our strength level. That's 

pretty simple. How do we do that? We give them the best equipment, we give them best benefits and we give them the best pay to keep us 

at that level. Because there will be some that will come back from the other cities. But that's where our happy medium is - it's that assigned 

strength number, the benefits and the pay to keep them here. We need to keep our pay so that we can keep that assigned strength number so 

that we can keep that happy medium. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - I just want to make one quick point because I think we rushed through it 

very quickly. The majority of our employees in our fire department are right here in your lower level, your 

firefighters/paramedics. So what the new pay scale is doing is raising their annual salary by $2,000 a year. I wanted to make 

sure that we understand that. The maximum it's raising it by about $5,000 a year. These guys are the one that as Chief Birt 

was saying they'll promote up and any of them that promotion up you're looking  at those salaries are only being increased a 

little bit less than $4,000 a year. On the police officer side, the majority are up here on your lower level and that is abou t 

$3,000 a year that the pay scale would be moved. We're not increasing it by a substantial amount. I wanted to clarify that. 

 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Director Human Resources  - I want to share one thing. The years that I have been here listening to them, usually 

it's Jane that interviews them as they leave, as we've been losing more, I've also been talking to them and one thing that really got my 

attention that I never heard before, usually it was going to be more money, but the one thing that I heard this last time was safety. It's not the 

same any more. Because it's not the same to be with people that have the same experience as you have to be out there on a call to have 

somebody new. Now you not only have to pay attention to what you're doing, but pay attention to the other person you have here when 

you're responding to a call. I just wanted to share that because I have never heard that until now and I believe it does make sense that now 

they have to pay attention to them and to the person next to them.  

 

Mayor Heidemann - I think at this point we need to get our new City Manager involved and get his viewpoint on this and bring it back at 

a later date to the Council. Once he feels comfortable with that. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - As a workshop item or as an action item? 

 

Mayor Heidemann - I would say we need to talk to Mr. Hart to see how he wants to approach it. See if he wants it to be just another 

workshop or does he want the action item. 

 

Councilmember Burke - Hopefully an action item.  

 

Councilmember Garber - If we do a workshop and an action item and we decide as a Council not to take action on the action item then at 

least it was rescheduled and we can pull it from the agenda. 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - Absolutely. 

 

Councilmember Garber - So that way if we decide if we need to or want to take action we can have that ability to do that at that point.  

 

Councilmember - I would suggest that's probably what he'll do. 

 

35



Page 27 of 27 

 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - We will visit with him. 

 

CLOSED SESSION: 

 

The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of the above listed 

agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  

 

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation; and/or 

settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter 551. 

 

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open meeting would 

have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third person. 

 

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a 

public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee. 

 

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body  

has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory 

of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic development negotiations; or to 

deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect. 

 

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City Council. City 

Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on any agenda item, 

whether posted for Closed Session or not. 

 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS. 

 

There was no closed session. 

 

ADJOURN: 

 

Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 8:00 P.M. 

 

AYES:  All 

 

Meeting adjourned. 

 

Approved by Council On   day of     , 2017. 

 
      

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary 
City of Corinth, Texas 

36



    CONSENT ITEM    2.        
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: February 2, 2017 Joint Session
Submitted For: Kim Pence, City Secretary  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the February 2, 2017 Joint Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the February 2, 2017 Joint Session. The minutes are in draft form and not considered
official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the February 2, 2017 Joint Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 

37



STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF DENTON
CITY OF CORINTH

On this the 2nd day of February 2017 the City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission met in a Joint 
Session at 5:30 pm at the Corinth City Hall, located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas.  The meeting date, 
time place and purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, 
Government Code, with the following members to wit:

Members Present:
Bill Heidemann, Mayor
Joe Harrison, Mayor Pro-Tem
Scott Garber
Lowell Johnson
Don Glockel
Sam Burke 

Members Absent:
None

Staff Members Present:
Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager
Curtis Birt, Lake Cities Fire Chief
Michael Ross, Deputy Fire Chief
Greg Wilkerson, Asst. Chief of Police
Fred Gibbs, Director of Planning and Development Services
Barbara Cubbage, Planning and Development Manager
Mike Brownlee, City Engineer
Nathan Abato, Coordinator
Kim Pence, City Secretary
Mack Reinwand, City Attorney
Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Manager

Planning and Zoning Commission:
Brian Rush, Chair
Bruce Hanson, Vice Chair
Dwayne Zinn, Board Member
Breien Velde, Commissioner

Members Absent:
Marc Powell
Chick Mills

Others Present:
Charlie Kearns, Eikon
Kate Kennedy, Eikon
Keith Durst, Sedalco

CALL TO ORDER:

Mayor Heidemann called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.
Brian Rush called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

BUSINESS AGENDA

38



1. Consider and act on a site plan for the Public Safety Complex that includes the Public Safety building and 
new Fire Station on 6.08 acres situated on the proposed Lot 1R-1R, Block One, Pinnell Subdivision to be a 
replat of Lots 1R-1 and 1R-2, Block One, Pinnell Subdivision as recorded in DOC# 2016-56-PRDCT in the 
City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas.

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager – this process started back in May 2016 when we 
purchased the property and hire Eikon Services to begin the architectural design for the facility. We 
developed a Committee to oversee the design and to look at the cost associated with the project. 
Councilmember Joe Harrison and Councilmember Don Glockel were on the Committee. From staff we had 
Curtis Birt, Fire Chief Michael Ross, Deputy Fire Chief, Debra Walthall, Chief of Police, Greg Wilkerson, 
Deputy Chief of Police, myself and Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Manager and Brenton Copeland, 
Assistant Manager. Representative from Eikon are here tonight and will be making the presentation. 

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director – Eikon Representative will make a presentation on 
the site plan details as well as some waivers that are going to be requested tonight from both Planning and 
Zoning Commission and the City Council. 

Charlie Kearns, Eikon – We are proposing the following waiver requests:

Utilize split-faced CMU in lieu of brick $121,200
Dumpster Screening from masonry to cedar $2,500
Eliminate mechanical yard screening devices -
Eliminate stand-up curb at new vehicular pavement north of fire house $21,784
Eliminate interior staff parking lot landscaping south of firehouse -
Utilize chain link security fencing to match existing fence $52,000

Total Waiver Project Savings $197,484

Councilmember Glockel – we have been talking about residential adjacency and the dumpster and those 
things are down right behind the current police department existing building. Today, that is a different 
piece of property than where the fire department is going so the fire department buts up maybe to the 400’ 
foot adjacency issue but I don’t think this piece of property does? It is not one piece of property it is two, is 
that correct?

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director – currently the project is going through the re-plat 
process so that lot line is going to be removed so the fire station and the public safety building will be on 
one lot now so you will not have two separate lots anymore.

Charlie Kearns, Eikon – the lost presentation we did, we brought you some numbers and they were over 
the budget that you had given us and hopefully everyone understood that this was the process and we had 
work to still do and everything was working within that process. Since then the committee has done a lot of 
hard work and made some choices and decision to cut some things out of the project and these are the 
current numbers that we are bringing you tonight. We did not get to $7.7 million and we have worked hard 
to get where we are now. 

The following is the estimated costs based on 60% Construction documents, Building Committee cost 
reductions of $917,967 and Proposed Waivers of $197,484.

Project Items Scenario #1 Scenario #2
Do not build Sally Port & Holding Facility

Public Safety Building $3,884,041 $3,659,357
Fire House $4,349,801 $4,349,801
Materials Testing $60,000 $60,000

39



Total $8,293,842 $8,069,158

Current Capital Funding $7,700,000 $7,700,000

Balance ($593,842) ($369,158)

The next step if we are going to reduce anymore dollars out of this project it will be to start cutting square 
footage and affecting program at this point. We have taken out everything we can. 

Councilmember Harrison – explain what is the purpose and responsibility of Eikon, Sedalco, and 
Komatsu?

Charles Kearns, Eikon – This project is being developed under the Construction Manager at Risk process 
which is a little bit different then a bid process for construction documents. Eikon was engaged early on, 
and Sedalco came on board within a month or so after. We have been working together to come up with a 
design and Komatsu is our partner on this and they do a lot of public safety work. Eikon is the overall 
project manager in charge of the fire house design and Sedalco’s role is really to work with us hand in hand 
in constructability and cost estimate as we go so we can work within the budget without having any 
surprises at the end of the process. 

Councilmember Garber – the difference between scenario 1 and 2 is about $224,000 or so. Where is the 
$197,000 that we pulled out from the waivers at?

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager – the numbers in scenario #1 already include the $917,967 
cost reductions and the proposed waivers of $197,484. If the waivers are not approved then we would need 
to add $197,484 back to either scenario. So scenario #1 would now be instead of 600,000 we would be 
looking at about an $800,000 shortfall. Under scenario #1 you would be looking at almost $600,000 so the 
difference between scenario #1 and Scenario #2 is the Sally Port and that is $225,000. 

Councilmember Johnson – you are talking sally port, the holding cells? Are you talking everything back 
there, including the secured interview etc..?

Charles Kearns, Eikon – yes, that constitutes the $224,000. 

Councilmember Johnson – asked Deputy Chief Wilkerson to come up and talk about officer safety issue 
we might be creating?

Greg Wilkerson, Deputy Chief of Police – without this we are going to be where we are today. You 
understand that when we secure a prisoner we are doing paperwork that prisoner is brought into the area 
where officers complete their reports. There is currently a bench that is now affixed to the floor because 
shortly after my first arrival with this police department that bench was picked up and thrown at an officer. 
In these rooms we have staplers, pens and scissors and as you all know from the recent events whether it be 
Little Elm or Dallas Police Department all the things that happened we are not a very well-liked entity to a 
lot of people.  Without this we have no place to secure prisoners.

Currently, we use Denton County Sherriff’s Department to house our prisoners long-term. What we find is 
that when an officer arrests a person, we are married to that prisoner until we can give them to someone 
else. We have no place in our current facility to hold that prisoner for a short amount of time so we can 
have something very serious going on and we have no place to temporarily place a prisoner so that officer 
is out of service. We have to wait on Lake Dallas, Denton or even another agency to come an assist us on a 
major incident. This is one of the reasons to go to another facility to have options to temporarily contain 
individuals until we can transport.

40



Councilmember Johnson - where does the $593,842 play in our contingency in the budget for this 
facility? 

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - there is a contingency factor in currently because these 
are 60% construction documents so as we get closer to 90% and 100% that contingency hopefully should 
shrink unless something unexpected comes up. I believe right now we are probably sitting at about $450,000 

contingency so of the $593,842, $450,000 is contingency at this point. 

Councilmember Johnson - what is our current reserve in dollars and percentage?

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - we have a 20% fund balance requirement, typically that is 
about $3.5 million or so. We currently have about $1.3 million in excess of our 20% budget contingency.

Councilmember Johnson - so if we chose scenario 1 then we could use money for one time purchase out 
of the reserve right? We really don't know what that balance number is until we work all the way down 
to the point to where we have 90% or 100% and Sedalco is going to step up and give us their construction 
manager risk figure.

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager - correct. These are estimates at this point and until we go 
out to bid we won't know what that final dollar will be. 

Councilmember Johnson - I don't think one officer's life is worth $600,000 and I think we are very short-
sided if we march into scenario 2. I don't want to put us in the situation to where we have an officer hurt or 
possibly we decide we want to do this down the road and it end up costing us twice as much then it cost 
today. I am real concerned about the scenario that compromises the safety of our officers and our 

volunteers that are there as well. 

Councilmember Glockel - there is no one on the committee that wants to cut the Sally Port. The purpose 
of cutting the Sally Port is if for some reason the budget does not get increased we are trying to give you 
options of what you can do. You can also cut the bay out of the fire station which will save you $162,000 but 
talking to the people that I consider experts in the building trade, are saying the penalties for that are so 
astronomical it might come back in 8 or 10 times to try to add the bay later. The Sally Port, should we have to 
cut it, there is no real potential penalties at this time that we couldn't do it at budget time next year and the 
building is not going to be done until next year. 

Councilmember Johnson - then I don't see any sense in us going forward, we see scenario 2 up there but I 
think we need to stand on scenario 1 until we have an idea of what the costs are going to be. I don't 
know why scenario 2 would be up there at this point. 

Councilmember Harrison - I agree. When we get the final numbers in we may have to go much further 
higher and then we will have to make a big decision. What we did as a member on the committee is try to 
give everyone the best guess that we could. We already cut $1 million off of this before we got to this 
point. I want to go with scenario #1. I think that is the best way. 

Councilmember Glockel - If we are going to go with option 1 we have to tell these folks how to go back 
and draw the plans so they can get the bids in. We have to have a good feel if this Council is willing to go 
above that $7,700,000. 

Bruce Hanson, Vice Chair, Planning and Zoning Commission - on the waivers that were are seeking, 
they seem to be for residential adjacency can we go over exactly which parts of the new plan are adjacent 

to a residential use?

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - our residential adjacency standards are if a building 
is within 400 feet of a single-family property line that have to go beyond our typical ordinance requirements 

41



in this case that is where a lot of these waivers are coming before the Planning and Zoning Commission and 
the City Council.

The split-faced is one of them within that 400 feet to have brick and stone. CMU is allowable material, 
just outside of a residential adjacency but in this case it would not be.

The Dumpster screening needs to match the building. Typically, if it was brick the dumpster screening 
would be out of brick in this case they are asking for a cedar fence in lieu of the brick. 

We require mechanical screening whether you put it on the roof top or if it is ground mounted it has to be 
screened as well.

Our Ordinance requires driveways and fire lanes to have some curb on them.

The Landscaping has nothing to do with residential adjacency it is just preference from the committee.

Bruce Hanson, Vice Chairman, Planning and Zoning Commission - of the two buildings that are on the 
site plan and not including the dumpsters or other equipment, what else is in that 400 feet of the 

residences?

  Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - the Fire Station itself is within the 400 feet. 

MOTION made by Bruce Hanson, Vice Chairmen of the Planning and Zoning Commission to approve the 
site plan as presented with waivers contingent on the approval of the replat. Seconded by Brian Rush.

Councilmember Hanson - the waivers that are being presented make sense, for example the screening of 
equipment that is over on the east of the building is going to be blocked from anyone's view residentially. 
The use of the split-faced CMU does sound as it is described will not be an issue. I think that is similar to 
what the existing fire station #2 used and having seen that does not look like it would be objectionable. All 
in all these waivers look like they would fit. 

AYES: Bruce Hanson, Brian Rush, Breien Velde, Dwayne Zinn
NOES: None
ABSENT: Marc Powell, Chuck Mills

MOTION CARRIED

MOTION made by Councilmember Johnson to approve the site plan approval and the waivers requested 
pending the replat of both properties into a single piece. Seconded by Councilmember Garber.

AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Harrison, Glockel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

MOTION CARRIED

Charles Kearns, Eikon – Sedalco will begin bidding documents to Sub-Contractors on February 8, 2017.
Replat presentation to the Planning and Zoning Commission on February 27, 2017. The plan right now is 
for Sedalco to bring me the Guarantee Matching Price (GMP) on March 30, 2017 and amend the contract 
and construction starts the first week in April. Those are the key milestones that we will move forward 
with. 

Mack Reinwand, City Attorney - do you want to talk with staff and give them direction on the question 
that was presented on which type of Sally Port, do you want them to come back to Council? There is no 
motion needed staff just needs direction. 

42



Councilmember Glockel - the Sally Port is being bid as an alternate. It is in the plans as it goes out. We 
will make that decision when you get the bid back what it is going to cost to do the whole project. 

There was no Closed Session.

CLOSED SESSION
The City Council will convene in such executive or (closed session) to consider any matters regarding any of the 
above listed agenda as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

Section 551.071. (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation; 
and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under the 
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter 551.

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open 
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third 
person.

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or 
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the 
governmental body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, 
or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is 
conducting economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a 
business prospect.

ADJOURN

Brian Rush, Chairman, Planning and Zoning Commission closed the Joint meeting at 6:30 p.m.

Mayor Heidemann adjourned the Joint meeting at 6:30 p.m.

AYES: All

Meeting adjourned.

Approved by Council on _____day of , 2017.

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary  
City of Corinth, Texas

43



    CONSENT ITEM    3.        
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: February 2, 2017 Regular Session
Submitted For: Kim Pence, City Secretary  Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on minutes from the February 2, 2017 Regular Session.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Attached are the minutes from the February 2, 2017 Regular Session. The minutes are in draft form and not
considered official until formally approved by the City Council.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval of the February 2, 2017 Regular Session minutes.

Attachments
Minutes 

44



STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF DENTON 
CITY OF CORINTH

On this the 2nd day of February 2017 the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas met in a Regular Session at the 
Corinth City Hall at 7:00 PM, located at 3300 Corinth Parkway, Corinth, Texas. The meeting date, time, place and 
purpose as required by Title 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter C, Section 551.041, Government Code, with the 
following members to wit:

Present: Bill Heidemann, Mayor

Joe Harrison, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Sam Burke, Council Member 

Scott Garber, Council Member 

Lowell Johnson, Council Member 

Don Glockel, Council Member

Staff Members Present: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director 

Guadalupe Ruiz, Human Resources Director

Mike Brownlee, City Engineer

Barbara Cubbage, Planning and Development Manager

Kim Pence, City Secretary

Mack Reinwand, City Attorney

Shea Rodgers, Technology Services Manager 

Jason Alexander, Economic Development Director

CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

Mayor called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. Associate Pastor, Jacob Fields delivered the Invocation and led in 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 

CONSENT AGENDA
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted in one motion. 
Should the Mayor, a Councilmember, or any citizen desire discussion of any Item that Item will be removed from 
the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.

1. Consider and act on minutes from the December 1, 2016 Workshop Session.

Councilmember Glockel – pulled item #1 from the Consent Agenda for discussion. Change Mr. 
Alexander’s comments from “Yes Sir” to “No Sir” on page 6 of the minutes. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Glockel to approve with corrections on the December 1, 2016 

45



Workshop Session Minutes. Seconded by Councilmember Johnson. 

AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Glockel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: Harrison

MOTION CARRIED

2. Consider and act on minutes from the December 1, 2016 Regular Session.

Councilmember Harrison – pulled item #2 from the Consent Agenda. He was not present at that 
meeting. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Burke to approve the minutes from the December 1, 2016 
Regular Session. Seconded by Councilmember Garber. 

AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Glockel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None
ABSTAIN: Harrison

MOTION CARRIED

3. Consider and act on minutes from the December 10, 2016 Special Session.

4. Consider and act on minutes from the December 15, 2016 Workshop Session.

5. Consider and act on minutes from the December 15, 2016 Regular Session.

6. Consider and act on minutes from the January 5, 2017 Regular Session.

7. Consider and act on a resolution approving the Investment Policy for the City of Corinth.

8. Consider and act on a resolution approving the Investment Policy for the Economic Development 
Corporation.

9. Consider and act on a resolution approving the Investment Policy for the Crime Control & Prevention District.

MOTION made by Councilmember Garber to approve items #3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 of the Consent 
Agenda. Seconded by Councilmember Burke.

AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Harrison, Glockel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

46



MOTION CARRIED

CITIZENS COMMENTS
In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from acting on or discussing (other than factual 
responses to specific questions) any items brought before them at this time. Citizen's comments will be limited to 
3 minutes. Comments about any of the Council agenda items are appreciated by the Council and may be taken 
into consideration at this time or during that agenda item. Please complete a Public Input form if you desire to 
address the City Council. All remarks and questions addressed to the Council shall be addressed to the Council as 
a whole and not to any individual member thereof.* Section 30.041B Code of Ordinance of the City of Corinth.

Taylor Holley, 8153 Plainview Road, Krum, Texas 76244 – would like to open up a produce stand in 
Corinth. I have two stands, one in Krum and one in Sanger. People love fresh produce and would like to see if 
there is any interests in opening a stand here. 

PUBLIC HEARING/BUSINESS ITEM

10. TO HEAR PUBLIC OPINION REGARDING THE AMENDMENT OF LAND USE 
ASSUMPTIONS, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLANS, AND ASSOCIATED IMPACT FEES 
FOR WATER, WASTEWATER AND ROADWAY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS.

Fred Gibbs, Planning and Development Director - A public hearing has been scheduled to receive 
input on the adoption of the 2016 Land Use Assumptions, Water, Wastewater and Roadway Impact Fee 
reports. The reports provide a detailed discussion of the land use assumptions and capital improvements 
plan under which roadway, water and wastewater impact fees may be imposed for new development. Any 
member of the public has the right to appear at the hearing and present evidence for or against the land use 
assumptions and the capital improvements plan.

Once the public hearing is closed, City Council has a time limit (by state statute) of thirty days to adopt the 
report and set impact fee levels via ordinance.  The next City Council meeting to adopt the Impact Fee 
Ordinance is scheduled for March 2, 2017 which is within the 30 day timeframe required to set fee levels. 

In order to set fee levels, an Ordinance setting the Impact Fee levels must be adopted by Council. Fee 
levels can range from zero to the maximum calculated amount as shown in the report. It is important to 
note that while fee levels cannot go beyond the calculated maximum level (without a Special Financial 
Analysis), Council can change the fee levels after they have been set by Ordinance. Previously established 
fee levels (from previous Impact Fee studies) can also be adjusted by Ordinance provided the new fees are 
not raised beyond the maximum calculated fee amount.

In addition to adopting the report, staff is also seeking guidance for the desired fee levels to be included in 
the Impact Fee Ordinance. The Impact Fee Ordinance will be presented at the regular City Council 
meeting on March 2, 2017.

Anthony Samarripas, Kimley-Horn – we presented the content to the CIAC on January 23rd and they 
provided minor comments to the Roadway components, unit prices associated with the cost projections 
that were in the reports. We addressed those and have provided updated reports that was passed out to the 
Council this evening. See Exhibit A.

47



Anthony spoke on the impact fee components and calculations.

There are 3 main components associated with the impact fee, the Land Use Assumption, The Service Unit 
Calculation, and the Capital Improvement Plans.

Land Use Assumptions are the growth projections that we use over the next 10 years to identify what 
infrastructure needs the city is going to have. We worked with the City staff to determine what previous 
growth rates to determine what growth rate we wanted to use for the next 10 years. Those growth 
projections are consistent with the current Future Land Use Plan. 

Over the next 10 years we are projecting a population growth rate of about 3,500 people and an 
employment growth rate of about 1.6 million sq. feet. 

One of the key items regarding Impact Fee that is in the law is Service Units. What the law says is that in 
order for a City to apply impact fees fairly you have to have Service Units and be able to measure each 
type of development against another development whether it is a single family resident or 100,000 sq. foot 
lots or industrial development. There has to be a way to figure out what each proportional share for each 
of those different development types. 

48



For Roadway, we use vehicle miles and vehicle miles are a way to measure the anticipated traffic that a 
certain development will put on the roadway. The more vehicle miles you generate the bigger proportional 
share you have of the roadway because you are impacting it more then another developer potentially.

The water and wastewater is based on the water meter size. If a development chooses a larger water meter 
size their impact is going to be higher on the water/wastewater infrastructure thus their impact fee will be 
higher. 

The third component is the Capital Improvement Plan, the Impact Fee/CIP.  We developed an impact fee 
CIP and is very similar to your Master Plan/CIP but it is a little different in some aspects. 

Impact Fee Calculations for water and roadway it is city wide and in one surface area so no matter where 
development comes in to the City they will be subject to the same water and roadway impact fee.

Wastewater is broken up into 3 basins so depending on which basin in development it is in they could pay 
a different impact fee.

The law requires when we go through the impact fee calculation we account for a credit and there is one 
of two ways to do that. One, is a detailed analysis or we can reduce the impact fee by 50%. Based on the 
previous direction we received from Council we proceeded to the 50% reduction and that is what you will 
see in the results that were presented. 

49



We take the Roadway CIP and develop a cost to implement that CIP and develop a cost to build that 
infrastructure and also add in finance costs. The law allows the City to recover cost associated with issuing 
debt whether that is financing cost or anticipated interests, you can recover that costs and we try to include 
that in the calculations. We cut the total in half and once we get to that number we divide that by the
projected 10 year growth and the growth is shown in traffic (Vehicle Miles) and that is the base service 
unit for roadway. 

50



This table shows what Corinth is currently charging as well as some of the neighboring cities are currently 
charging. The adopted rate of $962 is what a single-family dwelling pays today. The maximum 
Assessable of what the city could be charging is $3,208 so the city is charging quite a bit less than the 
maximum today.

51



The new maximum assessable based on the calculations is $3,552 which is the exercise shown on the 
previous slide. Based on the discussion we had at the last workshop is we show an option for $2,000 for a 
single-family dwelling and that was one of the numbers that Council has mentioned they were considering 
so we placed it on the table so you could see where that is with the neighboring communities as well as 
with respect to your maximum assessable and that is about 56% of what your maximum could be if you 
charged $2,000. 

The table below shows similar information but for a different development type. We show different 
percentages just as a reference point if Council wanted to look at what percent of the maximum you would 
want to set the fees at for non-residential. 

52



The table below show 10,000 sq. ft. for Retail example with similar information and what those rates 
would look like at 30%, 45%, and 60% to give you a feel for where that would put you at with 
surrounding cities. 

53



We have a very similar water CIP map. We are showing existing and proposed water lines as well as 
tanks, pump stations and any infrastructure that provides water service. We take that CIP and develop a 
cost to implement that CIP. Again we add in financing cost and reduce that number by 50% so we are 
buying the credit of almost 3.9 million dollars and that leaves a recoverable cost of about $3.9 million 
dollars. We take that cost and divide it by the growth for water and wastewater in terms of service units for 
single-family dwelling so now we have 1, 782 service units and that is just another way to take the 3,500 
population growth, the 1.6 million sq. ft. of employment growth and turn it into a service unit or 
equivalent dwelling unit number. The maximum result in impact fee for water is $2,182. 

Below is another similar table of what the city is currently charging on water and wastewater. The city 
adopted the maximum rate so you will see one line item for 2011 the city is currently charging $1,441 for 
a single – family dwelling unit and based on the updated 2016, you could be charging as much as $2,182. 
Both of those numbers put you relative to the benchmark of the cities that we have shown. 

54



55



For wastewater there are 3 service areas, Denton Basin, Upper Trinity West and Upper Trinity East.

The Water CIP map that shows existing and proposed infrastructure. The Denton Basin is relatively close 
to being fully developed, there is not any proposed projects they are anticipated to be needed to serve 
future development so there is not project shown on the impact fee CIP. As a result the impact fee for 
Denton Basin is 0. The other two basins do have impact fees because they have projects.

56



We have a very similar exercise and cost out what that infrastructure will cost to construct and add 
financing costs and apply the 50% credit. We take those final numbers and divide by the growth. Upper 
Trinity East, the maximum assessable is $1,271 and for Upper Trinity West it is $2,121. (Typo on slide).

57



The table below shows what the City is currently charging and what the new maximum assessable rates 
have been calculated to be. Upper Trinity East, the City is currently charging $1,094 and the new 
maximum assessable is $1,271. Upper Trinity West, the current maximum assessable is $1,300 and the 
new maximum assessable is $2, 121. 

As far as the next steps, we are having a Public Hearing this evening, answer any questions you may have 
and at some point we will look to Council to approve the studies, which is approving what is in the report, 
the maximum assessable calculations, the land use assumptions and as a separate item the Council will 
adopt an Ordinance that sets what the new impact fees are going to be. Council has at their discretion to set 
those fees anywhere from 0 up to the maximum that we have talked about. 

Mayor Heidemann opened the Public Hearing at 7:12 p.m.

Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Acting City Manager – right now if you close the public hearing tonight you 
have to adopt your rates 30 days from today which would be March 2, 2017. That would be at our next 
Council meeting and you would not have the option of discussing and postponing it at a later date. 

If you opt to leave the public hearing open and extend it to March 2, 2017, at that point it will give you 
flexibility if you choose not to adopt your rates on March 2, 2017 and you close your public hearing on 
that date that will give you an extra 30 days to be able to review and make a decision.

MOTION made by Councilmember Burke to continue the Public Hearing to March 2, 2017. 
Seconded by Councilmember Garber. 

58



AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Harrison, Glockel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

MOTION CARRIED

Councilmember Glockel – for traffic, where it talks about the trips and how it counts, you 
don’t look at existing people? That is only for new traffic? If I build 100 homes in a 
subdivision we are only talking about those 100 homes?

Anthony Samarripas, Kimley-Horn – we do existing counts on the roadways to figure how 
much traffic is out there already but we are only counting the fee for new homes. 

Councilmember Glockel – when did you use the method to determine the traffic?

Anthony Samarripas, Kimley-Horn - approximately six months ago. During the school 
year in early fall. 

BUSINESS ITEM: 

10a. Consider and discuss the amendment of land use assumptions, capital improvements plans, and associated 
impact fees for water, wastewater and roadway capital improvements.

No Action taken on Business item.

BUSINESS AGENDA

11. Consider and act on a Resolution ordering a Joint General Election with Denton County to be held on 
May 6, 2017 to fill the offices of the Mayor and Councilmember Places 2 and 5; establishing 
procedures for that election and providing an effective date.

MOTION made by Councilmember Harrison to approve the Resolution ordering a Joint/General 
Election with Denton County to he held on May 6, 2017. Seconded by Councilmember Burke.

AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Harrison, Glockel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

MOTION CARRIED

12. Consider and act on a Joint Election Agreement and Contract for Election Services with Denton County for 
the May 6, 2017 General Election.

MOTION made by Councilmember Johnson to approve a Joint/General Agreement and Contract of 
Election Services with Denton County for the May 6, 2017 Election. Seconded by Councilmember 
Harrison.

59



AYES: Burke, Garber, Johnson, Harrison, Glockel
NOES: None
ABSENT: None

MOTION CARRIED

COUNCIL COMMENTS & FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

The purpose of this section is to allow each councilmember the opportunity to provide general updates and/or 
comments to fellow councilmembers, the public, and/or staff on any issues or future events. Also, in accordance 
with Section 30.085 of the Code of Ordinances, at this time, any Councilmember may direct that an item be 
added as a business item to any future agenda.

Councilmember Burke – would like to ask the Acting City Manager and our Council to consider adding language 
to our contracts with contractors such as Eikon that would allow us to take some action if they lose a key 
representative or personnel and add that as a standard clause to those types of contracts.

Mayor Heidemann – expressed thanks to the police department and fire department in all their efforts in helping 
and assisting Little Elm through the tragedy they went through. 

Mayor Heidemann recessed the Regular Session at 7:36 p.m. * See Closed Session. 

CLOSED SESSION

The City Council will convene in such executive or closed session to consider any matters regarding any of the above 
listed agenda items as well as the following matters pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.

Section 551.07 (1) Private consultation with its attorney to seek advice about pending or contemplated litigation;
and/or settlement offer; and/or (2) a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the government body under theTexas 
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State of Texas clearly conflicts with chapter 551.

Section 551.072. To deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an openmeeting 
would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with a thirdperson.

Section 551.074. To deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or
dismissal of a public officer or employee; or to hear a complaint or charge against an officer or employee.

City Council met in Closed Session from 7:36 p.m. until 8:48 p.m.

a. City Manager

Section 551.087. To deliberate or discuss regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or
near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic
development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect.

After discussion of any matters in closed session, any final action or vote taken will be in public by the City
Council. City Council shall have the right at any time to seek legal advice in Closed Session from its Attorney on

60



any agenda item, whether posted for Closed Session or not.

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO TAKE ACTION, IF NECESSARY, ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS.

Mayor Heidemann reconvened the Regular Session at 8:48 p.m.

There was no action taken from Closed Session.

ADJOURN:

Mayor Heidemann adjourned the meeting at 8:49 p.m.

AYES: All

Meeting adjourned.

Approved by Council on _____day of , 2017.

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary  
City of Corinth, Texas

61



    CONSENT ITEM    4.        
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: EMS Billing Contract Renewal
Submitted For: Curtis Birt, Chief  Submitted By: Curtis Birt, Chief
City Manager Review: 

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and/or act upon the approval of a Resolution to renew an agreement for ambulance billing services
between Emergicon, LLC, and the City of Corinth   

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Our current billing contract will expire April 2017.  The current contract pays Emergicon 7% and the new contract
would stay at the current 7% for EMS billing and collections.  Only change in the terms of the contract is to pay 2%
of the 3% charged fee on Credit card transactions. 
Emergicon has demonstrated to be a good partner and is good to work with and has done a good job of submitting
and collecting on EMS.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval. 

Attachments
Agreement for EMS Billing 
Resolution EMS Billing 
Business Agreement EMS Billing 

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



RESOLUTION NO. _______

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORINTH, 
TEXAS, APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR AMBULANCE BILLING 
SERVICES WITH EMERGICON, LLC, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the Lake Cities Fire Department has an agreement with Emergicon LLC for 
ambulance billing services which expires in April 2017; and

WHEREAS, the Lake Cities Fire Department has reviewed an Agreement for Specialized 
Professional Ambulance Billing Services as well as a Business Associate Agreement 
(collectively, the “Agreement”) renewal agreement to be effective prior to the expiration of the 
existing agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City has the authority to enter into a contract or agreement with another entity 
for certain governmental services.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
CORINTH, TEXAS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. That the Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved in form and 
substance for the provision of ambulance billing services on behalf of the Lake Cities Fire 
Department.

Section 2. That the City Manager or his designee is authorized to execute the Agreement 
attached hereto as Exhibit A with Emergicon, LLC on behalf of the City.

DULY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Corinth, Texas, on this the ____ day of 
___________, 2017.

APPROVED:

_______________________________
Bill Heidemann, Mayor

ATTEST:

Kimberly Pence, City Secretary

77



78



79



80



81



82



83



    CONSENT ITEM    5.        
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: Purchase Ambulance
Submitted For: Curtis Birt, Chief  Submitted By: Curtis Birt, Chief
City Manager Review: 

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and approve purchase of replacement ambulance from Siddons-Martin.  
 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
This ambulance will replace our reserve medic and will go into front line service.  The front line medic is starting to
need constant repair and monitoring and is at the end of its front line life.  This medic will be moved to reserve. 
Our reserve medic is at the end of its life cycle, we will trade in this medic on the new medic after new medic is
placed in service.  This medic is was bid by three (3) manufactures and found to be best value.

This Medic was approved in the FY 2016-2017 budget and funds are in the LCFD Vehicle and Replacement fund. 
 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends City Council approve the purchase of this equipment.

Attachments
S-M Proposal 
Medic Drawings 

84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



    CONSENT ITEM    6.        
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: Medic Financing 
Submitted For: Curtis Birt, Chief  Submitted By: Curtis Birt, Chief
City Manager Review: 

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on Resolution with Government Capital regarding a financial contract for the purpose of
procuring a replacement 2017 Road Rescue Ambulance.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
Government Capital will provide funding under a Tax Exempt Contractual Obligation under Public Property
Finance Act Contract.   Contract for $251,866 over seven (7) years with a payment of  $40,410.86 per year.  

 

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends approval.

Attachments
Medic Finance Resolution 
Finance Proposal 

96



Resolution #______________________

A RESOLUTION REGARDING A FINANCE AGREEMENT FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF PROCURING AN AMBULANCE.

WHEREAS, contingent upon the approval of the Attorney for the City of Corinth (the City), the 
City desires to enter into certain Finance Agreement dated as of (Council Mtg. Date), by and 
between the City of Corinth and Government Capital Corporation, for the purpose of procuring
an Ambulance. The City of Corinth desires to designate this Agreement as a "qualified tax-
exempt obligation" of the City for the purpose of Section 265 (b)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended. The City desires to designate Bob Hart, City Manager, as an 
authorized signer of the Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CORINTH.

Section 1: The City enter into a Finance Agreement with Government Capital 
Corporation for the purpose of procuring an Ambulance.

Section 2: That the Finance Agreement dated (Council Mtg. Date), by and between
the City of Corinth and Government Capital Corporation is designated by the City as a "qualified 
tax exempt obligation" for the purposes of Section 265 (b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended.

Section 3: The City designates Bob Hart, City Manager as an authorized signer of 
the Finance Agreement dated as of (Council Mtg. Date) by and between the City of Corinth and 
Government Capital Corporation.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of in a meeting held on ___________________

__________________________________
Mayor Signature

                                                           
_____________________________________
Printed Name

                    
ATTEST:

_____________________________                                                       
   City Secretary

97



 
 

 
Monday, February 27, 2017 
 
 
City of Corinth 
Lake Cities Fire Dept 
3300 Corinth Parkway 
Corinth, TX 76208 
 
Deputy Chief  Shepard 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to present proposed financing for the City of Corinth. I understand Lake Cities 
Fire Department / the City of Corinth is considering the acquisition of an Ambulance, and is interested in 
utilizing Tax Exempt financing.  I am submitting for your review the following proposed financing structures. 
 
      BORROWER:    The City of Corinth, TX 
       FINANCING STRUCTURE:  Tax Exempt Contractual Obligation 
      Public Property Finance Act Contract 
 
      PROPOSED EQUIPMENT AMOUNT:   $ 251,866.00  
  
       PAYMENT TERM:   5 Annual Pmts   
       INTEREST RATE:   2.895%    
       PAYMENT AMOUNT:   $ 54,205.67/yr    
 

PAYMENT TERM:   7 Annual Pmts   
       INTEREST RATE:   2. 99%     
       PAYMENT AMOUNT:   $ 39,935.06/yr    
      
First Payment will be due October 16, 2017 with subsequent payments due annually thereafter. 
 
The above proposal is an expression of interest, subject to audit analysis and mutually acceptable 
documentation and is not a binding commitment.  The terms outlined herein are subject to change and rates 
are valid for fourteen (14) days from the date of this proposal.  If funding does not occur within this time 
period, rates and terms may be indexed to current market at that time. 
 
Our finance programs are extremely flexible and our goal is total customer satisfaction. If you have any 
questions or wish to consider other payment terms, frequencies or conditions, please contact me toll free at 
(800) 883-1199 x116. 
 
 
With Best Regards, 
Kevin D. Lerner 

 Kevin D. Lerner 
Vice President, Public Finance 

98



    BUSINESS ITEM    7.        
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: Annual Audit
Submitted For: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director 
Submitted By: Lee Ann Bunselmeyer, Director
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Accept the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, as
presented by Davis Kinard & Co, PC.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The City Charter, in compliance with Chapter 103 of the Local Government Code requires an annual independent
audit. The audit of the City of Corinth's financial records for the year-ended September 30, 2016 was conducted by
Davis, Kinard & Co, PC. The audit firm, in its second year as the City's independent audit firm, issued an
unqualified opinion on the financial statements, stating that the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the City's financial position in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) was presented to the Citizen Finance Audit Committee on
Tuesday, February 15, 2017.  Representatives from Davis Kinard & Co, PC will be present at the City Council
meeting to provide their opinion.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends accepting the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ended September 30,
2016.

Attachments
Presentation 
September 2016 Financial Report 
CAFR 

99



COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2016

100



 Report is organized into three sections:
◦ Introductory, Financial & Statistical Section

 CAFR has been designed to comply with GAAP/GASB guidelines

 City has received an unqualified opinion from the audit firm

 Three suggested audit adjustments. 
◦ Current Year GASB 68 adjustment – Net Pension Asset/Liability on Financial Statements
◦ Year-End Debt Entry correction
◦ Year-End Lease Entry correction

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

101



Fund Balance Historical Analysis
Actual vs Policy Requirement

9/30/12 9/30/13 9/30/14 9/30/15 9/30/16

FUND BALANCE 5,099,207 4,772,820 3,778,466 3,065,462 2,763,912

FUND BALANCE REQ. 2,695,636 3,020,957 2,976,417 2,964,845 2,916,342

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

Water/Wastewater
25% of Budgeted Expenditures 

9/30/12 9/30/13 9/30/14 9/30/15 9/30/16

FUND BALANCE 5,454,704 4,162,122 3,810,097 3,726,939 3,735,108

FUND BALANCE REQ. 2,555,788 2,933,175 2,876,660 2,985,215 3,015,651

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

General Fund
20% of Budgeted Expenditures

102



ENDING FUND BALANCE COMPARISON

(1) The net increase in fund balance is due to the May 2016 bond sale of $13 million and the purchase 
of the Public Safety Facility for $3 million.

(2) Decrease in fund balance is due to the closing out of the TxDOT Grant Fund. 

%

9/30/2015 9/30/2016 Variance Change

Operating Funds  $11,119,908  $11,328,070  $      208,162 1.9%

Reserve Funds          224,419          347,253          122,834 54.7%

Internal Service Funds       1,587,445       1,705,614          118,169 7.4%

Impact/Escrow Funds       1,008,342       1,048,540            40,198 4.0%

Bond/Capital Project Funds (1)       3,250,965     13,676,737     10,425,772 320.7%

Special Revenue Funds          441,490          748,464          306,974 69.5%

Grant Funds (2)              9,818              1,895             (7,923) -80.7%

Total all Funds  $17,642,386  $28,856,573  $11,214,187 63.6%

103



GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT
As of September 30, 2016

Issue

 Original 

Principal 

Amount of Issue 

 Outstanding 

Principal as of 

09/30/16 

 Outstanding 

Interest as of 

09/30/16 

 Total 

Outstanding as 

of 09/30/16 

 % 

Outstanding 

as of 

09/30/16 

  General 

Fund 

Payment 

  Water/ WW 

Payment 

 Drainage 

Payment 

 Total  Debt 

Payment 

2001 GO 2,000,000           -                            -                          -                              0.0% 127,969         -                        -                    127,969         

2005 GO Refunding 5,080,000           1,510,000          78,700              1,588,700            29.7% 475,860         134,217         -                    610,077         

2007 GO Refunding 5,250,000           2,765,000          197,538           2,962,538            52.7% 714,500         151,561         -                    866,060         

2007 CO 24,020,000         15,245,000       4,688,800       19,933,800         63.5% 771,746         845,140         195,277     1,812,163     

2010 CO 1,500,000           335,000              23,026              358,026                22.3% 140,196         -                        -                    140,196         

2016 CO 13,275,000         13,275,000       7,295,277       20,570,277         100.0% -                        -                        -                    -                        

Total 51,125,000$      33,130,000$     12,283,342$  45,413,342$       64.8% 2,230,270$   1,130,917$   195,277$   3,556,465$   

Fiscal Year 2015-2016

General Fund total Outstanding $33,100,790
Water/Wastewater Fund total Outstanding $10,122,085

Drainage Fund total Outstanding $2,190,467
104



City of Corinth
Monthly Financial Report
For the Period Ended September 30, 2016

1.

2.

3.

4.

About This Report

This report has been prepared by the City of Corinth's Finance Department. The
Comprehensive Monthly Financial Report (CMFR) is intended to provide our audience
(internal and external users) with timely and relevant information regarding the City's
financial position.

This report includes information for the month ending September 2016 and is presented in
four sections.

The Financial Summary section reports the performance of the major
operating funds of the City. In addition, the report provides a comparison to
budget for major revenue sources and expenditure items. Narrative
disclosures are included to highlight any significant changes or
fluctuations.

The Revenue & Economic Analysis section provides additional analysis
regarding key revenue sources and economic indicators.

The Executive Summary section contains a high level fund balance
summary for all City funds. The report provides year-to-date revenues,
expenditures, and transfers.

The Capital Improvement Program Report contains a high level
expenditure summary for all CIP projects. The report contains a fund
summary and a project summary that provides revenues, current and
historical expenditures, and available fund balance.

If you would like additional information, feel free to contact the Finance Department at (940)
498-3280.

105



Section 1
City of Corinth

Monthly Financial Report
September 2016

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
This report is designed for internal use and does not include all the funds and accounts included in the City of
Corinth's operations. For a complete report, refer to the City of Corinth's Annual Financial Report available on the city's
website at www.cityofcorinth.com

106

criggs
Text Box
Return to Cover Page



City of Corinth
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues & Expenditures - Budget vs Actual (Unaudited)

For the Period Ended September 2016

Prior Year

September Year-to- Sep-15

Budget 2016 Date Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D

FY 2015-16 Actual Actual Variance % of Budget Actual

RESOURCES

Property Taxes 7,232,923$ 8,170$ 7,237,081$ 4,158$ 100.1% 6,964,929$

Delinquent Tax, Penalties & Interest 34,500 (70,648) 37,579 3,079 108.9% 94,745

Sales Tax 1,238,319 350,612 1,374,704 136,385 111.0% 1,288,977

Franchise Fees 1,076,835 249,117 1,068,911 (7,924) 99.3% 1,074,215

Utility Fees 12,500 40 29,761 17,261 238.1% 19,113

Traffic Fines & Forfeitures 753,154 44,336 682,805 (70,349) 90.7% 650,649

Development Fees & Permits 380,937 22,436 488,865 107,928 128.3% 592,175

Police Fees & Permits 24,100 2,815 29,834 5,734 123.8% 28,383

Recreation Program Revenue 174,532 5,441 147,343 (27,189) 84.4% 166,401

Fire Services 2,453,651 298,419 2,588,686 135,035 105.5% 2,532,951

Investment Income 28,130 2,131 40,124 11,994 142.6% 39,762

Miscellaneous 73,600 13,896 33,202 (40,398) 45.1% 75,812

Charges for Services 1,248,571 2,423 1,247,533 (1,038) 99.9% 1,213,905

Transfer In 99,230 (19,235) 79,995 (19,235) 80.6% 100,897

TOTAL ACTUAL RESOURCES 14,830,982 909,953 15,086,425 255,443 101.7% 14,842,916

Use of Fund Balance 647,000 - 0.0% 83,159

TOTAL RESOURCES 15,477,982$ 909,953$ 15,086,425$ 255,443$ 97.5% 14,926,074$

EXPENDITURES

Wages & Benefits 11,125,259 1,094,983 10,871,013 (254,246) 97.7% 10,749,074

Professional Fees 1,476,266 116,944 1,404,867 (71,399) 95.2% 1,205,135

Maintenance & Operations 587,237 93,823 558,210 (29,027) 95.1% 504,534

Supplies 389,601 47,902 376,875 (12,726) 96.7% 354,188

Utilities & Communications 631,884 94,228 609,756 (22,128) 96.5% 565,709

Vehicles/Equipment & Fuel 344,484 61,002 343,599 (885) 99.7% 316,811

Training 94,521 12,435 86,662 (7,859) 91.7% 101,819

Capital Outlay 255,726 80,583 254,271 (1,455) 99.4% 173,414

Charges for Services 156,381 - 156,381 - 100.0% 120,826

Transfer Out 416,623 80,000 416,623 - 100.0% 834,565

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 15,477,982$ 1,681,900$ 15,078,256$ (399,726)$ 97.4% 14,926,074$

EXCESS/(DEFICIT) -$ (771,946)$ 8,169$ 655,169$ -$

KEY TRENDS

Resources Expenditures

Budget Amendments: The following amendments were approved

by City Council: Ordinance #15-12-17-25 for $100,000 for legal

services on December 17, 2015, Ordinance #16-03-17-06 for

$40,000 for legal services on March 16, 2016 and Ordinance #16-06-

16-17 for $100,000 for legal services on June 16, 2016.

Current Fiscal Year, 2015-2016

Property Taxes are received primarily in December & January

and become delinquent February 1st.

Sales Tax - As required by the Government Accounting Standards

Board, sales tax is reported for the month it is collected by the vendor.

September 2016 revenues are remitted to the City in November 2016.

Sales Tax received in September represents July collections.

Recreation revenue - includes special events, facility rentals and

summer camp programs. Summer camp registration starts April 1st.

Franchise Fees - Oncor and Atmos franchise payments represent half

of the total franchise taxes budgeted. Oncor remits payments on a

quarterly basis. Atmos franchise payments are received annually,

typically in January or February.

Transfer Out includes $146,965 from the Fire Department to the

Vehicle Replacement Fund for the future purchases of vehicles and

equipment, $22,150 to the Tech Replacement Fund for the future

purchases of computers, $100,000 to the General Government

Capital Improvement Fund for the Public Safety Communications

Upgrade, $17,508 to the Municipal Court Security Fund for a part-

time bailiff, $50,000 to the General Fund Vehicle & Equipment

Replacement Fund for the future purchases of vehicles and

equipment, $30,000 to the General Capital Improvement Fund for

the Little Elm Training Field and $50,000 to the General Capital

Improvement Fund for the Planning & Development Software.

Transfer In includes $79,994 from the Water/Wastewater Fund for the

HOA Water Contracts and $.58 from the Confiscation Fund to close out

the fund.

107



City of Corinth
Water & Wastewater Fund
Schedule of Revenues & Expenditures - Budget vs Actual (Unaudited)

For the Period Ended September 2016

Prior Year

September Year-to- Sep-15

Budget 2016 Date Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D

FY 2015-16 Actual Actual Variance % of Budget Actual

RESOURCES

Water Charges 6,199,557$ 659,420$ 5,662,493$ (537,064)$ 91.3% 5,517,835$

Wastewater Disposal Charges 4,282,865 365,845 4,308,415 25,550 100.6% 4,308,468

Garbage Revenue 781,000 61,494 735,646 (45,354) 94.2% 677,479

Garbage Sales Tax Revenue 64,000 4,966 59,377 (4,623) 92.8% 52,907

Water Tap Fees 60,000 1,500 61,711 1,711 102.9% 90,100

Wastewater Tap Fees 40,000 1,210 49,940 9,940 124.9% 65,340

Service/Reconnect & Inspection Fees 52,000 4,300 71,731 19,731 137.9% 73,243

Penalties & Late Charges 160,000 15,486 142,718 (17,282) 89.2% 146,914

Investment Interest 6,000 903 7,363 1,363 122.7% 6,996

Credit Card Processing Fees 48,000 5,530 66,238 18,238 138.0% 57,433

Miscellaneous 8,000 103 6,616 (1,384) 82.7% 4,904

Charges for Services 191,569 - 191,569 - 100.0% 144,758

Transfer In - - - - 0.0% -

TOTAL ACTUAL RESOURCES 11,892,991 1,120,757 11,363,816 (529,175) 95.6% 11,146,377

Use of Fund Balance 97,380 - 301,550 204,170 0.0% 713,004

TOTAL RESOURCES 11,990,371$ 1,120,757$ 11,665,366$ (325,005)$ 97.3% 11,859,381$

EXPENDITURES

Wages & Benefits 1,521,486 232,083 1,546,454 24,968 101.6% 1,317,787

Professional Fees 2,130,242 179,790 2,119,044 (11,198) 99.5% 1,930,217

Maintenance & Operations 402,585 47,162 384,255 (18,330) 95.4% 513,590

Supplies 90,886 11,395 74,691 (16,195) 82.2% 105,148

Utilities & Communication 5,373,373 491,588 5,372,011 (1,362) 100.0% 5,140,323

Vehicles/Equipment & Fuel 108,484 14,438 108,435 (49) 100.0% 106,160

Training 12,489 99 10,416 (2,073) 83.4% 11,848

Capital Outlay 66,624 63,707 66,623 (1) 100.0% 37,861

Debt Service 1,144,695 - 1,139,315 (5,380) 99.5% 1,136,250

Charges for Services 710,627 - 710,627 - 100.0% 678,428

Transfer Out 428,880 (411,969) 133,494 (295,386) 31.1% 881,770

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11,990,371$ 628,294$ 11,665,366$ (325,005)$ 97.3% 11,859,381$

EXCESS/(DEFICIT) -$ 492,463$ -$ -$ -$

KEY TRENDS

Current Fiscal Year, 2015-2016

Resources
Operating revenues are determined by the water and

wastewater rates, as well as, the volume of water sold and

wastewater treated. These revenues are highly influenced by

weather patterns.

Expenditures
Operating expenses are dominated by contractual payments for 1) the purchase of

water for resale and City use from the Upper Trinity Regional Water District; 2)

wastewater treatment from Upper Trinity Regional Water District and the City of

Denton.

Debt Service payments are processed in February and August.

Transfer Out includes $79,994 to the General Fund for the homeowner's association

water credits, $50,000 contribution to the Utility Meter Replacement Fund for the future

purchases of water taps and meters and $3,500 to the Tech Replacement Fund for the

future purchases of computers.

Budget Amendment was approved by City Council on December 3, 2015 for $40,289

for the Brookshire Run sewer line replacement, Ord# 15-12-03-24.

Water and Wastewater Disposal Charges : The FY 2015-

16 budget incorporates the second year of the adopted three

year rate structure for water and wastewater services, as

adopted by ordinance in May 2014.

Going into the summer months, water charges were below

budget by 37%.Typically water usage increases during the

summer due to the higher temperatures and less rainfall.

However, the summer of 2016 received on average 4 inches

compared to the prior summer's average of 2 inches.

Additionally, the average temperature was 1.35% lower than

the prior summer. These variables resulted in less water

usage by the citizens, causing water charges revenues to be

below budget.

108



City of Corinth
Storm Water Utility Fund
Schedule of Revenues & Expenditures - Budget vs Actual (Unaudited)

For the Period Ended September 2016

Prior Year

September Year-to- Sep-15

Budget 2016 Date Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D

FY 2015-16 Actual Actual Variance % of Budget Actual

RESOURCES

Storm Water Utility Fee 680,000$ 58,732$ 695,050$ 15,050$ 102.2% 686,296$

Investment Interest 600 411 2,720 2,120 453.3% 418

Miscellaneous - - 8,733 8,733 0.0% 7,023

Transfers - - - - 0.0% -

TOTAL ACTUAL RESOURCES 680,600 59,143 706,503 25,903 103.8% 693,736

Use of Fund Balance 133,000 - - (133,000) 0.0% -

TOTAL RESOURCES 813,600$ 59,143$ 706,503$ (107,097)$ 86.8% 693,736$

EXPENDITURES

Wages & Benefits 165,884$ 9,788$ 118,075$ (47,809)$ 71.2% 157,683$

Professional Fees 132,259 9,790 52,518 (79,741) 39.7% 29,076

Maintenance & Operations 26,140 997 7,323 (18,817) 28.0% 12,182

Supplies 11,555 639 5,600 (5,955) 48.5% 2,750

Utilities & Communication 7,110 677 6,004 (1,106) 84.4% 5,945

Vehicles/Equipment & Fuel 23,506 1,636 9,377 (14,129) 39.9% 12,636

Training 1,100 - - (1,100) 0.0% 350

Capital Outlay 133,000 - 38,587 (94,413) 29.0% -

Debt Service 195,278 - 195,277 (1) 100.0% 193,999

Charges for Service 92,518 - 92,518 - 100.0% 107,733

Transfer Out 25,250 - 25,250 - 100.0% 138,424

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 813,600$ 23,528$ 550,530$ (263,070)$ 67.7% 660,778$

EXCESS/(DEFICIT) -$ 35,615$ 155,973$ 155,973$ 32,958$

KEY TRENDS

Resources Expenditures

Debt Service payments are processed in February and August.

Current Fiscal Year, 2015-2016

Investment Interest - The budget for investment interest is based on

prior year trends. Interest rates have been on the rise. As a result,

funds are being invested at a higher rate than budgeted. Transfer Out includes $25,000 annual contribution to the Vehicle

Replacement Fund for future purchases of vehicles and equipment and

$250 to the Tech Replacement Fund for the future purchases of computers.

109



City of Corinth
Street Maintenance Sales Tax Fund
Schedule of Revenues & Expenditures - Budget vs Actual (Unaudited)

For the Period Ended September 2016

Prior Year

September Year-to- Sep-15

Budget 2016 Date Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D

FY 2015-16 Actual Actual Variance % of Budget Actual

RESOURCES
Sales Tax (.25¢) 305,576$ 86,582$ 339,725$ 34,149$ 111.2% 318,430$

Interest 1,000 361 2,302 1,302 230.2% 932

Miscellaneous Income - - - - 0.0% -

TOTAL ACTUAL RESOURCES 306,576 86,944 342,027 35,451 111.6% 319,361

Use of Fund Balance - - - - 0.0% -

TOTAL RESOURCES 306,576$ 86,944$ 342,027$ 35,451$ 111.6% 319,361$

EXPENDITURES
Professional Services -$ -$ -$ -$ 0.0% -$
Maintenance & Operations 150,000 8,522 123,697 (26,303) 82.5% 95,664
Capital Outlay - - - - 0.0% -
Transfer Out - - - - 0.0% 209,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 150,000$ 8,522$ 123,697$ (26,303)$ 82.5% 304,664$

EXCESS/(DEFICIT) 156,576$ 78,422$ 218,330$ 61,754$ 14,698$

KEY TRENDS

Resources Expenditures
Sales Tax - As required by the Government Accounting Standards Board,

sales tax is reported for the month it is collected by the vendor.

September 2016 revenues are remitted to the City in November 2016.

Current Fiscal Year, 2015-2016

Maintenance & Operations - The budget includes funding for

miscellaneous paving projects.

110



City of Corinth
Crime Control & Prevention Sales Tax Fund
Schedule of Revenues & Expenditures - Budget vs Actual (Unaudited)

For the Period Ended September 2016

Prior Year

September Year-to- Sep-15
Budget 2016 Date Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D

FY 2015-16 Actual Actual Variance % of Budget Actual

RESOURCES
Sales Tax (.25¢) 264,037$ 76,441$ 308,630$ 44,593$ 116.9% 281,612$
Investment Interest 180 63 689 509 382.8% 149

TOTAL ACTUAL RESOURCES 264,217 76,504 309,320 45,103 117.1% 281,761

Use of Fund Balance 51,078 - - (51,078) 0.00% -

TOTAL RESOURCES 315,295$ 76,504$ 309,320$ (5,975)$ 98.1% 281,761$

EXPENDITURES
Wages & Benefits 160,639$ 16,635$ 124,388$ (36,251)$ 77.4% 195,355$
Maintenance & Operations - - - - 0.00% -
Supplies - - - - 0.00% -
Capital Outlay 154,656 34,599 150,833 (3,823) 97.5% 64,658

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 315,295$ 51,233$ 275,221$ (40,074)$ 87.3% 260,014$

EXCESS/(DEFICIT) -$ 25,271$ 34,099$ 34,099$ 21,748$

KEY TRENDS

Resources Expenditures

Current Fiscal Year, 2015-2016

Sales Tax - As required by the Government Accounting Standards

Board, sales tax is reported for the month it is collected by the vendor.
September 2016 revenues are remitted to the City in November 2016.

Capital Outlay - The budget includes funding for the replacement of two

patrol vehicles, and in-car video and migration.
Investment Interest - Interest rates have been on the rise. As a result,

funds are being invested at a higher rate than budgeted.

Wages & Benefits - The budget reflects funding for two full-time police

officers.

111



City of Corinth
Corinth Economic Development Corporation

Schedule of Revenues & Expenditures - Budget vs Actual (Unaudited)

For the Period Ended September 2016

Prior Year

September Year-to- Sep-15

Budget 2016 Date Y-T-D Y-T-D Y-T-D

FY 2015-16 Actual Actual Variance % of Budget Actual

RESOURCES
Sales Tax (.50¢) 611,131$ 173,159$ 679,427$ 68,296 111.2% 636,837$
Interest Income 250 43 790 540 316.1% 532

Investment Income 7,000 1,741 17,338 10,338 247.7% 10,494

Miscellaneous Income - - - - 0.0% -

Projective Incentive Default - - - - 0.0% -

Transfers In - - - - 0.0% -

TOTAL ACTUAL RESOURCES 618,381 174,943 697,555 79,174 112.8% 647,863

Use of Fund Balance 150,000 - - (150,000) 0.0% -

TOTAL RESOURCES 768,381$ 174,943$ 697,555$ (70,826)$ 90.8% 647,863$

EXPENDITURES

Wages & Benefits 147,746$ 26,840$ 136,391$ (11,355)$ 92.3% 33,440

Professional Fees 102,731 2,524 76,590 (26,141) 74.6% 102,654

Maintenance & Operations 267,891 4,350 169,036 (98,855) 63.1% 33,179

Supplies 9,552 1,706 5,969 (3,583) 62.5% 49

Utilities & Communication 2,910 272 2,791 (119) 95.9% 1,928

Vehicles/Equipment & Fuel - - - - 0.0% -

Training 29,400 255 5,485 (23,915) 18.7% 11,025

Capital Outlay 2,500 - 2,500 - 100.0% 2,659

Debt Service - - - - 0.0% -

Charges for Services 105,401 - 105,401 - 100.0% 92,142

Transfer Out 100,250 50,000 100,250 - 100.0% 50,250

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 768,381$ 85,946$ 604,413$ (163,968)$ 78.7% 327,325$

-$ 88,997$ 93,142$ 93,142$ 320,538$

KEY TRENDS
Resources Expenditures

EXCESS/(DEFICIT)

Current Fiscal Year, 2015-2016

Sales Tax - As required by the Government Accounting Standards

Board, sales tax is reported for the month it is collected by the

vendor. September 2016 revenues are remitted to the City in

November 2016.
Budget Amendment was approved by City Council on February 18,

2016 for $150,000 for the DATCU performance agreement, Ord# 16-02-

18-03.

Transfer Out represents $50,000 to the Park Development Fund and

$250 to the Tech Replacement Fund for the future purchases of

computers.

Investment Interest - Interest rates have been on the rise. As a

result, funds are being invested at a higher rate than budgeted.

112



Section 2
City of Corinth

Monthly Financial Report
September 2016

This section provides additional analysis regarding key revenue sources and economic indicators.

REVENUE & ECONOMIC
ANALYSIS

113

criggs
Text Box
Return to Cover Page



General Fund
General Purpose Sales Tax
PY Comparison and Variance Analysis

2012-13

(Ledger)

Actual

2013-14

(Ledger)

Actual

2014-15

(Ledger)

Actual

2015-16

Budget

2015-16

Cash

Receipts

2015-16

(Ledger)

Actual

Variance,

Actual to

Budget

Variance,

Actual to

Budget %

Variance,

CY to PY

Variance

CY to PY

%
Oct 86,550$ 98,241$ 89,559$ 92,932$ 97,043$ 102,297$ 9,366$ 10.1% 12,738$ 14.2%

Nov 73,806 79,527 79,682 78,862 131,200 89,656 10,794 13.7% 9,974 12.5%

Dec 114,959 136,380 125,795 127,627 102,297 136,322 8,695 6.8% 10,526 8.4%

Jan 87,464 81,662 84,702 86,067 89,656 91,001 4,934 5.7% 6,299 7.4%

Feb 78,813 78,261 95,707 85,344 136,322 95,820 10,476 12.3% 113 0.1%

Mar 108,276 124,813 134,593 124,123 91,001 132,047 7,923 6.4% (2,547) -1.9%

Apr 76,680 90,294 111,426 93,703 95,820 112,463 18,760 20.0% 1,036 0.9%

May 84,440 81,205 90,745 86,766 132,047 100,967 14,202 16.4% 10,223 11.3%

Jun 107,219 111,379 135,097 119,340 112,463 151,980 32,641 27.4% 16,884 12.5%

Jul 84,738 97,860 98,146 94,902 100,967 96,154 1,251 1.3% (1,992) -2.0%

Aug 93,030 91,704 97,043 95,415 151,980 117,263 21,848 22.9% 20,220 20.8%

Sep 145,902 126,992 131,200 137,204 96,154 132,907 (4,297) -3.1% 1,707 1.3%

TOTAL 1,141,878$ 1,198,319$ 1,273,696$ 1,222,285$ 1,336,950$ 1,358,877$ 136,592$ 11.2% 85,181$ 6.7%

KEY TRENDS
Description Analysis

Revenues are deposited into the city's general revenue fund and may

be used for any lawful purpose. (Chapter 321 Tax Code)

As the second largest revenue source to the City's General Fund,

community. The General Fund sales tax revenue reflects a

year-to-date increase in collections compared to the budgeted

amounts.

sales and use taxes are essential to the delivery of services to the

Sales Tax - As required by the Government Accounting Standards

Board, sales tax is reported for the month it is collected by the

vendor. September 2016 revenues are remitted to the City in

November 2016.

The sales tax in Corinth is 8.25% for goods and services sold

Of the 8.25%, the state retains 6.25% and distributes 1% to the

City of Corinth, .25% to the Street Maintenance Sales Tax Fund,

.25% to the Crime Control & Prevention District, and .50% to the

Economic Development Corporation. The State distributes tax

proceeds to local entities within forty days following the period

for which the tax is collected by businesses.

within the City's boundaries. The tax is collected by businesses

making the sale and is remitted to the State Comptroller of Public

Accounts on a monthly, and in some cases, a quarterly basis.

$-

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

$120,000

$140,000

$160,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Monthly Collections Comparison

2012-13 (Ledger) Actual 2013-14 (Ledger) Actual 2014-15 (Ledger) Actual 2015-16 Budget 2015-16 (Ledger) Actual

114



Street Maintenance Sales Tax Fund
Street Maintenance Sales Tax
PY Comparison and Variance Analysis

2012-13

(Ledger)

Actual

2013-14

(Ledger)

Actual

2014-15

(Ledger)

Actual

2015-16

Budget

2015-16

Cash

Receipts

2015-16

(Ledger)

Actual

Variance,

Actual to

Budget

Variance,

Actual to

Budget %

Variance,

CY to PY

Variance

CY to PY

%

Oct 21,638$ 24,561$ 22,390$ 23,233$ 24,261$ 25,575$ 2,342$ 10.1% 3,185$ 14.2%

Nov 18,452 19,882 19,921 19,716 32,801 22,414 2,699 13.7% 2,494 12.5%

Dec 28,740 34,096 31,449 31,907 25,575 34,081 2,174 6.8% 2,632 8.4%

Jan 21,867 20,416 21,176 21,517 22,414 22,751 1,234 5.7% 1,575 7.4%

Feb 19,704 19,566 23,927 21,336 34,081 23,955 2,619 12.3% 28 0.1%

Mar 27,069 31,204 33,649 31,031 22,751 33,012 1,981 6.4% (637) -1.9%

Apr 19,170 22,574 27,857 23,426 23,955 28,116 4,690 20.0% 259 0.9%

May 21,110 20,302 22,687 21,692 33,012 25,242 3,551 16.4% 2,556 11.3%

Jun 26,805 27,845 33,775 29,835 28,116 37,996 8,160 27.4% 4,221 12.5%

Jul 21,185 24,466 24,537 23,726 25,242 24,039 313 1.3% (498) -2.0%

Aug 23,258 22,926 24,261 23,854 37,996 29,316 5,462 22.9% 5,055 20.8%

Sep 36,476 31,749 32,801 34,302 24,039 33,227 (1,074) -3.1% 427 1.3%

TOTAL 285,475$ 299,585$ 318,430$ 305,576$ 334,243$ 339,725$ 34,149$ 11.2% 21,296$ 6.7%

KEY TRENDS
Description Analysis

businesses.

The Street Maintenance sales tax revenue reflects a year-to-date

within the City's boundaries. The tax is collected by businesses increase in collections compared to the budgeted amounts.

making the sale and is remitted to the State Comptroller of Public

The sales tax in Corinth is 8.25% for goods and services sold

Sales Tax - As required by the Government Accounting Standards

Board, sales tax is reported for the month it is collected by the

vendor. September 2016 revenues are remitted to the City in

November 2016.

Funds are deposited into the Street Maintenance Sales Tax Fund

Of the 8.25%, the state retains 6.25% and distributes 1% to the and can only be used to repair and maintain existing city streets.

City of Corinth, .25% to the Street Maintenance Sales Tax Fund, (Chapter 327, Tax Code)

.25% to the Crime Control & Prevention District, and .50% to the

Economic Development Corporation. The State

distributes tax proceeds to local entities within forty days

following the period for which the tax is collected by

Accounts on a monthly, and in some cases, a quarterly basis.

A special election was held on September 11, 2004 for the purpose of adopting

a local 0.25% sales and use tax in Corinth for street maintenance. An election

on May 12, 2012 reauthorized the tax.

$-

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

$40,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Monthly Collections Comparison

2012-13 (Ledger) Actual 2013-14 (Ledger) Actual 2014-15 (Ledger) Actual 2015-16 Budget 2015-16 (Ledger) Actual

115



Crime Control & Prevention District
Crime Control & Prevention Sales Tax
PY Comparison and Variance Analysis

2012-13

(Ledger)

Actual

2013-14

(Ledger)

Actual

2014-15

(Ledger)

Actual

2015-16

Budget

2015-16

Cash

Receipts

2015-16

(Ledger)

Actual

Variance,

Actual to

Budget

Variance,

Actual to

Budget %

Variance,

CY to PY

Variance CY

to PY %

Oct 19,879$ 23,185$ 20,786$ 21,565$ 22,769$ 24,447$ 2,882$ 13.4% 3,661$ 17.6%

Nov 17,509 19,157 19,194 18,841 24,753 21,722 2,881 15.3% 2,528 13.2%

Dec 18,213 25,480 24,840 23,010 24,447 28,612 5,602 24.3% 3,771 15.2%

Jan 25,161 19,384 20,093 21,965 21,722 21,807 (158) -0.7% 1,714 8.5%

Feb 18,996 18,516 23,207 20,415 28,612 23,118 2,703 13.2% (90) -0.4%

Mar 20,260 22,589 25,312 22,914 21,807 27,117 4,203 18.3% 1,806 7.1%

Apr 18,662 21,587 27,052 22,540 23,118 27,466 4,926 21.9% 413 1.5%

May 20,278 19,134 21,974 20,703 27,117 24,586 3,883 18.8% 2,612 11.9%

Jun 20,612 22,187 28,471 23,892 27,466 33,316 9,424 39.4% 4,845 17.0%

Jul 19,999 23,020 23,162 22,295 24,586 22,775 480 2.2% (387) -1.7%

Aug 21,655 21,470 22,769 22,243 33,316 27,841 5,598 25.2% 5,072 22.3%

Sep 22,260 23,151 24,753 23,654 22,775 25,825 2,171 9.2% 1,072 4.3%

TOTAL 243,486$ 258,860$ 281,612$ 264,037$ 302,486$ 308,630$ 44,593$ 16.9% 27,018$ 9.6%

KEY TRENDS

Description Analysis

Section 323.102, Tax Code).

businesses.

The sales tax in Corinth is 8.25% for goods and services sold

within the City's boundaries. The tax is collected by businesses

making the sale and is remitted to the State Comptroller of

The Crime Control & Prevention sales tax revenue reflects a year-to-date increase

in collections compared to the budgeted amounts.

Funds are deposited into the Crime Control & Prevention DistrictAccounts on a monthly, and in some cases, a quarterly basis.

Sales Tax - As required by the Government Accounting

Standards Board, sales tax is reported for the month it is

collected by the vendor. September 2016 revenues are

remitted to the City in November 2016.

Fund and may be used to finance a wide variety of crime control and

City of Corinth, .25% to the Street Maintenance Sales Tax Fund, prevention programs (Chapter 363, Local Government Code,

.25% to the Crime Control & Prevention District, and .50% to the

Economic Development Corporation. The State distributes tax

distributes tax proceeds to local entities within forty days

following the period for which the tax is collected by

Of the 8.25%, the state retains 6.25% and distributes 1% to the

A special election was held on September 11, 2004 for the purpose of adopting a

local 0.25% sales and use tax in Corinth for crime control and prevention. An

election on May 10, 2014 reauthorized the dedicated sales tax for five additional

years.

$-

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Monthly Collections Comparison

2012-13 (Ledger) Actual 2013-14 (Ledger) Actual 2014-15 (Ledger) Actual 2015-16 Budget 2015-16 (Ledger) Actual

116



Corinth Economic Development Corporation
Economic Development Sales Tax
PY Comparison and Variance Analysis

2012-13

(Ledger)

Actual

2013-14

(Ledger)

Actual

2014-15

(Ledger)

Actual

2015-16

Budget

2015-16

Cash

Receipts

2015-16

(Ledger)

Actual

Variance,

Actual to

Budget

Variance,

Actual to

Budget %

Variance,

CY to PY

Variance

CY to PY %

Oct 43,274$ 49,120$ 44,779$ 46,465$ 48,521$ 51,148$ 4,683$ 10.1% 6,369$ 14.2%

Nov 36,902 39,763 39,840 39,430 65,599 44,827 5,397 13.7% 4,987 12.5%

Dec 57,479 68,189 62,897 63,812 51,148 68,160 4,348 6.8% 5,263 8.4%

Jan 43,731 40,830 42,350 43,033 44,827 45,500 2,467 5.7% 3,150 7.4%

Feb 39,406 39,130 47,853 42,671 68,160 47,909 5,238 12.3% 56 0.1%

Mar 54,137 62,405 67,295 62,060 45,500 66,022 3,962 6.4% (1,273) -1.9%

Apr 38,339 45,146 55,712 46,851 47,909 56,230 9,380 20.0% 518 0.9%

May 42,219 40,602 45,372 43,382 66,022 50,483 7,101 16.4% 5,111 11.3%

Jun 53,609 55,689 67,547 59,669 56,230 75,989 16,320 27.4% 8,442 12.5%

Jul 42,368 48,929 49,072 47,450 50,483 48,076 626 1.3% (996) -2.0%

Aug 46,514 45,851 48,521 47,707 75,989 58,630 10,924 22.9% 10,110 20.8%

Sep 72,950 63,495 65,599 68,601 48,076 66,452 (2,148) -3.1% 853 1.3%

TOTAL 570,929$ 599,149$ 636,837$ 611,131$ 668,463$ 679,427$ 68,296$ 11.2% 42,590$ 6.7%

-$ -$ -$ -$

KEY TRENDS
Description Analysis

and business development. (Tex.Rev.Civ.St. art 5190.6-the

Development Corporation Act of 1979).

businesses.

distributes tax proceeds to local entities within forty days

following the period for which the tax is collected by

Accounts on a monthly, and in some cases, a quarterly basis.

Sales Tax - As required by the Government Accounting Standards

Board, sales tax is reported for the month it is collected by the

vendor. September 2016 revenues are remitted to the City in

November 2016.

The sales tax in Corinth is 8.25% for goods and services sold

.25% to the Crime Control & Prevention District, and .50% to the

Economic Development Corporation. The State

The EDC sales tax revenue reflects a year-to-date

within the City's boundaries. The tax is collected by businesses increase in collections compared to the budgeted amounts.

making the sale and is remitted to the State Comptroller of Public
Revenues are deposited into the Economic Development Corporation

Of the 8.25%, the state retains 6.25% and distributes 1% to the Fund and must be used on behalf of the city in carrying out

City of Corinth, .25% to the Street Maintenance Sales Tax Fund, programs related to a wide variety of projects including public parks

$-

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

$70,000

$80,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Monthly Collections Comparison

2012-13 (Ledger) Actual 2013-14 (Ledger) Actual 2014-15 (Ledger) Actual 2015-16 Budget 2015-16 (Ledger) Actual

117



Hotel Occupancy Tax Collection Report
Comfort Inn & Suites
For the Period Ended September 2016

Total
Total Less Taxable Taxable Total City Tax %

Occupancy Gross Exemptions Revenues Revenues City Tax Collected Date Change City Tax Collected
Rate Sales & Allowances Reported X 7% Due FY 2015-16 Received CY to PY FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14

Oct 71% 95,242$ -$ 95,242$ 6,667$ 6,667$ 6,667$ 11/23/2015 27.5% 5,230$ 3,434$
Nov 61% 78,036 - 78,036 5,463 5,463 5,463 12/21/2015 13.8% 4,802 3,933
Dec 54% 73,073 - 73,073 5,115 5,115 5,115 1/19/2016 22.0% 4,192 3,234
Jan 53% 69,866 - 69,866 4,891 4,891 4,891 2/22/2016 0.8% 4,850 3,350
Feb 68% 81,595 - 81,595 5,712 5,712 5,712 3/21/2016 14.6% 4,985 3,227
Mar 73% 100,039 - 100,039 7,003 7,003 7,003 4/19/2016 8.7% 6,445 4,294
Apr 80% 112,029 2,790 109,239 7,647 7,647 7,647 5/20/2016 24.7% 6,130 4,741
May 70% 100,112 239 99,873 6,991 6,991 6,991 6/21/2016 8.0% 6,471 4,114
Jun (1) 79% 113,848 3,112 110,736 7,752 7,752 7,699 7/18/2016 28.1% 6,008 5,481
Jul 86% 114,084 180 113,903 7,973 7,973 7,973 8/22/2016 11.8% 7,129 5,461
Aug (2) 86% 105,293 2,475 102,818 7,197 7,197 7,216 9/19/2016 19.9% 6,018 4,373
Sep 76% 99,838 5,586 94,252 6,598 6,598 6,631 10/19/2016 19.0% 5,573 4,800
TOTALS 1,143,055$ 14,382$ 1,128,673$ 79,007$ 79,007$ 79,007$ 67,833$ 50,441$

(1) Exemption report provided by management differs from the exemptions claimed. Difference of $52.04 is owed by Management. Paid 09/19/2016.

(2) Exemption report provided by management differs from the exemptions claimed. Difference of $33.60 is owed by Management. Paid 10/19/2016.

#REF! #REF! #REF! #REF!

KEY TRENDS
Description Analysis

The Comfort Inn & Suites, the City's first hotel opened in March 2009.

day of the month for the previous months collections.

The City's Hotel Occupancy Tax is levied at 7% of room rental rates.
City Ordinance 08-06-05-15 mandates that hotel occupancy
taxes are due and payable to the City on or before the 20th

Hotel Tax Revenues increased $11,174 or 16.5% over prior year
collections.

$-

$1,000

$2,000

$3,000

$4,000

$5,000

$6,000

$7,000

$8,000

$9,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun (1) Jul Aug (2) Sep

Monthly Hotel Tax Collection

2013-14 City Tax Collected 2014-15 City Tax Collected 2015-16 City Tax Collected

118



General Fund
Property Tax
PY Comparison and Variance Analysis

2012-13

Actual

2013-14

Actual

2014-15

Actual

2015-16

Budget

2015-16

Actual

Variance,

Actual to

Budget

Variance,

Actual to

Budget %

Variance, CY

to PY

Variance

CY to PY

%
Oct 122,374$ 105,024$ 102,508$ 119,724$ 74,226$ (45,497)$ -38.0% (28,281)$ -27.6%

Nov 216,914 200,802 263,699 245,956 277,233 31,278 12.7% 13,534 5.1%

Dec 3,718,646 3,851,761 4,201,374 4,255,666 4,396,109 140,443 3.3% 194,734 4.6%

Jan 1,698,459 1,746,065 1,780,466 1,890,980 1,588,480 (302,499) -16.0% (191,986) -10.8%

Feb 498,231 532,039 457,322 539,473 729,582 190,109 35.2% 272,261 59.5%

Mar 55,276 63,459 69,529 67,978 72,713 4,735 7.0% 3,183 4.6%

Apr 44,244 30,033 26,041 36,568 13,588 (22,980) -62.8% (12,453) -47.8%

May 38,152 26,830 24,927 32,730 25,310 (7,420) -22.7% 383 1.5%

Jun 12,242 10,417 19,975 15,309 16,432 1,123 7.3% (3,542) -17.7%

Jul 25,669 15,269 16,617 20,950 30,395 9,445 45.1% 13,778 82.9%

Aug 3,567 6,478 1,671 4,283 4,843 559 13.1% 3,172 189.8%

Sep 3,300 4,908 800 3,308 8,170 4,862 147.0% 7,370 921.1%

TOTAL 6,437,073$ 6,593,085$ 6,964,929$ 7,232,923$ 7,237,081$ 4,158$ 0.1% 272,153$ 3.9%

KEY TRENDS
Description: Analysis

remits payment to the city on a monthly basis.
collected by the Denton County Tax Office. Denton County

The city estimates 100% collection rate. The majority of

taxes are collected in December and January.
The ad valorem (property tax) accounts for the largest

source of revenue for the General Fund. Property tax is

dependent on two variables: appraised value and the tax rate.

The property tax rate is .58489 per $100 valuation and is

$-

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

$3,500,000

$4,000,000

$4,500,000

$5,000,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Monthly Collections Comparison

2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Actual 2014-15 Actual 2015-16 Budget 2015-16 Actual

119



Water/Wastewater Fund
Water Charges
PY Comparison and Variance Analysis

2012-13

Actual

2013-14

Actual

2014-15

Actual

2015-16

Budget

2015-16

Actual

Variance,

Actual to

Budget

Variance,

Actual to

Budget %

Variance, CY

to PY

Variance

CY to PY

%
Oct 679,297$ 614,673$ 602,147$ 699,480$ 700,252$ 772$ 0.1% 98,105$ 16.3%

Nov 500,095 407,473 471,595 508,018 510,370 2,351 0.5% 38,775 8.2%

Dec 418,482 337,082 356,312 409,245 331,747 (77,498) -18.9% (24,565) -6.9%

Jan 373,224 160,230 287,240 298,902 308,329 9,427 3.2% 21,089 7.3%

Feb 313,617 307,603 357,213 361,874 340,963 (20,911) -5.8% (16,249) -4.5%

Mar 315,252 322,897 286,730 341,995 314,604 (27,391) -8.0% 27,874 9.7%

Apr 383,770 361,654 325,454 395,258 393,923 (1,335) -0.3% 68,468 21.0%

May 424,552 428,107 321,967 433,909 401,414 (32,495) -7.5% 79,448 24.7%

Jun 501,833 522,699 348,080 507,210 381,423 (125,787) -24.8% 33,342 9.6%

Jul 618,180 573,401 462,517 610,005 549,310 (60,694) -9.9% 86,793 18.8%

Aug 703,302 596,486 829,134 785,706 770,738 (14,969) -1.9% (58,396) -7.0%

Sep 749,111 676,958 869,445 847,953 659,420 (188,533) -22.2% (210,025) -24.2%

TOTAL 5,980,715$ 5,309,263$ 5,517,835$ 6,199,557$ 5,662,493$ (537,064)$ -8.7% 144,658$ 2.6%

KEY TRENDS
Description: Analysis
Water charges are billed on a monthly basis in two billing cycles. Citizens are

billed on the 1st and 15 of every month based on their meter rate, as well as,

the volume of water used. This revenue is highly influenced by weather

patterns. Hot, dry summers result in high water sales. The summer of 2016

received on average 4 inches compared to the prior summer's average of 2

inches. Additionally, the average temperate was 1.35% lower than the prior

summer. These variables resulted in less water usage by the citizens,

causing water charges revenues to be below budget.

The FY 2015-16 budget incorporates the second year of the

adopted three year rate structure for water and wastewater services

as adopted by ordinance in May 2014.

$-

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

$800,000

$900,000

$1,000,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Monthly Collections Comparison

2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Actual 2014-15 Actual 2015-16 Budget 2015-16 Actual

120



Water/Wastewater Fund
Sewer Charges
PY Comparison and Variance Analysis

2012-13

Actual

2013-14

Actual

2014-15

Actual

2015-16

Budget

2015-16

Actual

Variance,

Actual to

Budget

Variance,

Actual to

Budget %

Variance, CY

to PY

Variance

CY to PY

%
Oct 375,723$ 375,215$ 367,800$ 369,645$ 362,732$ (6,913)$ -1.9% (5,068)$ -1.4%

Nov 370,351 372,906 365,711 366,443 360,374 (6,069) -1.7% (5,337) -1.5%

Dec 360,854 372,349 360,211 361,375 352,814 (8,561) -2.4% (7,397) -2.1%

Jan 362,572 197,110 360,066 302,645 353,400 50,756 16.8% (6,665) -1.9%

Feb 357,955 374,894 371,143 364,925 359,581 (5,344) -1.5% (11,562) -3.1%

Mar 366,098 358,638 348,288 354,478 354,410 (67) 0.0% 6,122 1.8%

Apr 371,364 362,039 354,345 359,330 355,795 (3,535) -1.0% 1,449 0.4%

May 370,439 360,761 351,056 357,510 358,338 828 0.2% 7,282 2.1%

Jun 371,471 361,694 353,604 359,002 359,214 212 0.1% 5,609 1.6%

Jul 373,365 364,636 354,269 360,826 360,775 (51) 0.0% 6,507 1.8%

Aug 375,481 362,956 362,958 363,818 365,137 1,318 0.4% 2,179 0.6%

Sep 379,460 360,225 359,019 362,871 365,845 2,974 0.8% 6,826 1.9%

TOTAL 4,435,132$ 4,223,423$ 4,308,469$ 4,282,865$ 4,308,415$ 25,550$ 0.6% (54)$ 0.0%

KEY TRENDS
Description: Analysis

The FY 2015-16 budget incorporates the second year of the

adopted three year rate structure for water and wastewater services

as adopted by ordinance in May 2014.

that takes the lowest three months of water consumption to

determine a baseline wastewater treatment demand.

Wastewater charges are determined by wastewater rates &

volume of wastewater treated. Residential wastewater

treatment charges are determined by a winter average process

$-

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

$200,000

$250,000

$300,000

$350,000

$400,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Monthly Collections Comparison

2012-13 Actual 2013-14 Actual 2014-15 Actual 2015-16 Budget 2015-16 Actual

121



Section 3
City of Corinth

Monthly Financial Report
September 2016

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This section contains a high level fund balance summary for all city funds. The report provides year-to-date revenues,
expenditures and transfers.

122

criggs
Text Box
Return to Cover Page



City of Corinth
Fund Balance Summary
For the Period Ended September 2016

Audited

Appropriable Fund

Balance Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Transfers

In/(Out)

Audited Fund

Balance

9/30/15 Revenue Expense 9/30/16

OPERATING FUNDS

100 General Fund (1) 3,726,939$ 15,006,430$ 14,661,633$ (336,628)$ 3,735,108$

110 Water/Wastewater Operations (2) 3,065,462 11,363,816 11,531,872 (133,494) 2,763,912

120 Storm Water Utility (3) 539,738 706,503 525,280 (25,250) 695,711

130 Economic Development Corporation (4) 3,088,939 697,555 504,163 (100,250) 3,182,081

131 Crime Control & Prevention 217,437 309,320 275,221 - 251,536

132 Street Maintenance Sales Tax 481,393 342,027 123,697 - 699,723

11,119,907$ 28,425,650$ 27,621,865$ (595,622)$ 11,328,070$

RESERVE FUNDS

200 General Debt Service Fund (5) 224,419$ 3,572,841$ 3,456,818$ 6,812$ 347,253$

224,419$ 3,572,841$ 3,456,818$ 6,812$ 347,253$

BOND/CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

193 Governmental Capital Projects (6) 1,741,304$ 42,833$ 174,778$ 230,000$ 1,839,359$

194 Water/Wastewater Projects 729,222 3,040 352,140 - 380,123

702 2004 Tax Note 15,519 51 15,570 - -

703 2007 C.O. - Streets (7) 392,129 350 729,208 467,467 130,738

704 2007 C.O. - Tech (8) 3,699 14 - (3,713) -

705 2010 C.O. - Fire (9) 25,038 85 18,311 (6,812) -

706 2016 C.O. - General Fund Capital Projects - 15,269,849 3,943,332 - 11,326,517

707 2016 Public Prop. (LCFD) - 661,695 661,695 - -

800 2007 C.O. - Water Projects (10) 13,424 56 - (13,479) -

801 2007 C.O. - Wastewater Projects (11) 14,077 51 - (14,129) -

802 2007 C.O. - Drainage (12) 316,552 140,708 21,115 (436,145) -

3,250,965$ 16,118,732$ 5,916,149$ 223,188$ 13,676,737$

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

300 General Vehicle & Equip Replacement (13) 55,088$ 26,694$ 90,105$ 50,000$ 41,677$

301 LCFD Vehicle & Equip Replacement (14) 89,669 130,174 167,358 146,965 199,450

302 Tech Replacement Fund (15) 15,797 1,579 13,779 26,150 29,747

310 Utility Vehicle & Equip Replacement (16) 311,058 11,730 23,565 25,000 324,223

311 Utility Meter Replacement Fund (17) 878,506 6,902 50,000 50,000 885,408

320 Insurance Claims and Risk Fund 237,327 44,015 56,233 - 225,109

1,587,445$ 221,094$ 401,039$ 298,115$ 1,705,614$

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUNDS

400 Hotel-Motel Tax 132,029$ 79,620$ 41,551$ -$ 170,098$

401 Keep Corinth Beautiful 28,482 6,607 10,739 - 24,350

404 County Child Safety Program 21,296 29,367 24,164 - 26,499

405 Municipal Court Security (18) 26,959 13,066 8,160 17,508 49,373

406 Municipal Court Technology 34,008 17,295 21,725 - 29,578

420 Police Leose Fund 3,956 2,647 706 - 5,898

421 Police Donations 13,823 12,802 24,591 - 2,033

422 Police Confiscation - State 3,905 1 3,906 - 0

423 Police Confiscation - Federal (19) 288 - 287 (1) (0)

451 Parks Development (20) 133,174 54,622 - 50,000 237,797

452 Community Park Improvement 22,323 10,409 20,682 - 12,050

453 Tree Mitigation Fund - 184,682 24,040 - 160,642

460 Fire Donations 21,246 11,215 2,315 - 30,146

441,490$ 422,332$ 182,866$ 67,507$ 748,464$

GRANT FUNDS

522 Bullet Proof Vest Grant 1,442$ 3,152$ 2,700$ -$ 1,895$

523 Tx Dot Grant Fund 8,375 21 8,397 - 0

9,818$ 3,174$ 11,097$ -$ 1,895$

IMPACT FEE & ESCROW FUNDS

610 Water Impact Fees 315,104$ 77,086$ 73,324$ -$ 318,865$

611 Wastewater Impact Fees 240,508 70,752 73,317 - 237,944

620 Storm Drainage Impact Fees 90,353 340 - - 90,693

630 Roadway Impact Fees 210,714 60,141 21,932 - 248,923

699 Street Escrow 151,663 453 - - 152,115

1,008,342$ 208,771$ 168,573$ -$ 1,048,540$

TOTAL ALL FUNDS 17,642,385$ 48,972,594$ 37,758,407$ -$ 28,856,572$

123



City of Corinth
Fund Balance Summary
For the Period Ended September 2016

TRANSFER IN/(OUT) EXPLANATIONS:

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5) The transfer in of $6,812 from the 2010 CO Fire Fund to close out the fund.

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9) The transfer out of $6,812 to the Debt Service Fund to close out the fund.

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

(17)

(18)

(19) The transfer out of $.58 to the General Fund to close out the Fund.

(20)

The transfer in of $100,000 from the General Fund for the Public Safety Communications Systems upgrade. The $30,000 from the General Fund for the Little

Elm Training Field. The $50,000 from the General Fund and the $50,000 from EDC for the Planning & Development Software.

The transfer in of $17,508 from the General Fund for a part-time bailiff.

The transfer in of $50,000 from the Economic Development Fund for park improvements.

The transfer in of $22,150 from the General Fund, $3,500 from the Water/Wastewater Fund, $250 from the Storm Drainage Fund and $250 from the Economic

Development Fund represents the annual contribution for the future purchases of computers.

The transfer in of $25,000 represent the annual contribution from the Storm Drainage Fund for the future purchase of vehicles and equipment.

The transfer in of $50,000 from the Water/Wastewater Fund for the future purchase of water taps and meters.

The transfer in of $50,000 from the General Fund for the future purchase of vehicles and equipment.

The transfer in of $146,965 represents the annual contribution from the Fire Department for the future purchase of vehicles and equipment.

The transfer in of $326,014 from the 2007 CO Drainage Fund, $13,479 from the 2007 CO Water Project Fund, $134 from the 2007 CO Tech Fund, and $516

from the 2007 CO Wastewater Project Fund for the Shady Rest project and the Lake Sharon extension project. The $3,579 from the 2007 CO Tech Fund, the

$13,613 from the 2007 CO Wastewater Project Fund and $110,131 from the 2007 CO Drainage Fund to consolidate the 2007 CIP Funds.

The transfer out of $13,479 to the 2007 CO Street fund for the Lake Sharon extension project.

The transfer out of $134 and $3,579 to the 2007 CO Street fund for the Lake Sharon extension project and to consolidate the 2007 CIP Funds.

The transfer out of $516 and $13,613 to the 2007 CO Street fund for the Lake Sharon extension project and to consolidate the 2007 CIP Funds.

The transfer out of $326,014 and $110,131 to the 2007 CO Street fund for the Shady Rest project and the Lake Sharon extension project and to consolidate the

2007 CIP Funds.

The transfer out of $79,994 represents the annual allocation to the General Fund for the homeowner's association water contracts. The $50,000 represents the

annual contribution to the Utility Meter Replacement Fund for the future purchases of water taps and meters. The $3,500 represents the annual contribution to

the Tech Replacement Fund for the future purchases of computers.

The transfer out of $25,000 to the Vehicle Replacement Fund for the future purchase of vehicles and equipment. The $250 represents the annual contribution to

the Tech Replacement Fund for the future purchases of computers.

The transfer in of $79,994 represents the annual contribution the Water/Wastewater Fund for the homeowners association water contracts and $.58 from the

Confiscation Fund to close out the fund. The transfer out of $100,000 to the General Capital Projects Fund for the Public Safety Communications Systems

upgrade. The $146,965 to LCFD Vehicle and Equipment Fund for the future purchases of vehicles and equipment. The $22,150 to the Technology Replacement

Fund for the future purchases of computers. The $50,000 to the General Fund Vehicle & Replacement Fund for the future purchases of vehicles and equipment.

The $17,508 to the Municipal Court Security Fund for a part-time bailiff. The $30,000 to the General Capital Projects Fund for the Little Elm Training Field. the

$50,000 to the General Capital Projects Fund for the Planing & Development Software.

The transfer out of $50,000 to the Parks Development Fund for park improvements. The $250 represents the annual contribution to the Tech Replacement Fund

for the future purchases of computers. The $50,000 to the General Capital Projects Fund for the Planning & Development Software.

124



Section 4
City of Corinth

Monthly Financial Report
September 2016

Capital Improvement Report

This section contains a high level expenditure summary for all CIP projects. The report contains a fund summary and
a project summary that provides revenues, current and historical expenditures, and available fund balance.

125

criggs
Text Box
Return to Cover Page



As of September 30, 2016

REVENUE TOTAL

09/30/13 09/30/14 09/30/15 09/30/16 REVENUES

TRANSFER IN 1,806,850$ 1,906,500$ 685,000$ 230,000$ 4,628,350

AID IN CONSTRUCTION - - - 31,059 31,059

INTEREST REVENUE 5,689 10,096 9,058 11,774 36,618
TOTAL BOND REVENUES 1,812,539$ 1,916,596$ 694,058$ 272,833$ 4,696,027$

EXPENDITURES
EXPENDITURES

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL BUDGET OPERATING PROJECT TOTAL PRIOR TOTAL AVAILABLE

PROJECT NAME NUMBER BUDGET ADJ AID IN CONST TOTAL ENCUM YEARS 09/30/16 OBLIGATIONS BUDGET

Projects in Progress

PUBLIC SAFETY

COMMUNICATION SYSTEM

UPGRADE 2200 300,000$ 300,000$ -$ 600,000$ 2,905$ 497,835$ 79,634$ 580,374$ 19,626$

LAKE SHARON EXTENSION 4800 1,500,000 38,871 - 1,538,871 17,773 276,655 53,884 348,312 1,190,559

I-35 AESTHESTICS &

ENTRYWAY FEATURES 4802 425,000 - - 425,000 - - - - 425,000

LAKE CITIES/LITTLE ELM

JOINT FIRE TRAINING FIELD 2301 - - 60,000 60,000 - - 14,185 14,185 45,815

PLANNING &

DEVELOPMENT SOFTWARE 1400 - - 100,000 100,000 - - - - 100,000

Completed Projects

COMMUNITY PARK

IMPROVEMENTS 5600 806,845$ (3,648)$ 61,500$ 864,698$ - 864,698$ -$ 864,698$ -

TOWER RIDGE 4801 850,000 (54,874) 195,000 990,126 - 990,126 - 990,126 -

PUBLIC SAFETY FACILITY 2000 60,000 19,651 - 79,651 - 52,576 27,075 79,651 -

3,941,845$ 300,000 416,500$ 4,658,345$ 20,678$ 2,681,890$ 174,778$ 2,877,345$ 1,781,000$

TOTAL REVENUES TO DATE 4,696,027$ UNALLOCATED INTEREST 36,618$

ADJUSTED BUDGET 4,658,345 UNALLOCATED FUNDS 1,064
AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE 37,681$ AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE 37,681$

FUND 193 - GENERAL FUND CAPITAL PROJECTS

General Fund Capital 9.30.16.xls

Prepared by C. Rodriguez

12/2/2016

8:54 AM

126



As of September 30, 2016

EXPENDITURES
EXPENDITURES

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL BUDGET ADJUSTED TOTAL PRIOR TOTAL AVAILABLE

PROJECT NAME NUMBER BUDGET ADJ BUDGET ENCUM YEARS 09/30/16 OBLIGATIONS BUDGET

Projects in Progress
REPAINT ELEVATED WATER

STORAGE TANK 8801 450,000 - 450,000 14,649 36,502 352,140$ 403,291 46,709
SANITARY SEWER REHAB

AMITY VILLAGE - 307,267 307,267 - - - - 307,267

Projects Completed

12" WATERLINE ON SHADY

SHORES 8896 570,000 (110,830) 459,170 - 459,170 - 459,170 -

SANITARY SEWER REHAB

CORINTH SHORES 8897 500,000 (127,317) 372,683 - 372,683 - 372,683 -

CONSTRUCTION OF

BOOSTER PUMP STATION 8800 136,497 (54,820) 81,677 - 81,677 - 81,677 -
30" SANITARY SEWER

THROUGH OAKMONT 8800 450,000 (14,300) 435,700 - 435,700 - 435,700 -

2,106,497$ -$ 2,106,497$ 14,649$ 1,385,733$ 352,140$ 1,752,521$ 353,976$

TOTAL REVENUES TO DATE 2,117,995$ UNALLOCATED INTEREST 11,499$

ADJUSTED BUDGET 2,106,497 UNALLOCATED FUNDS -

AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE 11,499$ AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE 11,499$

FUND 194 - WATER/WASTEWATER CAPITAL PROJECTS

water.ww 9.30.16.xls

Prepared by C. Rodriguez

12/2/2016

8:54 AM

127



Purpose:

EXPENDITURES
ECONOMIC

ORIGINAL BUDGET ADJUSTED IMPACT ESCROW AID IN OPERATING DEV. PROJECT TOTAL EXPENDITURES TOTAL AVAILABLE

PROJECTS IN PROGRESS ACCT # BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET FEES FEES CONSTR FUNDS FUNDS TOTAL ENCUM PRIOR YRS 09/30/16 OBLIGATIONS BUDGET

LAKE SHARON EXTENSION 079 -$ 259,914$ 259,914$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 259,914$ -$ -$ 129,464$ 129,464$ 130,450

ISSUANCE COSTS 136,897 (52,620) 76,195 - - - - - 76,195 - 76,195 - 76,195 -

TOTAL 136,897$ 207,294$ 336,109$ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 336,109$ -$ 76,195$ 129,464$ 205,660 130,450$

ECONOMIC

ORIGINAL BUDGET ADJUSTED IMPACT ESCROW AID IN OPERATING DEV. PROJECT TOTAL EXPENDITURES TOTAL AVAILABLE

PROJECTS COMPLETED ACCT # BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS BUDGET FEES FEES CONSTR FUNDS FUNDS TOTAL ENCUM PRIOR YRS 09/30/16 OBLIGATIONS BUDGET

DOBBS ROAD 064 -$ 319,628$ 319,628$ -$ 213,024$ 400,000$ -$ 134,000$ 1,066,652$ -$ 1,066,652$ -$ 1,066,652$ -$

CHURCH ST 070 2,658,768 (1,099,960) 1,558,808 963,032 146,000 - 80,030 - 2,747,870 - 2,747,870 - 2,747,870 -

8" SS NISSAN TRISTEEL 071 600,369 96,264 696,633 - - - 48,400 - 745,033 - 745,033 - 745,033 -

15" SS LYNCHBURG PHASE 1 072 935,600 (308,389) 627,210 330,103 - - 106,200 - 1,063,513 - 1,063,513 - 1,063,513 -

15" SS LYNCHBURG PHASE 2 073 935,600 (892,426) 43,174 - - - 191,174 - 234,348 - 234,348 - 234,348 -

FM 2181 RELOCATIONS 074 4,685,683 (956,680) 3,729,003 409,462 - 28,817 500,000 - 4,667,282 - 4,667,282 - 4,667,282 -

WESTSIDE LS EXPANSION 075 2,664,160 (768,313) 1,895,847 390,325 - - - - 2,286,172 - 2,286,172 - 2,286,172 -

12" WL IH-35 SOUTH
(BURL ST TO WINDRIDGE) 076 269,925 (227,818) 42,107 - - - - - 42,107 - 42,107 - 42,107 -

PARKRIDGE (FM 2181 TO
MEADOWVIEW 077 583,604 370,909 954,513 - 41,285 750,000 60,000 - 1,805,798 - 1,805,798 - 1,805,798 -

LAKE SHARON 078 8,987,486 (1,041,148) 7,946,338 852,934 180,300 - 269,399 109,000 9,357,971 - 9,357,971 - 9,357,971 -
REPLACE TECHNOLOGICAL
INFRASTRUCTURE 079 565,000 125,500 690,500 - - - - - 690,500 - 690,500 - 690,500 -

I-35 UPSTREAM IMPROVEMENTS 081 - 101,000 101,000 - - - - 101,000 - 101,000 - 101,000 -

S. CORINTH STREET 084 - 2,137,686 2,137,686 - - - - - 2,137,686 - 2,137,686 - 2,137,686 -

REHAB 1.5 MG GROUND
STORAGE 085 - 495,513 495,513 - - - - - 495,513 - 495,513 - 495,513 -

1.5 MG GROUND STORAGE
TANK 086 - 1,158,354 1,158,354 - - - 900,000 - 2,058,354 - 2,058,354 - 2,058,354 -

PARKRIDGE DR SOUTH 090 - 292,190 292,190 262,000 - 719,283 280,717 - 1,554,190 - 1,554,190 - 1,554,190 -

SHADY REST LANE 091 - 367,169 367,169 - - 75,000 1,160,000 - 1,602,169 - 981,311 620,858 1,602,169 -

TOWER RIDGE 092 - 114,875 114,875 - - - - - 114,875 - 114,875 - 114,875 -
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
TRACKING 171 60,000 (13,846) 46,154 - - - - - 46,154 - 46,154 - 46,154 -

PLANNING & PERMITING 172 140,000 (8,090) 131,910 - - - - - 131,910 - 131,910 - 131,910 -

PHONE SYSTEM UPGRADE 173 90,000 45,571 135,571 - - - - - 135,571 - 135,571 - 135,571 -

PINNELL POINT DRAINAGE 174 - 108,423 108,423 - - 140,000 - - 248,423 - 248,423 - 248,423 -

SECURITY & FIRE SUPPRESSION 176 66,910 (50,489) 16,421 - - - - - 16,421 - 16,421 - 16,421 -

SECURITY CARD SYSTEM 178 30,000 - 30,000 - - - - - 30,000 - 30,000 - 30,000 -

23,493,103$ 145,924$ 23,639,027$ 3,207,856$ 580,609$ 2,113,100$ 3,595,921$ 243,000$ 33,379,512$ -$ 32,758,654$ 620,858$ 33,379,512 -$

GRAND TOTAL 23,630,000$ 353,218$ 23,975,136$ 3,207,856$ 580,609$ 2,113,100$ 3,595,921$ 243,000$ 33,715,622$ -$ 32,834,849$ 750,323$ 33,585,172$ 130,450

UNALLOCATED INTEREST (16,659)$ TOTAL RESOURCES 33,715,911$

UNALLOCATED BOND PROCEEDS 16,949 UNALLOCATED BOND PROCEEDS -

AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE 289$ PROJECT TOTAL (33,715,622)

AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE 289$

CIP SUMMARY

2007 CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION

As of September 30, 2016

Proceeds from the sale of the Certificates will be used for (i) constructing and improving streets and roads, (ii) constructing , installing improvements to the City's

waterworks and sanitary sewer system, (iii) computer and technology equipment and upgrade.

2007 CIP Revised 9.30.16.xls Prepared C. Rodriguez 12/2/20168:37 AM

128



As of September 30, 2016

Purpose:

EXPENDITURES
EXPENDITURES

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL BUDGET ADJUSTED TOTAL PRIOR TOTAL AVAILABLE

PROJECT NAME NUMBER BUDGET ADJ BUDGET ENCUM YEARS 09/30/16 OBLIGATIONS BUDGET

Projects Completed

RADIO SYSTEM 2300 -$ 17,056$ 17,056$ -$ -$ 17,056$ 17,056$ -$

RESCUE TOOLS 2300 366,515 (35,008) 331,507 - 330,502 1,005 331,507 -

FIRE ENGINE 079 600,000 (10,722) 589,278 - 589,278 - 589,278 -

AMBULANCES 171 400,000 (326) 399,674 - 399,674 - 399,674 -

COMMAND VEHICLES 172 80,000 3,573 83,573 - 83,573 - 83,573 -

THERMAL CAMERA 2300 28,485 - 28,485 - 28,485 - 28,485 -

RADIOS 2300 - 22,822 22,822 - 22,822 - 22,822 -

-
ISSUANCE COSTS/ ADMIN

FEES 25,000 4,283 29,283 - 29,033 250 29,283 -

1,500,000$ 1,677 1,501,677$ -$ 1,483,365$ 18,311$ 1,501,677$ -$

TOTAL REVENUES TO DATE 1,501,677$ UNALLOCATED INTEREST 4,479

ADJUSTED BUDGET 1,501,677 UNALLOCATED BOND PROCEEDS (4,479)
AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE -$ AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE -

FUND 705 - FIRE

2010 CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION

Proceeds from the sale of the Certificates will be used for

(i) purchasing fire equipment and vehicles.

fire 9.30.16.xls

Prepared by C. Rodriguez

2/6/2017

11:42 AM

129



As of September 30, 2016

Purpose:

EXPENDITURES
EXPENDITURES

ACCOUNT ORIGINAL BUDGET OPERATING PROJECT TOTAL TOTAL AVAILABLE

PROJECT NAME NUMBER BUDGET ADJ AID IN CONST TOTAL ENCUM 09/30/16 OBLIGATIONS BUDGET

Projects in Progress

PUBLIC SAFETY FACILITY & FIRE STATION 2000 12,000,000$ -$ -$ 12,000,000$ 645,878$ 3,727,303$ 4,373,181$ 7,626,819$

LAKE SHARON EXTENSION 4800 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000

FACILITY RENOVATIONS - CITY HALL/

FIRE STATION #2 1004 500,000 - - 500,000 - - - 500,000

ISSUANCE COSTS 246,030 - - 246,030 - 216,030 216,030 30,000
15,246,030$ -$ -$ 15,246,030$ 645,878$ 3,943,332$ 4,589,211$ 10,656,819$

TOTAL REVENUES TO DATE 15,269,849$ UNALLOCATED INTEREST 23,820$

ADJUSTED BUDGET 15,246,030 UNALLOCATED FUNDS -

AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE 23,820$ AVAILABLE FUND BALANCE 23,820$

2016 CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION

FUND 706 - GENERAL FUND

Proceeds from the sale of the Certificates will be used for (i) constructing and improving streets, roads, alleys and sidewalks,

and related utility relocation, drainage, signalization, landscaping, lighting and signage; (ii) constructing and equipping

improvements and renovation to City Hall; (iii) acquiring, improving and equipping a public safety facility for the police and

fire departments; (iv) constructing and equipping a new fire station and improvements to existing fire stations; (v)

constructing, acquiring, installing and equipping additions, extensions and improvements to the City's waterworks and sewer

system.

2016 CO General Fund 9.30.16.xls

Prepared by C. Rodriguez

12/6/2016

11:45 AM

130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



    BUSINESS ITEM    8.        
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: Swisher / 35 Retail Site Plan
Submitted For: Fred Gibbs, Director 
Submitted By: Barbara Cubbage, Planning & Development Manager
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on the site plan for Swisher/35 Retail on property legally described as Swisher 35-E Addition, Lot
4, Block A zoned C-2, Commercial in the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas.  This property is located north of
Swisher and south of Burl.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
APPROVAL PROCESS

A recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission regarding the site plan will be presented to City
Council for final approval. 

NOTIFICATION TO PUBLIC

Notification by sign placement, newspaper or written notice is not required for the site plan process related to
building permits or on-site construction / development.  However consideration of the site plan is held in open
meetings for both the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION

Originally this site was the home of Executive Mobile Home Park.  Development of the Swisher-35 E Addition
began with a conveyance plat approved in October 2005 to allow for the sale of a portion of the property.  The final
plat with construction plans was approved by City Council in June 2007 allowing for the development of the
Comfort Inn located on Lot 3.  A final replat and civil construction plans as well as an amended plat were approved
in 2016.    

An approved site plan is required prior to construction for all commercial projects.  Swisher @ I-35 Corinth LP is
the property owner of Lot 4 proposed for Swisher / 35 Retail.  The 6,369 square-foot shell is considered a mini
retail center.  The tenants for this center have not been disclosed yet but the owner is ready to begin construction as
soon as the approvals have been obtained for the site plan and the architectural plans. 

 The site meets all the requirements for the C-2, Commercial Zoning District.

ZONING

The proposed development is within the C-2, Commercial Zoning District.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION

The Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map shows this areas designation to be Commercial and perhaps a bit of
Retail.  The “retail center” use is compatible with the existing land use.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

258



Source of Funding:  No funding is required.

RECOMMENDATION
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION

The Planning and Zoning Commission met on February 27, 2017.  The Commission recommended unanimously
(5-0) to approve the site plan as presented.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends approval of the site plan as presented.

 

Attachments
Swisher 35 Retail Zoning Location 
Swisher 35 Sites 
Site Plan 
Site Plan - Landscape 
Site Plan - Elevations - b_w 
Site Plan - Elevations - Tri 
Site Plan - Elevations Color 
Site Plan - Photometrics 

259



Swisher

35 RetailPope
yesArby'

s
Panda

Express

Comfort
Inn

Albertson's/
Starbucks

Walgreens

35E

R I V E R V I E W D R

F M  2 1 8 1

BURL ST

B R O O K S IDE D R

SPANI S H OA K C I R
W

INDR IDGE  LN

S 
GA

RR
IS

ON
 R

D

Hickory
Creek

Lake
Dallas

CITY OF CORINTH
SWISHER 35 RETAIL

Zoning Map

0 530 1,060265
Feet 260



Panda Express

Arby's

Popeyes

Swisher Retail

Comfort Inn

35E

8201 I-35E

8111 I-35E

8031 I-35E

8001 I-35E

8051 I-35E

8131 I-35E

8161 I-35E

8171 I-35E

8141 I-35E

8151 I-35E

BURL ST

W
INDR IDGE  LN

Lake
Dallas

CITY OF CORINTH
Swisher 35E Retail

LOCATION MAP

0 210 420105
Feet 261

bcubbage
Ellipse



262



A
J (78)

20' LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 B
U

F
F

E
R

LM
G

 (5)

D
B

H
 (11)

LM
G

 (7)

A
J (18)

N
S

H
 (11)

D
Y

H
 (9)

D
Y

H
 (5)

A
J (12)

A
J (27)

E
R

C
 (1)

D
B

H
 (11)

A
J (19)

E
R

C
 (3)A

J (48)

D
B

H
 (26)

LM
G

 (4)

A
J (15)

S
T

O
N

E
 B

E
D

S
T

O
N

E
 B

E
D

D
Y

H
 (5)

A
J (29)

A
J (16)

LM
G

 (5)

D
Y

H
 (8)

LM
G

 (5)

LM
G

 (15)

D
B

H
 (17)

D
B

H
 (24)

A
J (43)

D
B

H
 (9)

P
lant 3' O

.C
. F

rom
E

dge of T
ransform

er

D
A

S
H

E
D

 LIN
E

 D
E

N
O

T
E

S
 A

R
E

A
S

 U
S

E
D

 IN
IN

T
E

R
IO

R
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 LO

T
 LA

N
D

S
C

A
P

IN
G

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
T

 C
A

LC
U

LA
T

IO
N

(1,553 S
.F

. T
O

T
A

L)

S
H

E
E

T
 N

O
:

REV. DATE REVISION DESCRIPTION PROJECT TITLE: PLAN TITLE:

LANDSCAPE PLANSWISHER 35-E LOT 4 Williams Design Group
Land Planning Landscape Architecture

P: (469) 406-9431   E: twilliams@wdgroupinc.com
101 West Louisiana Street, Ste. 203, McKinney, Texas 75069

L1.01

D
A

T
E

:

1-17-2017

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N

R
eq

uire
d # of M

in. 3" C
al.

T
ree

s A
lon

g S
tre

et F
ro

ntage
(F

ro
nta

ge R
oad)

N
um

ber of T
re

es P
ro

vided

1
 per 30'

N
um

b
er of T

re
es R

eq
uired

6

N
um

be
r of S

ite
P

arking S
paces

Interio
r P

a
rking Lot

L
andscaping A

rea R
equ

ired
1

0 s.f. P
e

r S
pace

46

4
60 s.f.

1
,55

3 s.f.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 T
R

E
E

S

S
ym

bol
N

am
e

S
pacing

S
ize

K
ey

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 P
LA

N
T

S

S
ym

bol
N

am
e

S
pacing

S
ize

K
ey

H
olly, D

w
arf B

urford

Ile
x co

rn
uta 'D

w
a

rf B
urfordii'

D
B

H
36"

N
otes

N
o chan

ges sh
all be

 m
a

de to the
 plans, including pla

nt m
aterial typ

e a
nd location w

ithou
t p

rior approval
from

 La
ndscap

e A
rch

ite
ct or O

w
n

er.

A
ll pla

nt m
ateria

l sh
all be

 g
ua

ra
ntee

d fo
r a pe

riod
 o

f 1 ye
ar from

 da
te

 o
f installation com

pletion.  W
ording to

this effect shall b
e include

 in
 C

ontractor's p
roposal.

T
he C

on
tra

cto
r shall n

otify the
 La

ndscap
e A

rch
ite

ct in w
riting o

f discrep
ancies betw

e
en the

 plans and actual
site

 co
nditio

ns prior to com
m

en
cin

g w
ork.  F

ailure to d
o so shall b

e inte
rprete

d a
s the C

on
tracto

r accepting
such

 co
nditions and

 re
spo

nsible
 at no

 ad
dition

al cost to O
w

ne
r, for an

y future adjustm
en

ts that need to be
m

ade.

A
ll w

ork shall be in a
cco

rda
nce

 to
 plans.  A

ny de
fective w

ork sh
all be

 co
rre

cte
d a

t n
o a

dditional cost.

T
he qua

lity o
f the pla

nt m
aterial is sub

ject to the app
roval of the La

ndscap
e A

rch
ite

ct and
 m

ay be rejected
b

efore or after insta
llatio

n.  A
ll plan

t m
a

te
rial m

ust m
e

et a
ll A

m
e

rica
n S

tandard for N
ursery S

tock S
tandards

(A
S

N
S

S
).

M
ino

r field a
dju

stm
ents m

ay be m
ad

e to the location of pla
nt m

aterials by th
e L

and
sca

pe A
rchitect and shall

b
e m

ade
 by th

e C
ontractor at no

 ad
dition

al cost.

A
ll are

as to be sod
ded

 sh
all first be

 tille
d to a

 un
ifo

rm
 dep

th of 4 inch
es in tw

o
, crossin

g d
ire

ctions.  A
fter the

initial tilling ope
ration

, inco
rpo

rate 1
,50

0 p
oun

ds per acre of 10-20-10 fertilize
r o

r a
s specified by a soil test.

A
pply a

m
en

dm
e

nts as sp
ecifie

d b
y a

 soil test.

S
od strips sh

all be
 pulled tigh

tly to
gether in

 a nea
t o

rderly m
anne

r.  D
o

 not o
verlap

 so
d strips and

 do not use
a

ny strips th
at exh

ibit w
eak or th

in soil.

Installed sod
 th

at turns yellow
 sh

all be given
 7 days to reco

ver be
fore it w

ill be
 re

jected
.  R

ep
lace rejected sod

b
y com

p
letely an

d u
niform

ly cutting o
ut are

a to m
ake

 th
e repair.

A
fte

r installation, th
e sod sha

ll be rolled
 in tw

o d
ire

ctions w
ith a roller not w

e
igh

ing
 less tha

n 1
00 lbs. per

squa
re foot.

A
m

en
dm

e
nts sh

all be
 ad

ded
 to

 ea
ch pla

nting pit an
d bed area.

A
ll burlap m

a
terial on

 ba
lle

d and burlap
ped

 plants shall be the typ
e that de

com
poses w

ithin
 tw

o years.
S

ynthetic or pla
stic type w

rapping
s a

re not allow
ed.

A
fte

r setting
 ba

lle
d a

nd burlap
ped

 plants, rem
ove

 th
e top 1/3

 of th
e b

urlap and
 com

pletely rem
ove

 all binder
tw

in
e.  N

o
 bu

rla
p shall show

 ab
ove

 the surface.

A
ll pla

nting are
as sha

ll be gra
ded

 sm
ooth, w

ithou
t the pre

sen
ce of low

 sp
ots, d

epression
s o

r irre
gular hum

ps.
A

rea
s arou

nd pla
nting bed

s shall be constru
cte

d to re-d
ire

ct dra
ina

ge aro
und

 an
d a

w
ay from

 planting areas.
A

ll pla
nting are

as sha
ll be con

structed and
 grade

d to e
nsu

re positive dra
inage aw

a
y from

 structures.

C
eda

r m
ulch shall b

e a
pplied

 w
ithin 24 h

ours o
f plan

tin
g o

f n
ew

 pla
nt m

aterial.  M
ulch shall b

e spre
ad evenly

to a
 se

ttled dep
th of 4" aro

und all tree
s a

nd shrubs to
 th

e lim
its of the

 planting
 be

ds as sho
w

n on plans.

A
ll pla

ntings sh
all be

 "w
ate

red
 in

"  by flooding the
 ba

ckfield h
ole

 w
ithin the sam

e w
orking da

y u
pon w

hich they
w

ere planted.  A
ll pla

nts shall be
 ad

justed
 as necessary to e

nsu
re correct d

epth o
f plan

tin
g, vertical alignm

ent
a

nd/or to com
pen

sate for settling.  S
oil sh

all be
 firm

e
d a

rou
nd aro

und
 ea

ch pla
nt as fin

al adjustm
ents are

m
ade.

6

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
 C

A
L

C
U

LA
T

IO
N

S

5
 G

al.

L
eng

th of S
treet F

rontage
1

75.00'

C
om

m
o

n B
e

rm
ud

a S
olid S

o
d or H

yd
ro

sp
rigs - 4,575 s.f. +

/-

N
um

be
r of P

arking Lot
T

rees P
rovided

N
um

ber of T
re

es R
eq

uired
1

 P
er 10 S

paces
57

Interio
r P

a
rking Lot

L
andscaping A

rea P
rovidedA

s S
caled

E
lm

, A
llee

 Lacebark
U

lm
u

s p
arvifo

lia
LE

O
ak, Live

Q
uercus virginiana

LO
A

s S
caled

3
" C

al.

3
" C

al.

CORINTH, TEXAS

C
eda

r, E
astern R

ed
Junip

erus virginiana
E

R
C

A
s S

caled
3

" C
al.

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 S
C

A
LE

:  1" = 20'

0
20

40
N

O
R

T
H

10

G
rass, Lin

dhe
im

e
r's M

uhly
M

uhlenb
erg

ia lin
dhe

im
eri

36"
L

M
G

3
 G

al.

H
olly, D

w
a

rf Y
au

pon
Ilex vo

m
itoria 'N

ana'
D

Y
H

36"

Jasm
ine

, A
sian

T
rachelosp

erm
um

 asiaticum
4

" C
ont.

A
J

N
S

H
H

olly, N
e

llie R
. S

tevens
Ile

x x 'N
ellie R

. S
tevens'

7 G
al./

3' H
t.

24"

5
 G

al.

48"

P
LA

N
T

 S
P

A
C

IN
G

 D
E

T
A

IL

SPAC
E PLAN

TS AC
C

O
R

D
IN

G
 TO

 Q
U

AN
TITIES

IN
D

IC
ATED

 PER
 PLAN

T AR
EAS AN

D
 PLAN

T
SC

H
ED

U
LE..

SET PLAN
TS IN

 STAG
G

ER
ED

 R
O

W
S AS

SH
O

W
N

.  (36 IN
C

H
ES U

SED
 AS EXAM

PLE).

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

LE

S
H

R
U

B
 P

LA
N

T
IN

G
 D

E
T

A
IL

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

LE

PR
U

N
E PLAN

T TO
 R

EM
O

VE D
EAD

 O
R

BR
O

KEN
 BR

AN
C

H
ES.

M
U

LC
H

 SH
ALL BE KEPT M

IN
. 2 IN

C
H

ES AW
AY

FR
O

M
 TR

U
N

K O
F PLAN

T.

4 IN
C

H
 D

EPTH
 O

F M
U

LC
H

.  D
O

 N
O

T PLAC
E

M
U

LC
H

 IN
 C

O
N

TAC
T W

ITH
 PLAN

T TR
U

N
K.

M
AIN

TAIN
 TH

E M
U

LC
H

 W
EED

 FR
EE.

R
EM

O
VE C

O
N

TAIN
ER

 FR
O

M
 R

O
O

T M
ASS.

LO
O

SEN
 R

O
O

TS FR
O

M
 PO

TBO
U

N
D

 PLAN
TS BY

SC
O

R
IN

G
 O

R
 PU

LLIN
G

.

D
AM

PEN
 SO

IL PR
IO

R
 TO

 PLAN
TIN

G
.

R
EM

O
VE ALL TAG

S, TW
IN

E O
R

 O
TH

ER
N

O
N

-BIO
D

EG
R

AD
ABLE M

ATER
IALS ATTAC

H
ED

TO
 TH

E PLAN
T O

R
 R

O
O

T M
ASS.

PLAN
T SO

IL LEVEL SH
ALL BE 1" H

IG
H

ER
 TH

AN
SU

R
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 G
R

AD
E.

BAC
KFILL H

O
LE W

ITH
 TH

O
R

O
U

G
H

M
IXTU

R
E O

F 1 PT. SAN
D

, 1 PT. O
R

G
AN

IC
H

U
M

U
S, 1 PT. N

ATIVE TO
PSO

IL.

TAM
P SO

IL AR
O

U
N

D
 R

O
O

T BALL LIG
H

TLY W
ITH

FO
O

T O
R

 H
AN

D
 PR

ESSU
R

E TO
 PR

EVEN
T

SH
IFTIN

G
.

PLAN
T PIT TO

 BE AT LEAST 2X W
ID

ER
TH

AN
 R

O
O

T BALL.  SC
AR

IFY AN
D

 AN
G

LE
SID

ES O
F TH

E H
O

LE.

PLAC
E BO

TTO
M

 O
F R

O
O

T BALL O
N

 O
N

TAM
PED

 SO
IL TH

AT H
AS BEEN

 SETTED
W

ITH
 W

ATER
.

AM
EN

D
M

EN
TS SH

ALL BE AD
D

ED
 TO

 SO
IL

BASED
 O

N
 R

ESU
LTS O

F SO
IL TESTS..

PR
O

VID
E D

R
AIN

AG
E IN

 PLAN
TIN

G
 PIT AS

D
EEM

ED
 N

EC
ESSAR

Y BY A SO
IL

PER
C

O
LATIO

N
 TEST.

D
O

 N
O

T H
EAVILY PR

U
N

E TR
EE AT PLAN

TIN
G

.
PR

U
N

E O
N

LY C
R

O
SSO

VER
 LIM

BS,
C

O
-D

O
M

IN
AN

T LEAD
ER

S, AN
D

 BR
O

KEN
 O

R
D

EAD
 BR

AN
C

H
ES.

STAKE TR
EE O

N
LY AT TH

E APPR
O

VAL O
F

TH
E LAN

D
SC

APE AR
C

H
ITEC

T.

M
AR

K TH
E N

O
R

TH
 SID

E O
F TH

E TR
EE IN

 TH
E

N
U

R
SER

Y, AN
D

 R
O

TATE TR
EE TO

 FAC
E

N
O

R
TH

 AT TH
E SITE W

H
EN

EVER
 PO

SSIBLE.

SET TO
P O

F R
O

O
T BALL 1 IN

C
H

 ABO
VE

FIN
ISH

 G
R

AD
E.

4 IN
C

H
 D

EPTH
 O

F M
U

LC
H

.  D
O

 N
O

T PLAC
E

M
U

LC
H

 IN
 C

O
N

TAC
T W

ITH
 TR

EE TR
U

N
K.

M
AIN

TAIN
 TH

E M
U

LC
H

 W
EED

 FR
EE.

TR
EE PIT TO

 BE 3X W
ID

ER
 TH

AN
 R

O
O

T
BALL.  SC

AR
IFY AN

D
 AN

G
LE SID

ES O
F

TH
E H

O
LE.

PLAC
E BO

TTO
M

 O
F R

O
O

T BALL O
N

U
N

EXC
AVATED

 O
R

 TAM
PED

 SO
IL.

R
EM

O
VE ALL TW

IN
E, R

O
PE, W

IR
E, AN

D
BU

R
LAP FR

O
M

 TO
P H

ALF O
F R

O
O

T BALL.

BAC
KFILL H

O
LE W

ITH
 EXISTIN

G
 SO

IL.

TH
E TO

P O
F R

O
O

T BALL SH
ALL N

O
T BE

C
O

VER
ED

 W
ITH

 SO
IL.

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

LE

T
R

E
E

 P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 D
E

T
A

IL

M
U

LC
H

 R
IN

G
 TO

 BE 6 IN
C

H
 D

IAM
ETER

 M
IN

.,
8 IN

C
H

 D
IAM

ETER
 PR

EFER
R

ED
.

TAM
P SO

IL AR
O

U
N

D
 R

O
O

T BALL FIR
M

LY
W

ITH
 FO

O
T PR

ESSU
R

E TO
 PR

EVEN
T

SH
IFTIN

G
.

AM
EN

D
M

EN
TS SH

ALL BE AD
D

ED
 TO

 SO
IL

BASED
 O

N
 R

ESU
LTS O

F SO
IL TESTS..

PR
O

VID
E D

R
AIN

AG
E IN

 PLAN
TIN

G
 PIT AS

D
EEM

ED
 N

EC
ESSAR

Y BY A SO
IL

PER
C

O
LATIO

N
 TEST.

N
O

T
E

:
A

N
 IR

R
IG

A
T

IO
N

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 W
ILL

 B
E

 D
E

S
IG

N
E

D
,

IN
S

T
A

LLE
D

 A
N

D
 F

U
N

C
T

IO
N

A
L P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 T

H
E

A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L O

F
 T

H
E

 C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
 O

F
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

.

N
O

T
E

:
T

H
E

 O
W

N
E

R
 S

H
A

LL B
E

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

L
E

 F
O

R
 T

H
E

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

, E
S

T
A

B
L

IS
H

M
E

N
T

 A
N

D
 P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

O
F

 P
L

A
N

T
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
LS

.

2-10-2017 PER CITY COMMENTS DATED 1-31-2017

263



3

F

R

O

N

T

A

G

ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS:

1 CANOPIES

2 DISPLAY WINDOWS

3 RECESSES AND PROJECTIONS

264

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 100'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 15'-4" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 23'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 28'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARPAET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 28'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPANDREL GLASS IN STOREFRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO TRIM/CORNICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCENT BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 23-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 10-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O. CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 15-4" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 15'-4" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 23'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 10'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O. CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 100-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 28-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPANDREL GLASS IN STOREFRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO TRIM/CORNICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO WITH REVEALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCENT BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCENT STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 100'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 15'-4" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 23'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 28'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARPAET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 10'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O. CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 23-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 10-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O. CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 15-4" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO TRIM/CORNICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO WITH REVEALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPANDREL GLASS IN STOREFRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCENT BRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCENT STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 15'-4" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 23'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 10'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O. CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 23-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 10-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O. CANOPY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 15-4" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 100-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 21'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL. 21-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. PARAPET

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO TRIM/CORNICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUCCO WITH REVEALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCENT STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/09/17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16-123

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORINTH, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWISHER / 35 RETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR ANY PURPOSE, WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE DRAWINGS, OR PARTS THEREOF, MAY NOT BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPYRIGHT  C  2016 GSO ARCHITECTS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5310 Harvest Hill Rd.  Suite 226

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dallas,  Texas  75230

AutoCAD SHX Text
972-385-9651

AutoCAD SHX Text
www.GSOarchitects.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSENT FROM GSO ARCHITECTS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REPRODUCED IN ANY FORM, BY ANY METHOD, 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY PLAN NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV04

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UWEST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USOUTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
04

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNORTH ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UEAST ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
05

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UKEY PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE



265

Amy.Sumners
PolyLine

Amy.Sumners
PolyLine

Amy.Sumners
PolyLine

Amy.Sumners
Line

Amy.Sumners
PolyLine

Amy.Sumners
PolyLine

Amy.Sumners
Text Box
TRIPARTITE EXHIBIT

Amy.Sumners
PolyLine

Amy.Sumners
PolyLine



266



0.8

0.4

0.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.3

0.7

0.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.5

0.7

1.5

1.5

1.1

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.4

0.9

1.4

1.8

2.1

1.1

0.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.5

1.9

2.5

1.9

1.2

0.8

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.4

0.9

1.8

2.2

2.5

1.5

0.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.4

1.7

2.6

2.7

2.3

1.5

1.0

0.9

2.1

3.5

2.2

0.7

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.4

0.9

1.8

2.7

3.1

1.8

1.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

1.7

1.8

3.0

2.6

2.0

1.3

0.9

1.1

4.3

10.1

4.8

1.1

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.4

1.0

1.8

2.6

2.9

1.7

1.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.6

1.8

2.8

2.7

2.2

1.5

1.4

1.3

0.1

0.1

0.4

1.0

1.8

2.6

2.9

1.7

1.3

0.0

0.0

0.6

0.7

2.0

3.0

2.5

1.7

1.3

2.7

4.4

0.1

0.2

0.4

1.0

1.9

2.7

3.1

1.8

1.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.7

1.6

2.5

2.5

2.0

1.3

1.0

4.2

9.9

0.2

0.3

0.5

1.1

1.9

2.5

2.5

1.6

0.8

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.5

1.4

1.9

1.7

1.5

0.9

0.7

2.6

4.6

0.5

0.5

0.8

1.3

1.9

2.2

2.5

1.5

1.0

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.2

0.6

1.1

1.2

1.0

1.0

0.6

0.5

1.3

1.7

1.2

1.2

1.3

1.6

1.9

2.3

2.3

1.4

0.9

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.3

0.4

1.9

3.0

2.2

2.1

2.1

2.2

2.5

2.7

2.4

1.4

0.9

0.4

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.5

3.8

9.1

2.6

3.0

2.9

2.9

3.2

2.9

2.4

1.6

1.0

0.5

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.4

3.0

6.5

2.8

3.2

3.0

3.0

3.2

2.6

2.4

1.5

0.9

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.1

1.7

1.4

1.9

1.8

1.8

1.9

1.3

1.2

0.7

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.6

1.0

4.2

9.2

4.7

1.2

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

0.6

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

1.0

1.6

1.1

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.1

0.1
0.2

0.3
0.3

0.3
0.3

0.3
0.2

0.2
0.2

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.0

0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.91.11.41.7

1.5

1.2

1.2

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.8

0.9

1.1

1.4

1.5

1.4

1.3

0.7

1.0

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.3

0.4

1.0

1.2

1.3

1.4

0.5 0.7 0.9 1.2 1.6

2.8
2.0

1.6

1.3
0.8

0.5
0.3

0.1
0.1

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.2

0.3
0.4

0.6
0.8

1.1
1.4

1.8

2.1
2.0

1.7

1.1

1.5

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.1
0.1

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.10.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

P1 @ 27.5'

P1 @ 27.5'

P1 @ 27.5'

D @ 14'D @ 14'

D @ 14'D @ 14'

Statistics

Description Avg Max Min

Prop Line Vert 1 0.5 fc 1.4 fc 0.0 fc

Prop Line Vert 2 1.0 fc 1.6 fc 0.5 fc

Prop Line Vert 3 0.6 fc 2.8 fc 0.0 fc

Prop Line Vert 4 0.5 fc 1.5 fc 0.0 fc

Prop Line Vert 5 0.0 fc 0.0 fc 0.0 fc

Prop Line Vert 6 0.2 fc 0.2 fc 0.0 fc

Prop Line Vert 7 0.0 fc 0.0 fc 0.0 fc

Prop Line Vert 8 0.1 fc 0.1 fc 0.0 fc

Prop Line Vert 9 0.2 fc 0.6 fc 0.0 fc

Prop Line Vert 10 0.0 fc 0.1 fc 0.0 fc

Property Line 

Horizontal

0.2 fc 1.7 fc 0.0 fc

Site 1.1 fc 9.3 fc 0.0 fc

Schedule

Symbol Label Quantity

Manufactur

er

Catalog 

Number

Description Lamp

Number 

Lamps

Lumens Per 

Lamp

Wattage

P1

3 Lithonia 

Lighting

DSX0 LED 

40C 1000 

40K BLC 

MVOLT

DSX0 LED  

WITH 40 

LEDs @1000 

mA, 4000K, 

BACKLIGHT 

CONTROL 

OPTIC

LED 1 11086 138

D

4 Lithonia 

Lighting

WST LED P2 

40K VW 

MVOLT

WST LED, 

Performance 

package 2, 

4000 K, 

visual 

comfort 

wide, MVOLT

LED 1 3511 25

GENERAL NOTES:

NOTES BY SYMBOL    :

e    n    g    i    n    e    e    r    i    n    g
CHOICE ENGINEERING, LLC             SACHSE, TEXAS             PHONE: (469) 608-1268

TEXAS FIRM REG. NUMBER F-16876                               WWW.CHOICE.ENGINEERING

THIS DRAWING SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED FOR ANY PROJECT, OTHER THAN

THE ONE NOTED IN THE TITLE BLOCK, WITHOUT THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF

CHOICE ENGINEERING, LLC.  COPYRIGHT 2015, CHOICE ENGINEERING, LLC.

S
W

I
S

H
E

R
 
/
 
3

5

R
E

T
A

I
L

BUILDING AREA:
6,369 SF

267



    BUSINESS ITEM    9.        
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: Lake Dallas High School Sign Variance
Submitted For: Fred Gibbs, Director 
Submitted By: Barbara Cubbage, Planning & Development Manager
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on a sign variance for Lake Dallas ISD School Addition Lot 1R, Block 1 in the City of Corinth,
Denton County, Texas, having a physical address of 3016 Parkridge Drive.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
APPROVAL PROCESS

An applicant may apply for a sign variance if the sign application has been denied by the building official. 
Requests for sign variances are considered by City Council.

NOTIFICATION TO PUBLIC

Notification by sign placement, newspaper or written notice to property owners within 200’ is not required for
consideration of sign variances.  However consideration of these requests are held in an open meeting before City
Council.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

Lake Dallas ISD has made application for a monument sign with a "Changeable Electronic Variable Message
Center Signs" (EMCs) component for the Lake Dallas High School campus located at 3016 Parkridge Drive. 
Specifics to this request are as follows:

Unified Development Code: Section 4.01.15 (C) Monument Sign, 10. Changeable Electronic Variable Message
Center Signs (EMCs), c. EMCs are only allowed on freeways and arterials. 

LDISD is requesting a variance to allow an EMC on Parkridge Drive.  Parkridge Drive is designated a
“collector street”. 

Unified Development Code:  Section 4.01.15 (C) Monument Sign, 10. Changeable Electronic Variable Message
Center Signs (EMCs), h. A lighted sign shall not be erected or displayed within one hundred fifty (150) feet of a
single-family residentially zoned property unless the lighting is shielded from view of the residentially zoned
property and indirect light does not exceed ½ lumen measured from any property line of the residentially zoned
property. 

LDISD is requesting a variance to allow an EMC on Parkridge Drive.  The EMC will be used to provide
information to the community, parents, and staff.

ZONING

The Corinth Elementary Campus is zoned SF-4, Single Family Residential.

COMPREHENSIVE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION

The Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map shows the Lake Dallas High School campus is designated
Public/Semi-Public.

268



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

No funding is required.

RECOMMENDATION
STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff supports the need for a monument sign, however we would recommend the EMC be static (no flashing) and
meet our residential foot-candle and luminance lighting standards set forth in the lighting and glare regulations in
the UDC.

Attachments
Location Map 
LDHS Sign Variance Documents 

269



Corinth
First

Baptist

Corinth
Family

Medicine

M E A D O W V I E W D R

C L I F F O A K S DR

FORES TW
OOD

DR

B A L L A D E E R

TH
EB

RI
A R

S

SPA RTA D R

TO
W

ER
RI

DG
E

DR

SY
RA

CU
SE

 D
R

PAR KRI DGE
DR

VI
ST

AV
IE

W
 D

R

AT H E N S  D R

M
OU

NT
AI

NV
IE

W
 D

R

PA
RK

VI
EW

 D
R

FO
RE

ST
VI

EW
 D

R

FO
UN

TA
IN

VI
EW

 D
R

SK
YV

IE
W

 D
R

F M  2 1 8 1

W I N D M E R E CI R

CLARK  DR

AC
RO

PO
L I

S  
DR

PO
SE

ID
ON

 D
R

CITY OF CORINTH
LAKE DALLAS ISD

Location Map

0 530 1,060265
Feet

LAKE DALLAS ISD

270



271



272



273



274



275



    BUSINESS ITEM    10.        
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: LDISD Corinth Elementary Sign Variance
Submitted For: Fred Gibbs, Director 
Submitted By: Barbara Cubbage, Planning & Development Manager
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consider and act on a sign variance for Corinth Elementary Addition Lot 1, Block 1 in the City of Corinth, Denton
County, Texas, having a physical address of 3501 Cliff Oaks Drive.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
APPROVAL PROCESS

An applicant may apply for a sign variance if a sign application has been denied by the building official. 
Consideration of sign variance are presented to City Council.

NOTIFICATION TO PUBLIC

Notification by sign placement, newspaper or written notice to property owners within 200’ is not required for
consideration of sign variances.  However consideration of these requests are held in an open meeting before City
Council.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND

Lake Dallas ISD has made application for a monument sign for the Corinth Elementary campus located at 3501
Cliff Oaks Drive.  Specifics to the request are as follows:

Unified Development Code: Section 4.01.15 (C) Monument Sign, 3. Maximum height shall not exceed (5) five
feet. 

LDISD is requesting a variance to allow a monument sign total height of 10’.  The request is based on the
elevation change between the roadway and the sign placement location. 

Unified Development Code: Section 4.01.15 (C) Monument Sign, 10. Changeable Electronic Variable Message
Center Signs (EMCs), c. EMCs are only allowed on freeways and arterials. 

LDISD is requesting a variance to allow an EMC on Cliff Oaks Drive.  Cliff Oaks Drive is designated a
“collector street”.  The EMC will be used to provide information to the community, parents, and staff.

ZONING

The Corinth Elementary Campus is zoned SF-4, Single Family Residential.

COMPREHENSIVE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION

The Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map shows the Corinth Elementary Campus designated
Public/Semi-Public.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

276



No funding is required.

RECOMMENDATION

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff supports the need for a monument sign, however we would recommend the EMC be static (no
flashing) and meet our residential foot-candle and luminance lighting standards set forth in the lighting
and glare regulations in the UDC. We would also recommend additional landscaping around the base of
the sign to help soften the additional height.

Attachments
Corinth Elementary Location Map 
Corinth Elementary Sign Variance Documents 

277



Corinth Elementary

35E

Corinth Public
Safety Building Chicken

Express
Point
Bank

F M  2 1 8 1

R I V E R V I E W DR

G L ENV IEW
DR

P E A K V I E W D R

M E A D O W V I E W  D R

SPA RTA D R

C L I F F  O A K S  D R

CL
EA

RV
IE

W
 D

R
T IMBERV IEW  DR

TO
W

ER
RI

DG
E

DR

SY
RA

CU
SE

 D
R

C L I F FV IEW  DRTI
MB

E R
V I

EW
CI R

BEL LV
IEW D R

PA
RK

VI
EW

 D
R

FO
RE

ST
VI

EW
 D

R

L O N G V I E W D R

M
OU

NT
AI

NV
IE

W
 D

R
FA I RV IEW

DR
PO

SE
ID

ON
 D

R

S 
GA

RR
IS

ON
 R

D

Hickory
Creek

CITY OF CORINTH
CORINTH ELEMENTARY

Location Map

0 530 1,060265
Feet 278



279



280



281



282



283



284



    BUSINESS ITEM    11.        
City Council Regular and Workshop Session
Meeting Date: 03/16/2017  
Title: Motion to Reconsider
Submitted By: Kim Pence, City Secretary
Finance Review: N/A Legal Review: Yes
City Manager Review: Approval: Bob Hart, City Manager

AGENDA ITEM
Consideration of a motion to reconsider an ordinance amending the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance being a part
of the Unified Development Code, Ordinance No. 13-05-02-08, as amended, and a portion of Planned Development
Ordinance No. 99-03-18-05, as amended, by amending the zoning to Planned Development C-2 Commercial
District and adding “Hospital” as a Permitted Use on Lot 1, Block A, Corinth Medical Center Addition being 5.00
acres in the City of Corinth, Denton County, Texas and calling a public hearing and  continuation of action on an
ordinance to April 20, 2017.

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY/BACKGROUND
The applicant is requesting City Council to reconsider the zoning amendment agenda item from the March 2, 2017
Regular Session meeting. In order for the item to be reconsidered, a Council member will need to make the motion
and receive a second and have a majority vote to reconsider the item on April 20, 2017. If the item is passed, staff
will repost in the newspaper for the April 20, 2017 Regular Session for the public hearing and action on an
ordinance.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends Council consider the applicant's request for reconsideration. 

285


	Agenda
	AI_518_Atmos Energy Construction Update
	AI_648_Proclamation for the Rather Prize Award
	ATT_Proclamation
	AI_632_Proclamation
	ATT_Proclamation
	AI_646_January 12, 2017 Workshop
	ATT_Minutes
	AI_640_February 2, 2017 Joint Session
	ATT_Minutes
	AI_639_February 2, 2017 Regular Session
	ATT_Minutes
	AI_626_EMS Billing Contract Renewal
	ATT_Agreement for EMS Billing 
	ATT_Resolution EMS Billing 
	ATT_Business Agreement EMS Billing 
	AI_627_Purchase Ambulance
	ATT_S-M Proposal
	ATT_Medic Drawings
	01-17665
	02-17665
	03-17665
	04-17665
	05-17665
	06-17665
	07-17665
	08-17665
	09-17665

	AI_625_Medic Financing 
	ATT_Medic Finance Resolution 
	ATT_Finance Proposal
	Kevin D. Lerner

	AI_642_Annual Audit
	ATT_Presentation
	ATT_September 2016 Financial Report
	The Financial Summary
	General Fund
	Water & Wastewater Utility Fund
	Storm Drainage Utility Fund
	Street Maintenance Sales Tax Fund
	Crime Control & Prevention Sales Tax Fund
	Economic Development Sales Tax Fund

	Revenue & Economic Analysis Section
	General Purpose Sales Tax
	Street Maintenance Sales Tax
	Crime Control & Prevention Sales Tax
	Economic Development Sales Tax
	Hotel Occupancy Tax
	Property Tax
	Water Charges
	Wastewater Charges

	Executive Summary Section
	Capital Improvement Program Section

	ATT_CAFR
	AI_641_Swisher _ 35 Retail Site Plan
	ATT_Swisher 35 Retail Zoning Location
	ATT_Swisher 35 Sites
	ATT_Site Plan
	ATT_Site Plan - Landscape
	ATT_Site Plan - Elevations - b_w
	ATT_Site Plan - Elevations - Tri
	ATT_Site Plan - Elevations Color
	ATT_Site Plan - Photometrics
	AI_643_Lake Dallas High School Sign Variance
	ATT_Location Map
	ATT_LDHS Sign Variance Documents
	AI_644_LDISD Corinth Elementary Sign Variance
	ATT_Corinth Elementary Location Map
	ATT_Corinth Elementary Sign Variance Documents
	AI_652_Motion to Reconsider



